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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report contains forwartboking statements within the meaning of Sectida @fithe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and &e&T7A ¢
the Securities Act of 1933. Any statements cordaiméhis report that are not statements of histafifact may be forwartboking statement
When we use the words "intends," "estimates," 'ipted "potential,” "continues," "anticipates,” "@hs," "expects," "believes," "shoul
"could," "may," "will" or the negative of these es or other comparable terminology, we are ideintgfyforward-looking statements. Forward-
looking statements involve risks and uncertaintidsich may cause our actual results, performancaadrievements to be materially differ
from those expressed or implied by forw-looking statements. These factors include ourae$eand development activities, distribt
channels, market demand for our products, companith regulatory impositions; and our capital needilthough we believe that
expectations reflected in the forwalabking statements are reasonable, we cannot guaeafuture results, levels of activity, performaioc
achievements.

Except as may be required by applicable law, waatoundertake or intend to update or revise ounfard-looking statements, and we ass
no obligation to update any forwatdeking statements contained in this report as sulieof new information or future events or deveiepts
Thus, you should not assume that our silence dwer mmeans that actual events are bearing out asesgpd or implied in such forward-
looking statements. You should carefully review emusider the various disclosures we make in #yort and our other reports filed with 1
Securities and Exchange Commission that attemptitise interested parties of the risks, uncertamtnd other factors that may affect
business.

For further information about these and other riskgertainties and factors, please review thelalisce included in this report under "Pa
Item 1A, Risk Factors."

Our Business
General

The Company (Chembio Diagnostics, Inc. and its Wholned subsidiary, Chembio Diagnostic Systems, laie, collectively referred
herein as the "Company") develops, manufactureskets and licenses rapid point-odre diagnostic tests (POCTS) that detect infeg
diseases. The Company's main products presentiyneocially available are rapid tests for the dédecof HIV 1/2 antibodies, and a multip!
rapid test for the detection of HIV and Syphiligieadies. The HIV 1/2 rapid tests employlicensed and proprietary lateral flow technolo
(see "Our Rapid Test Technologies"), can be usé¢ld alf blood matrices as samples, and are manufttm a standard cassette form:
dipstick format, and a proprietary barrel form#@he tests employing the cassette and proprietamnglbfmrmats were approved by the FD/
2006. The barrel format is exclusively distributgda distributor in the United States and by Chenabid its designated distributors outside
United States. The Cassette format is distribiedChembio and its designated distributors worldwidur latest generation HIV 1/2 ra
antibody detection test incorporates our patentedl Path Platform® (DPP®) POCT technology, and B®CT platform does not require in-
licensing. The DPP®IIV 1/2 Assay detects antibodies to HIV 1 & 2 irabfiuid samples as well as in all blood matric¥ge have sold th
product in Brazil since 2009 where it was approlbgdNVISA, through our agreement with the OswaldwLFoundation ("FIOCRUZ"), al
we received United States FDA regulatory approwathis product in December 2012 and CLIA waive©Oictober 2014. We launched it in
United States under Chembio's brand in the fountrtgr of 2014.




Our product pipeline, which currently includes altiplex rapid test for earlier detection of HIV loetecting P24 antigen as well as antibod
a test for Hepatiti€s, and a multiplex test that detects HIV and Syplspecific antibodies (which we are already sgliutside the U.S.),
based on this DPP&chnology for which we were issued a United Stptasnt in 2007 and for which additional patentigeton has issued
is pending in a number of other countries. Witk gratented DPP@&nd the lateral flow platform, we participate ire thstimated $8 billic
point-of-care market segment of the estimated &0 billion global invitro diagnostic market that has an overall grovette exceeding 3
per annum. POCTSs, by providing prompt and earhgdosis, can reduce patient stays, lower overaliscimprove therapeutic interventi
and improve patient outcomes. POCTSs can also ptexeedless hospital admissions, simplify testiracedures, avoid delays from central
batching, and eliminate the need for return visits.

In the areas of infectious and sexually transmittiséases (such as HIV and syphilis), the utility oapid point—ofeare (POC) test, particula
in identifying patients unaware of their diseas#us, has been well established. Large and gromiakets have been established for t
kinds of tests, initially in high prevalence regsomhere they are indispensable for large scalegpt@n and treatment programs. More rect
introduced in the United States in 2004, rapid k#%8ts now also present a significant segment obltlse market for HIV clinical testing, whi

is still dominated by laboratory tests. We haveused our product development activity within are@gre the availability of rapid, point-of-
care screening, diagnostic, or confirmatory restéits improve health outcomes. More generally wiebe there is and will continue to b
growing demand for diagnostic products that carvideo accurate, actionable diagnostic informatiorairapid, coseffective manner at tl
point of care.

PRODUCTS
Lateral Flow Rapid HIV Tests

All three of our lateral flow rapid HIV antibody tbetion tests are qualitative "yes/no" tests far detection of antibodies to HIV 1 & 2 w
visually interpreted results (one line "negativelie line "positive") available within approximatelp minutes. The tests are simple to
have a shelf life of 24 months, and do not reqreéfageration. The tests differ principally only tihe method of test procedure, convenience
cost. One of our FDApproved lateral flow HIV tests incorporates a pietary plastic "barrel" device that houses therait flow strip. Thi
barrel format enables collection of samples diye@tisually from a fingestick whole blood sample) into the barrel's capjllap. A seale
unitized buffer vial, assembled onto the top ofltlaerel, is removed and seated into a stand; thieiséhen pierced by the barrel's capillary
thereby initiating the upward flow of the resultisgmplebuffer solution through a filter, up into the vesl device's chamber and onto
lateral flow strip. This results in a unique unéil and closed device system that can reduce #recelof exposure to potentially infecti
samples.

In January 2015, the Company entered into an agneewith StatSure Diagnostic Systems, Inc. (SDS)dguire SDS' interest in the ba
device format, also known as Chembio's SURE CHEGHK® 1/2 Assay, effective June 1, 2016. Beginningeld, 2016, Chembio will ov
full rights related to the SURE CHECKR®IV 1/2 Assay, including sales, marketing, disttibn and trademark rights, subject to the tern
the existing marketing and distribution agreemeith Wlere, Inc., which grants Alere U.S. marketiagd distribution rights through May .
2016. Prior to this newlgxecuted agreement between SDS and Chembio, SD8whesl a 50 percent interest in the rights to thdRE
CHECK® HIV 1/2 Assay that would have continued after Mdy 3016, also subject to the existing marketing disttibution agreement wi
Alere. The new agreement with SDS also resolvesthir matters between Chembio and SDS, includieg tespective sharing ratios, u
June 1, 2016, concerning net revenues from saleedsURE CHECK® product outside the U.S.

The Company's SURE CHECK® HIV 1/2 Assay is marketadlusively in the U.S. as Clearview®omplete. Outside the U.S., Chen
markets the SURE CHECK® HIV 1/2 Assay primarily dhgh distributors. The SURE CHECK®IV 1/2 Assay is Food & Dri
Administration (FDA) approved, CLIA-waived, Europe&E-marked, and has been prslified by the World Health Organization (WH
Results are obtained in 15 minutes via a 2.5uL dkmmple (i.e., fingerstick, serum, plasma, or pencture whole blood). The assay is st
at room temperature and provides 99.7% sensitarity 99.9% specificity.
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Our other FDAapproved lateral flow HIV test uses a more conwerati rectangular plastic cassette format that reotlse lateral flow strip.
this case, a sample is transferred by use of aaebaprovided transfer device ("loop") into a gdenwell or port of the cassette that house
lateral flow strip, which is positioned horizontabr flat.

Our third lateral flow HIV test, the HIV 1/2 STATAK® Dipstick, is our most cost competitive and comdacmat. It does not have a
plastic housing so that 30 test strips can be gpekdnto a small vial that is ideal for transpagtimto remote settings. The test procedu
similar to the cassette format except that a upphied adhesive backing is provided as a more effsttive and compact "surface" on whicl
run the test.

Regulatory Status of the lateral flow HIV tests

The FDA approved our Piglarket Applications (hereinafter "PMA"; see "Goverantal Regulations" and Glossary) in April 2006 &an
SURE CHECK® HIV 1/2 (and also now Alere Clearvievx@®mplete HIV 1/2) and for our HIV 1/2 STAT-PAK@roducts. Waivers under 1
Clinical Laboratory Improvement Act (hereinafterLI8"; see Governmental Regulations) were grantedthyy FDA for these two FDA-
approved products in 2006 and 2007, respectivalCLIA waiver is required in order for health cgyeoviders to administer these tests in
settings where they are most suited and needed, aipublic health testing clinics, hospital emaoyerooms and physicians' offices. -
SURE CHECK® and HIV 1/2 STAT-PAK@products received CE Marks in July 2013 and M&@h4, respectively, and the CE Marking
the DPP®HIV 1/2 Assay described below is expected in 20//8. have also updated our filing for CE Marking ¢flect the new tradename
STAT-VIEW® HIV 1/ 2 Assay for sale in the EU matkeOur HIV 1/2 STAT-PAK® Dipstick, although not FBapproved, qualifies unc
FDA export regulations [See Government Regulation$ell to customers outside the United Statesjestito any required approval by
importing country. CE Mark has not been pursuedHis product.

All three of our lateral flow HIV tests have quad for procurement under the President's Emeng@tan for AIDS Relief ("PEPFAR"). TI
cassette and dipstick versions of the STAT-PAK® #ml SURE CHECK® assays are also guadified by the World Health Organizat
(WHO) for procurements by the second largest glpbagram, known as the Global Fund, as well asratflated programs funded by agen
affiliated with the United Nations, such as UNICBRd UNITAIDS (see Glossary), through qualificatiwith the WHO bulk procureme
scheme.

DPP® HIV 1/2 Assay

As in the case of our lateral flow HIV tests, oPBR®HIV 1/2 Assay is also a qualitative "yes/no" test the detection of antibodies to HIV
2, delivers visual results within as little as 1%uates, is simple to use, has a shelf life of 2hths, and does not require refrigeration.
product, which is our first FDA-approved producatanporating our patented DPR@&chnology, can be used with oral fluid samplesyel as
with all blood matrices. This product also incaigies our patergiending oral fluid collection and storage systemt #nables samples to
fully extracted in buffer solution before appliaati to the test device, and also enables the ezttagample to be stored and reteste
potentially tested for multiple conditions in futuproduct applications. Clinical and laboratonydéts demonstrated the ability of the tes
accurately detect the presence of antibodies iiviohaals down to two years of age. Studies have at®wn this product to have impro
performance compared with all of the current FDAraped CLIAwaived lateral flow rapid tests, even including awn lateral flow tests
FDA-approved label claims include sensitivity/sfiiedy on oral fluid and fingesstick whole blood of 98.9%/99.9% and 99.9%/1(
respectively. Oral fluid sensitivity was 100% amadtky-positive patients not taking anti-retrovirakatication.




Regulatory Status of the DPI® HIV 1/2 Assay
In December 2012, we received FDA approval of aerMarketing Approval. In October of 2014 the F@ranted CLIA waiver status.

The DPP®HIV 1/2 Assay product is qualified for procurememmider the President's Emergency Plan for AIDS REIREPFAR") for use wit
all sample matrices, and we are pursuing WHO duaatibn in order to enable procurement of this pidby the Global Fund and Unii
Nations agencies, including programs underwrittgrthem. In October 2014, we completed a t-day onsite inspection by the WHO
follow-up to pre-qualification activities of our giucts with no major nooenformances noted during the audit. The WHO latooy
evaluation for the blood matrix is complete, whileal fluid is in progress and expected to be cotepie 2015. We are also pursuing
Marking, anticipated during 2015, as stated above.

In June 2010, ANVISA approved the DPREV 1/2 Assay that is being marketed in Brazil thgh our collaboration with the Oswaldo C
Foundation, Brazil's leading public health insgtgsee Oswaldo Cruz Foundation OEM DPR@eements). Since this time, we have sold
marketed millions of DPP HIV tests to Brazil thrduthis partnership.

DPP® HIV-Syphilis Multiplex Test

This product, launched in 2013, allows for the déta of antibodies to both HIV and Syphilis oniage test device within approximately
minutes. In certain global/public health settifgse Target Markets), this product may provide aentonvenient and cost effective mear
rapid detecting both markers in a single test praoe at the point of care as compared with perfognsieparate rapid tests for each indical
This product takes advantage of the multiplexirgjdee of DPP@&vhich provides for a more robust reaction betwdensample and biomark
being tested for (HIV and Syphilis antibodies iistbase), resulting in a greater ability by therdsevisually interpret test results. We launc
this product in Mexico in the fourth quarter of 0ds a unitized product, meaning that each test&idt separately packaged to include ea
the other components necessary to run this testormpared with other configurations where a tesbk20 or 30 devices is accompaniec
one bottle of running buffer. The initial resultthis launch have been very positive, and we Bapeed good results in Mexico during 2!
from the program. Building on this initial success& continue to pursue commercialization efforistfos product in a number of additio
international markets, where there is a great neetktect Mother-to-Child+ansmission of HIV and Syphilis globally. Accandito the CDt(
website, "approximately 370,000 babies are borh WitV, mostly in subSaharan Africa. Without treatment, more than hélthese childre
will die before the age of 2. Through key inteniens, such as routinely testing pregnant womerHidf, providing antiretroviral medicatiol
to HIV-infected pregnant women and their exposddrits, and promoting safe infant feeding practicesther-toehild transmission of HI
can be decreased from about 35% to less than 5f@th&r prominent cause of infant mortality is uategl maternal syphilis, which s
accounts for more than 500,000 stillbirths and ribfdeaths annually despite the fact that thesehdeaduld be prevented through rou
detection and treatment of syphilis during antdrzgee".

Regulatory Status of the DPP® HIV-Syphilis Test

DPP® HIV-Syphilis — We have developed this product for internationa &iiS. marketing. For the international market, gheduct has be:
registered in Mexico, and successfully launchedsaid in this region.

In February 2015, this product was granted appréreah the Brazilian ANVISA. We have submitted tinsoduct both for evaluation by t
CDC, acting on behalf of the United States Agentynternational Development, and the WHO, which k&septed this product to
evaluated for pre-qualification in its global proement scheme. In October 2014, WHO conductedesttay audit of our facilities as follc
up to pre-qualification activities for the DPP HB#philis Assay, including other products submitted pre-qualification through WHO. N
major non-conformances were identified during tslit, and we continue to work with WHO to obtairequalification approval status 1
this device.




We continue to pursue an FDA submission for thadpct, and are in the progress of studies to etalaersion that has been develope
the US market, to meet the performance requirenfenta combination test to detect both HIV and Sygshincluding a "reverse" algorith
that is currently in clinical use in the United ®&for syphilis testing.

DPP® TECHNOLOGY & DEVELOPMENT:

This year marked a critical year for Chembio inaxang our strategy to leverage our DPP®llectual property and product development
manufacturing experience to create new collabaratizhere Chembio serves as an exclusive developamhtmanufacturing partne
Examples of such collaboration include the follogyin

In October 2014, Chembio entered into an excluagreement with Integrated BioTherapeutics, IncT§|Ba biotechnology compa
focused on the discovery of novel vaccines and apheutics for emerging infectious diseases. Under tdrms of th
agreement, Chembio will combine its patented IPfchnology with IBT's proprietary Ebola reagentsdevelop POC diagnos
tests for Ebola and febrile illness. Since annmundhe partnership with IBT, the Company has méue following progress
develop DPF® Ebola and DPI® Febrile lliness Assay:

o Developed DPI® Ebola Assays in Chembio's Research & Developmeiiities.

0 Successfully tested DPREbola Assays in high containment (BSL4) laborataising wild type (real) Ebola virus, via IBT's paet
in Canada

0 Signed a Research Collaboration Agreement wittCixgters for Disease Control and Prevention (CD@eteelop and validate DI
®Ebola and DPI® Febrile lliness Assay:

o0 Continued to evaluate its DPREDola test at CDC laboratory in Atlanta, GA, with @stimate of having product for field evalua
in 2Q of 2015

0 Submitted DPP Ebola prequalification application to World Health Organizat (WHO) as well as Emergenct Use Authorizz
(EUA) for FDA

o Contacted numerous organizations for Ebola fundingaccelerate the potential development, and piatemanufacturing ar
supply, of DPF® Ebola and DPI® Febrile lliness Assays, to include both Ebola araldvia.

The Company entered into an agreement to deweP@C diagnostic test for dengue fever virus,DR®® Dengue Fever Assay, whi
would be able to detect IgG/IGM and NS1 antigen®d@tober 2014

A partnership with an international diagnostics pamy to develop a POC diagnostic test for the edefiection and monitoring of
specific type of cancer. The cancer project remrissthe first application of the DFRechnology outside the infectious disease fielslg
announced in October 201

The Company entered into a follow-on, milestbased development agreement with a private coirigaotganization acting on behalt
the United States Centers for Disease Control aegdnation (CDC), for a multiplex POC influenza imnity test utilizing Chembio
patented Dual Path Platform (DI®) technology

In January 2015, Chembio entered into an agreemigmthe Concussion Science Group (CSG) Divisioiefseus Science Group LLC
utilize Chembio's patented DPRtechnology to develop a POC diagnostic test fanrtratic brain injury (TBI), including sportslatec
concussion. Under terms of the agreement, CSGenteat biomarker will be combined with Chembio'sppigtary DPP® platform tc
develop a semi-quantitative or quantitative poifitare test to diagnose TBIl. CSG has agreed to p&mbBio milestone developmt
payments during 201!




In January 2015, Chembio was awarded a grant fleenBill & Melinda Gates Foundation to expedite tle@sibility testing an
development of a DPP Malaria POC rapid diagnostic to accurately identifdividuals infected with Plasmodium falciparumrasite
Chembio's DPP technology was selected for this grant due toxtseptional sensitivity and potential to aid therfdation in its goal «
eradicating malaria. To achieve this goal, diagneshust be capable of detecting the malaria perasinfected, but asymptomatic peo
Current POC rapid diagnostics tests lack sufficamtsitivity to identify all individuals with trangissible infections

Additionally, Chembio's product pipeline includesnaltiplex test that detects P24 HIV antigen aslhaelHIV 1/2 antibodies, and a rapid
for the detection of Hepatiti§-antibodies. These products are currently in ldgweent to meet the performance claims requiredHerU.S
market.

PARTNERS INVOLVED IN MARKETING OUR PRODUCTS
Alere

On September 29, 2006, we executed marketing aadde agreements with Alere. The marketing agreenfthe Barrel Agreement and
Cassette Agreement) provide Alere with ayEar exclusive right (until May 31, 2016) to market rapid HIV tests in the United States ui
Alere's brands. The agreements also provide Chleembhbnexclusive license to certain Alere lateral flowgyds that may be applicable to
lateral flow products, including for manufacturetb& HIV tests in the United States for sales det$he United States and even for sale il
United States should Alere enter the U.S. markét wicompetitive rapid HIV test product and in sgelse we choose to market our prod
directly as provided in the agreements in such ewéna competitive rapid HIV test product. Simukémus with the execution of
agreements, we also settled litigation with StaeéSDragnostics, Inc. (SDS), that had been ongoifating to the proprietary barrel dev
which is incorporated into one of our two Flasproved rapid HIV tests (See Lateral Flow HIV Beabove). SDS, pursuant to the settlen
is a party to the 3vay Barrel Agreement. As a result, until now sitthirough the agreements with Alere that we haem lparticipating in tt
growth of the rapid HIV test market in the Unitet®s.

In late July 2013, we received notice from Aleratth intends to commercialize its own rapid HI\stt¢see Competition), which test had
received FDA approval as a moderate complexity peodi.e. not CLIAwaived though this was granted in late 2014), & thmited State
Under the Barrel Agreement and the Cassette Agneesueh product is considered to be a Permitted ggtimgy Product (PCP). Each of
two aforementioned agreements provides that, icéise of notice of a PCP, Chembio may make ceetattions (jointly with SDS in the ce
of the Barrel Agreement), or elect to continue eagfeement without taking any further action. &nthe Cassette Agreement, Chembio |
at any time, terminate such agreement, which teatiin would become effective 60 days after the deatiice was made. Under the Ba
Agreement, Chembio and SDS may jointly issue a exmidsivity notice, which notice shall be effectimamediately. In the event tt
Chembio (and SDS) makes this election with resgmeetther (or both) of these products, Chembio d@ell that respective (or both) produc
in the United States market under Chembio/SDS lsrand in such case, the lateral flow license then@bio has from Alere for internatio
sales would be expanded to include sales in theelrfstates. Sekateral Flow Technology and Reagent Licensek April 2014, thi
Company gave notice to Alere of its intent to teraté the Cassette Agreement and 60 days late€dhmpany began marketing in the Un
States under the Chembio brand of HIV 1/2 STAT-PA&Say. The barrel product continues to be marletetiisively by Alere in the U
only.

We have developed our own sales and marketing theeats for the sales of our products in the U.Se Wéve appointed distribut
internationally for our lateral flow HIV tests. ©largest markets outside the U.S. for our latfoal HIV rapid tests are certain countries
Africa, Asia, and South America, as well as Mexi¢nternationally, most of the demand for our pradus based on governmental and notr
governmental prevention and treatment efforts. e@ithis, these programs can and do often residrge orders, but also can result in per
of relatively lower demand, based on the variatiassociated with this kind of demand.




OEM DPP® Products

Oswaldo Cruz Foundation OEM DPP® Agreements

During 20082010 we signed five separate agreements, each ichvidtitled and constitutes a "Technology Tran#greement", with th
Oswaldo Cruz Foundation (FIOCRUZ) in Brazil. FIOQR includes the Institute of Technology on Immuradbgicals/Bio- Manguinhos
which is the FIOCRUZ unit that produces vaccined diagnostic kits. FIOCRUZ and Bidanguinhos are referred to herein interchange:
Each of the five agreements relates to a diffespeicific product or group of products based on BBP® technology. FIOCRUZ is tl
leading public health organization in Brazil, amndsi affiliated with Brazil's Ministry of Health, kch is its principal client. It has extens
research, educational and manufacturing facilfoesirugs and vaccines, as well as for diagnosticpcts.

Each of the agreements grants to FIOCRUZ the rightt,not the obligation, to earn the right to resjug technology transfer to be abli
license and manufacture that product on its oWMQCORUZ is not required to earn this right, buttifiesires to do so, then it needs to purch
stated amount of the product as set forth in tepaetive agreement for that product.

During 2010 and 2011, all of the initial producsntemplated under the five agreements were apprémednarketing by the applicat
regulatory agencies in Brazil. The agreements éetmthe Company and FIOCRUZ are unique exampléschhology transfer collaboratic
between a private sector rapid test manufacturéragpublic health organization. The five prodwagegories for which FIOCRUZ can eal
separate right to request a technology transfethfatr product only are: DPP@roducts for HIV screening, HIV Confirmatory, Leishniasis
Leptospirosis and Syphilis. Each technology transdnd the provision by Chembio of the informatéomd training that is required for this
occur, will occur only if FIOCRUZ purchases from €hbio the amount of that product that is specifiethe respective agreement for -
product. The actual amount of purchases for eastiyst is totally at the discretion and option ¥®OERUZ and may be more or less than
amount needed to qualify for a technology transfer.

More specifically, the five agreements, althougbesate and independent of one another, are staligtsimilar according to the following:

Each agreement states: "the object of this Agee is for the Transfer of Technology from Chemtuidio-Manguinhos, the licen
by Chembio to Biavlanguinhos [of] the Chembio Patents applied or @gmin Brazil or other Mercosur countries for tleem of the
patents and the transfer of all the technical imimtion related to the DPP technology and the psteobtain the product by |
DPP® technology. This Agreement contemplates tiensific and technological co-operation betweere@hbio and Biovlanguinho
for such activities so that E-Manguinhos will be able to manufacture the Produ@&razil."

Each agreement provides that Chembio will sugpde of charge to Biddanguinhos prototypes of the product to demons
performance characteristics that are necessargvaiuation by the Brazilian Ministry of Health afat registration with ANVISA,
ANVISA is the Agencia Nacional de Vigliancia Samiga or the National Sanitary Vigilance Agency. eThumber of prototyp
ranges from 15,000 to 45,000 in the various agressr

Each agreement provides that the prototypes willutiéized both for a performance study that folloasprotocol prepared a
approved by Bidvlanguinhos and the Brazilian Ministry of Health,daalso will be used for studies in Brazil for thegistratiol
procedures at ANVISA. Biddanguinhos will then apply to ANVISA to registertiproduct. Within 120 days of the registrationh®
product with ANVISA, BioManguinhos will make an advance technology transégmment to Chembio (the "Advance Payment'
an amount specified in that particular agreemehl. five of the Advance Payments provided for lretagreements were made in 2
and 2011

At such time, if any, that the product for atjgalar agreement has been successfully registeigdANVISA, then BioManguinho
has the right to qualify for the full technologyamisfer for that product by purchasing the amounthefproduct, and at the pri
specified in the agreemer

Bio-Manguinhos is not required to purchase any amofiahy product. For each product, it only needpuochase that product,
the amount specified in the agreement, only ifeices to be able to complete the technology tesmbcess in order to manufact
and sell that product on its own. Chembio doeshae® recourse against Bio-Manguinhos if Blanguinhos does not purchase
qualifying purchase amount of any product. In ttete, Chembio can only suspend further phasdgdethnology transfer, atter
to renegotiate the agreement, and/or retain anyuatagreviously paid by Bio-Manguinhos. Chembiarwat force BioManguinho
to purchase any amount of any prod

As a result of the terms of these agreementsMBinguinhos has never been required to, and is ot nequired to, purchase ¢
amount of any of the produc

As of December 31, 2014 E-Manguinhos had earned the status described beldwespect to each of the five produt

1. With respect to Chembio's DPP® HIV1/2 Screen, BioManguinhos had qualified to request the technotogysfer. It he
requested, and has received, the technology tramdfamation. BioManguinhos purchased $880,175 of this produ
2011, and $4,990,840 in 2012, all of which apptiedhe qualifying amount to obtain the right to teehnology transfer (tl
"Qualifying Amount") for this product. In 2013, 8Manguinhos made $291,235 of purchases that apidte Qualifyin
Amount for this product, and $3,320,010 of purckaseexcess of the Qualifying Amount. In 2014, Blanguinhos mac
$4,799,250 of purchases in excess of the Qualiffimmpunt.

2. With respect to Chembio's Canine Leishmanig Bis-Manguinhos had qualified to request the technolwggsfer and di
so request. Submission of the technology transflarmation is in process at this time. BuWanguinhos purchas
$2,000,817 of this product in 2011 and $99,183h&f product in 2012 that applied to the Qualifyidimount. In additior
Bio-Manguinhos made purchases in excess of the Quajiffimount equal to $1,314,117 in 2012, $1,736,70Q013 an
$2,394,000 in 201¢



a. With respect to the three variations of CherstiPP®Syphilis test, all of which are covered by a singggeemen
Bio-Manguinhos had qualified to request the technotoggysfer with respect to Trep only, and intendddaso in th
near future. BidMlanguinhos purchased $1,194,250 of this produ20itl and $165,750 of this product in 2012
applied to the Qualifying Amount. In addition, Bidanguinhos made purchases in excess of the Quajixmoun
equal to $2,817,750 in 2012, $646,340 in 2013 &hf1¥,891 in 2014

b. With respect to the two variations of ChembiSsreen & Confirm Test, BiManguinhos had not made :
purchases in 2011, 2012, 2013 or 2014, and therdfad not qualified to request the technology fearfsr either o
them. In order to qualify, Bidbdanguinhos would need to purchase an addition&d #fllion of one of these tes
and an additional $2.08 million of the other t

With respect to Chembio's DPP® Confirmatoryt, tBso-Manguinhos had not qualified to request the teabgltransfer
Bio-Manguinhos made purchases of $560,000 of this ptadu2011, $819,000 in 2012, $390,000 in 2013 $8€0,000 il
2014, all of which applied to the Qualifying Amounih order to qualify for the technology transfBip-Manguinhos woul
need to purchase an additional $195,000 of thidymb

With respect to Chembio's DPP® Leptospirosss, tBioManguinhos had not qualified to request the teampltransfer
Bio-Manguinhos made purchases of $135,000 of ttadyrt in 2011, and it made -purchases in 2012, $45,000 in 2013
it made -0- purchases in 2014. In order to qudhfiythe technology transfer, Bidanguinhos would need to purchase
additional $225,000 of this produ




As stated above, Biglanguinhos is not obligated to make any purchagdter the specified level of sales for a partieydaoduct ha
been achieved, FIOCRUZ may request that the teogalor that product be transferred to FIOCRUZ tbge with an exclusi
license to produce and sell that product in a @efiterritory. The license is to provide that Ch@aill receive a royalty on all sale
Chembio does not release the amount of this roymtause it could have an adverse effect on néigoisaconcerning royalties
potential transactions with other parti

All the agreements expire five years after the dditine technology transfer. If terminated earbgrdefault of FIOCRUZ, FIOCRLU
must stop all activity; if terminated earlier byfaelt of Chembio, or if terminated by natural expiFIOCRUZ can continue to prodt
and commercialize the product without paying rdgal

Other OEM And License Agreements Related to DPP® Tahnology

In addition to our agreement with FIOCRUZ, we hawtered into certain other OEM and License agre&meith other parties with respec
certain products that we have developed based nBBB®technology. In 2008 we entered into a product ibgraent and license agreem
with Bio-Rad Laboratories, Inc. (BiRad), a leading multinational life sciences compdaorthe first ever POC test for the confirmatimiHIV
(reflex test used after initial screening test(s} positive). This product utilizes our DPR@&chnology, capitalizing on its multiplexi
advantages, and is much simpler to perform thaneiipgcy confirmatory platform, known as westernt bighich requires a substantial amc
of technical training and hands time and which is more expensive to manufacane distribute. This product was CE marked and
launched by Bio-Rad in the second quarter of 2@1Burope under their Geenius® brand; and an FDA Rigproval was received in 2014.

In 2013 we entered into collaboration with Labtasprivate company in Brazil, for the distributioha number of products in Brazil that wo
be cobranded with Labtest and Chembio trademarks. Utlderagreement, upon request from Labtest, forcwithere is no requireme
Chembio will sell the appropriate DPP® componeatsabtest for further manufacture and assemblyraz iR

In February 2014, Chembio entered into a technotogyysfer and license agreement with RVR DiagnssibN BHD ("RVR"), a privately-
held company in Malaysia. The agreement suppor&s1®ip's strategy of establishing a market presenéeia, in collaboration with RVR |
a licensee, distributor, and contract manufacturee agreements grant exclusive distribution right®VR in certain countries in the reg
and enable RVR to manufacture Chembio's DPP® HR/Adsay and DPP® HI\&yphilis Assay and potentially other products deged b
Chembio incorporating its patented DPP® technoleggh as Dengue, as indicated in the DPP® Techypddgevelopment section.

Our Rapid Test Technologies

All of our commercially available current produ@mploy either inicensed lateral flow technology or our own patenBual Path Platfor
(DPP®) technology. Both lateral flow technology aB#P® allow the development of accurate, low cestsy-to-perform, singlase
diagnostic tests for rapid, visual detection ofcifie antigenantibody complexes on a test strip. These formpetside a test that is simj
(requires neither electricity nor expensive equiptrer test execution or reading, nor skilled persal for test interpretation), rapid (turnaro
time approximately 15 minutes), safe (minimizesdiig of potentially infected specimens), non-inivas(requires 520 micro liters of whol
blood easily obtained with a finger prick, or attatively, serum or plasma), stable (24 months amréeemperature storage in the case o
HIV tests), and highly reproducible.

We believe that products developed using DR&nology can provide superior diagnostic perfaroeaas compared with products that
lateral flow technology. The reason for this iattbne of the major differences between the twtfquias is that in DPP@amples are allow:
to incubate with the target analyte in the testezbefore introduction of the labeling reagent/cgape, whereas in lateral flow, samples
combined with the labeling reagent to form a compdefore coming in contact with the target analyfée believe that this complex ¢
compromise test performance. Also, because otisage in DPP®f a separately connected sample strip, the coatrdldelivery of samp
material is substantially improved. This featuseciitical in the development of multiplex tests,well as tests that involve viscous sar
material (such as oral fluid) that can be impedéémforced to combine with labeling reagents befoigration on the test strip to the test 2
area.

Multiplexing is significantly improved as a resulf the design of DPP@&nd this provides a significant advantage. Fomata, the HI\
confirmatory test we developed for BiRad that is described above employs six differeatkers related to various epitopes of the

antigen. We have a number of other products irelkdgment, including those being developed in sp@tsdevelopment programs that invc
the use of multiple (e.g. eight) test bands. Altjioall of these products could be visually read,cae also use handheld and desktop re
with our DPP® products to objectively measure, dg@gnrecord and report DPP®&st results. Certain of the products we have canalk
developing incorporate some of these readers, &ndrevdeveloping other products that may be us#dawiwill require use of a reader. Al
platforms can incorporate labeling reagents thahotbe visually read except by employing a reaslech as fluorescence, though no proc
are currently utilizing such reagents.

We are pursuing additional capabilities and tedtgies that will complement our current producitfmio and business strategy. This acti
includes pursing development, license or acquisiibdiagnostic technologies that complement ousting platforms, proprietary biomark:
that can result in new product applications of existing platforms, and new platforms that wouldhgdement our commercial strategy.

Target Markets
Rapid HIV Test:

A large percentage of individuals that are HIV giwsiworldwide are unaware of their status. P&the reason for this is that even those
do get tested in public health settings will oftest return or call back for their test results wisamples have to be sent out to a labor.
which can take up to several days to process.ifidieased availability, greater efficacy and reducests for antretroviral treatments (ARV
for HIV has increased the demand for testing, asstigma associated with the disease is lessenddha ability to resume normal activitie
substantially improved, providing a positive messag those potentially infected. The impact thadid HIV testing has had on preven



efforts has in turn increased the demand for tgsparticularly by public health programs worldwiaeéhich have also become more effectiv
reducing the number of annual new infections in ynénit by no means, all high prevalence regions.

Despite less attention to HIV by the media as caegbavith prior years, there are still approximat®0;000 new diagnoses of HIV infectior
the United States each year, according to the GIIIC estimates that approximately 1.1 million indivals in the U.S. are living with HI
with an estimated 1 of 6 of these U.S. individualsalmost 16%, unaware that they are infecteds thansmissions from these 250,000 infe
people that are reported to account for the mgjofiall new infections per year. Part of the mafor this is that even those individuals tha
get tested in public health settings will often return or call back for their test results if thielood samples have to be sent out to and tés
a laboratory and then reported back, a processhwdan take up to several days to complete. Makioe people aware of their HIV statu
the point-of-care reduces the number of HIV trassions.

Rapid HIV testing in the United States has now tlged into an estimated 7.5 million test markearataverage price of $10, or a total of
million. Public health programs, currently fundeg drants distributed to states by the CDC, accéamén estimated 45% of the market, v
hospitals (40%) and doctor's offices (15%) compgshe other estimated market segments. Chentatelsl flow rapid HIV tests, the cassi
and barrel, together represent approximately a 8b&te of this market. Orasure Technologies, which was the first FDAapproved rapi
HIV test, has lost nearly half its market shareyrestimated to be approximately 55%. Trinity Badtédhas an estimated 15% market share
Biolytical Laboratories, Medmira and Bio-Rad shdre remaining 5%.
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In 2006, the outlook for HIV testing was given g tioost with the release by the CDC of new recontagons for HIV testing. These n
CDC recommendations were/are that an HIV test shbelgiven as a routine test like any other fopatients between 13 and 64 years of
regardless of risk, with an opt-out screening aptémd focused testing procedural (pre- and pestt-counseling) guidelines. Though
mandatory, gradual adoption in whole or in partlef 2006 CDC recommendations by a number of staianues to have an increas
impact. Finally, in 2013, the United States PréwvenServices Task Force ("USPSTF") fully embradkdse CDC routine HIV testil
recommendations. This USPSTF recommendation, wiias given an A grade under their recommendatiauigg system based on
benefits of this practice and the nearly 600,000%¥elated deaths in the United States, requiresirémee coverage under the Afforde
Care Act (the "ACA") as a preventive screening teishout any copayment required. We expect this to result in amease in HIV testing
the United States in the coming years, which wélelwill include point-ofeare HIV testing utilizing the Company's productdthough a
stated above currently most public health testmghe United States is funded by grants allocatedigh prevalence areas by the CDC
believe this will shift to an insurandanded model under the ACA in the years to comereiasing the amount of testing done in doctorisex
and community health centers.

In the international marketwe sell our products directly and through distrdratto large screening programs overseen by messtif healt
and NGOs, most but not all of which are funded dngé bi-lateral and multateral AIDS relief programs, the largest of whishthe U.S
President's Emergency Plan for AIDS Relief (PEPFAE}tablished by President George Bush asyaab-$15 billion program in 20C
PEPFAR was reauthorized in 2008 and again in 2002012 PEPFAR directly supported HIV testing @odnseling for more than 11 milli
pregnant women, and testing and counseling for rticae 49 million people overall. The U.S. is alke first and largest donor to the Glic
Fund to Fight AIDS, Tuberculosis and Malaria. Téeddhe U.S. has provided more than $7 billiorhi Fund.

In December 2013 President Obama signed into l@nPBPFAR Stewardship and Oversight Act, which ésriost recent reauthorizatior
PEPFAR. However, unlike the 2008 PEPFAR authodmatiwhich authorized approximately $45 billion, thew law doesn't authorize
specific dollar amount for funding. Neverthelesisiwidely anticipated that PEPFAR will continueénjoy strong funding; the FY14 bud
had $6 billion for global HIV/AIDS assistance, inding $4 billion for PEPFAR.

Chembio, with its four U.S.-manufactured rapid HBéts, all of which are FDApproved, is recognized as a reputable and deplensiaplie
of high quality products that are available at oe@bly competitive prices. As a result, certairof products have been selected in the te
protocols in countries (national algorithms) thet &arge beneficiaries of PEPFAR and the Globald-u#xs mentioned above, these progr
can and do often result in large orders, but adsoresult in periods of relatively lower demandsdzhon the variations associated with this
of demand. Also, even though the United Stategager is funding the largest share of global Allefef, U.S. companies do not receive
preference for these procurements, and therefost ommpete with foreign suppliers that manufactompetitive products with lower cos
including those related to quality, regulatorygifgctual property, and costs of manufacturing.

Oral fluid testing is an established alternative to bidesting for diagnostic tests, including HIV testsis also often patient preferr
providing a more comfortable, less invasive téstcertain public health clinics, staffs choose twhandle blood specimens; thus, oral sa
collection provides a viable alternative. The mwstl-established market for oral fluid HIV testing istlinited States. Given the prem
price required for an oral fluid test as compardthwlood tests, the higher volume programs wilt specify an oral fluid test. Howev
segments of these programs may want to have arlwichtesting option, and certain programs thaténgreater resources may also choo
incorporate oral fluid testing into the testing foeml.

There is also now an over-the-counter market for s#If-testing in the United States. Orasure Technoldgiesreceived FDA approval for
over-the-counter (self-testing) version of its poensly professional-marketpproved (test performed on an individual by a theahre
professional) HIV test. The FDA approval was geahin July 2012, and Orasure has been investinglizeéa developing this market. Initi
results after over two years of marketing are welow expectations. The costs for such overethaater approval, including primarily 1
associated clinical trials, are estimated to beeast $5 million and they may take two to threergea complete, not to mention the cos
distribution. Orasure's initial results are nonhgacing of a large market, although this posdipiliemains. If it appears that there is
attractive market, we believe we are very well fposed to participate in this market.

Rapid HI\+Syphilis Test

There are significant risks relating to transmissad Syphilis from a pregnant mother to child, jast there are for transmission of H
Therefore we believe there is a significant oppatiuto improve prevention efforts in pregnant natlo child transmission testing progr:
(PMTCT) that are currently not doing any or neahough testing for syphilis even though they aséirtg for HIV. In the United States,
believe there is also a significant need for thiedpict in some of the highest HIV prevalence pojute, such as among men that have sex
men (MSM), as data show high degrees of HIV anch8iigpeo-infection in this segment of the populatio

Marketing Strategy:
Our marketing strategy is to:

0 Market our DPP® HIV 1/2 Assay, HIV 1/2 STAT-PAK&ssay and future DPP® based new products in théntisigh our
internal sales and marketing organization and sedlechannel partners (e.g., McKesson/PSS, Fishelthdare, Henry
Schein, etc.). Chembio, following the June 20Xmieation of the STAT-PAK® agreement with Alereedonot have to
share any portion of the net sales proceeds forTSFAK® with Alere, except for the 8.5% lateral flawyalties which was
applicable to the sales of the products only wrelbruary 2015 when the applicable lateral flow paté Alere's expired.

This decision resulted in incurring expenditurdatesl to hiring sales representatives, establishgrgements and associated
discounts with distributors, incurring advertisimgd marketing expenditures, warehousing, custosreice and technical
support. If Alere's new competitive product is iadesuccessful, our ability to retain a significahére of the market that has
been established for our products may be enhancedrhaving control of the marketing of our proticather than having
Alere sell our products. We are leveraging the saates force for U.S. Sales of C® HIV 1/2 Assay.



o We will support, review and assess the marketirdydistribution efforts of our rapid HIV barrel tdsg Alere in the U.S
o Outside the U.S., we will market our products prigethrough commercial collaborators and distribatpartners

o Leverage our DPP®@tellectual property and product development arahufiacturing experience to continue creating
collaborations where Chembio can be the excluseseldpment and manufacturing partner supportindifgamarketin
organizations

o Establish strong distribution relationships dor Chembidsranded products in the U.S and abroad, and estiadbldirect sals
and marketing organization that is focused in thklip health market segment, and that utilizesrithistors for other mark
segments, primarily the acute care market whidetteer with public health, are the main market sagsfor rapid HIV tes
in the United States. We believe that creatioa @hembio public health brand and marketing orgdiun is fundamental
the creation of shareholder value over the longt

During 2014 we increased our commercial activitied efforts in Africa, Europe and Asia for our Hidsts and product pipeline. We believe
these efforts will enable us to be more closelyagregl with opportunities to engage with customedspartners and to participate in the
national testing algorithms that are establishatiramised from time to time by countries that agedficiaries of PEPFAR, Global Fund and/or
other bilateral or multilateral donor funding. Earope, where there are a larger percentage offdbitive people unaware of their status than
in the United States, we believe that there ismaarging public health outreach opportunity, anddtere relatively few strong competitors that
are CE-marked. Most recently we have establisleedsales and marketing positions in the Comparsypport our efforts to increase brand
awareness globally and to lead our direct salestdff the U.S. market.
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Competition

The diagnostics industry is a multifion dollar international industry and is inteatyg competitive. Many of our competitors are sahgally
larger and have greater financial, research, matwiag and marketing resources.

Industry competition in general is based on thieong:
Scientific and technological capabilit
Proprietary knov-how;
The ability to develop and market products and gsses
The ability to obtain FDA or other required regolgtapprovals

The ability to manufacture products that meet aaplie FDA requirements, (i.e. FDA's Quality Systdétegulations) (se
Governmental Regulation sectiol

The ability to manufacture products c-effectively;
Access to adequate capit

The ability to attract and retain qualified perseland
The availability of patent protectio

We believe our scientific and technological capted and our proprietary know-how relating to aslicensed lateral flow technology raj
tests and to our proprietary know-how related to matented DPP®&echnology, particularly for the development anchofacture of tests f
the detection of antibodies to infectious diseaseh as HIV, are very strong.

Our ability to develop and market other productsnisiarge measure dependent on our having addltimsources and/or collaborat
relationships. Some of our product developmentreffhave been funded on a project or milestonés.b&¥e believe that our proprieti
know-how in lateral flow technology and in our DPR®hnology has been instrumental in our obtainiregdollaborations we have and thai
continue to pursue. We believe that the patenteption that we have with our DPR@chnology enhances our ability to develop r
profitable collaborative relationships and to liserout the technology. However there are a nurabeompetitive technologies used ani
seeking to be used in point-ofre settings. These technologies may be baséuirannoassay principles such as the Company's predu
other technologies, such as molecular-based tecbigsl.

We launched our FDA-approved DPR8V 1/2 Assay, which test also can be used eithal ftuid or blood samples, in the U.S. market ez
a Chembio brand in the fourth quarter of 2014. sOra Technologies manufactures the only other yapia fluid HIV test that is FDA-
approved, and Orasure has enjoyed this positiorap@roximately 10 years. Orasure has lost a sagmt share of this market as cer
customers have been indifferent to using bloodral ftuid samples, because the blood tests, innlwdhose made/marketed by Chembio
marketed by Alere, are priced lower and/or areram@re accurate than the performance of Orasuretiupt on blood samples. Orasure
primarily retained those customers for whom the fhuad sample feature is a strong preference, thiglis an estimated $35 million business
Orasure. Although we believe we can capture a inghui portion of this Orasure market share, we asticipate that Orasure will defend
business aggressively.

In 2006 Alere acquired a division from Abbott Diagtic located in Japan that manufactured and megketrapid HIV test product line cal
Determine®. The Determine®rmat is was developed for developing world anmhote settings and, central to the needs of thakehathe
format is essentially a test strip that is integdatinto a thin foil wrapper that, when opened, tineerside of the wrapper serves as the
surface for applying the blood sample and perfognire test. This design reduces costs and shippéights and volumes and is an advan
for the developing world markets it has servedm8&mf the disadvantages of the platform are theuanof blood sample that is needed
microliters versus 2.5, 5 and 10 for our lateraiMlbarrel, lateral flow cassette, and DPp®ducts respectively), the open nature of tht
surface, and the absence of a true control thigrdiftiates biological from other kinds of samples.

The so-called "3'generation” version of this product has been matkétr many years and is the leading rapid HIV teat is used in a lar
majority of the national algorithms of countrienfied by PEPFAR and the Global Fund, as well as nadimgr countries in the world. TI
product is not FDA-approved though it is CE-mark€de newest Determine®IV version, which was developed and manufactutetiiare's
subsidiary in Israel, Orgenics, is the so-called"@eneration" version Determine@st. According to its claims, this product deteidty
antibodies and P24 HIV antigens. Since the P24antis known to occur in HIpositive individuals' blood samples before antilesdilo
based on its performance claims, tHegéneration Determine®st is therefore able to detect HIV infectionlieathan tests that solely rely
antibody detection. Chembio's tests, as well asfathe other currently FDApproved rapid HIV tests, only detect antibodidhere ar
however laboratory tests that are FDA-approvedahat'4" generation" tests, but they are of course neithygidrnor point-of-care.
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The initial "4 generation" Alere Determine® rapid test product thas also CEnarked and that Alere launched internationally sgmar
ago has not been successfully commercialized td#s¢ of our knowledge and at least certain phobtisstudies were not favorable for
product. However the #generation product that is now FDabproved was apparently modified as compared tinttial international versic
of it, and it may perform more satisfactorily. fdereceived FDA approval of this modified produttAugust 2013 and CLIAvaiver for it ir
the fourth quarter of 2014. We believe the prica thlere is charging for this product may be sufiistdly higher than our and our competit
antibody tests, as the antigen claim avails sonséomers of an additional reimbursement code. Ma@ethere is support by a number of
opinion leaders for the public health value of sdti generation tests, and if Alere is able to eastully launch this product, it represen
significant competitive threat to Chembio as wslt@aeach of the other rapid HIV test manufactuf@rasure and Trinity primarily).

During 2011 Biolytical, Inc. of Vancouver, Canadzeived FDA approval and in 2012 received CLIA veaigf a flowthrough rapid HIV te:
called "INSTI". The technology used in the INS&st, flowthrough, is older than lateral flow, and it reqaifeandling of multiple compone
(3 vials of solution) to perform the test in mulésteps. However, these steps can be accomplisiess than ten minutes, and the actua
results occur in only one minute after those stepes completed. Therefore samplerésult time is shorter than any of the compet
products. There are settings where that redudedlitest time, despite the multiple steps requiredy be a distinct advantage, and we be
Biolytical has made some progress in penetratimgicepublic health markets.

Although we have no specific knowledge of any ott@mmpetitors' products that are a competitive thit@@ur products, or that will render «
products obsolete, if we fail to maintain and erdeaour competitive position or fail to introducewng@roducts and product features,
customers may decide to use the products develmpedr competitors, which could result in a lossexfenues and cash flow.

Research and Development

During 2014 and 2013, we spent $4.8 million and8$’illion, respectively, on research and developméncluding regulator
activities). These expenses were in part undeemrivy funding from R&D and milestones revenue$h# million in 2014 and $2.0 million
2013. All of our new product development actistiswvolve employment of our DPP&chnology. These activities include comple
development of certain products and making sigaifiprogress toward the development of additionadycts.

Employees

At December 31, 2014, we employed approximately d&@ple. We have entered into employment contraittsour Chief Executive Offici
and President, John J. Sperzel, our Chief Operddffgcer, Sharon Klugewicz, and our Chief Sciengel arechnology Officer, Jav
Esfandiari. Due to the specific knowledge and eepee of these executives regarding the induséghnology and market, the loss of
services of any one of them would likely have aeriat adverse effect on the Company. The contkéttt Ms. Klugewicz, has a term of t
years ending May 2015. The contract with Mr. Edfan has a term of three years ending March 204/ have obtained a key man insur:
policy for Mr. Esfandiari. The contract with Mrp&rzel provides that Mr. Sperzel will serve as@mgef Executive Officer and President of
Company through March 2017.

Governmental Regulation

The manufacturing and marketing of the Companyistieg and proposed diagnostic products are regdlay the United States Food and [
Administration ("FDA"), United States Department Africulture ("USDA"), certain state and local ag&s, and/or comparable regulai
bodies in other countries. These regulations goamost all aspects of development, production magketing, including product testil
authorizations to market, labeling, promotion, nfaoturing and record keeping. The Company's FDé& dB8DA regulated products reqt
some form of action by each agency before theylmmarketed in the United States, and, after agpron clearance, the Company
continue to comply with other FDA requirements &ggille to marketed products, e.g. Quality Systefos rhedical devices). Failure
comply with the FDA's requirements can lead to i§icent penalties, both before and after approvailearance.

There are two review procedures by which medicalags can receive FDA clearance or approval. Sproducts may qualify for clearar
under Section 510(k) of the Federal Food, Drug@osmetic Act, in which the manufacturer providggemarket notification that it intends
begin marketing the product, and shows that thdymbis substantially equivalent to another legailgrketed product (i.e., that it has the s
intended use and is as safe and effective as Bylegarketed device and does not raise differemtstjons of safety and effectiveness). Ins
cases, the submission must include data from huwliinal studies. Marketing may commence whenRB& issues a clearance letter find
such substantial equivalence. FDA clearance oD&P® Syphilis Screen & Confirm test will be by meaf a 510(k) submission.

If the medical device does not qualify for the )Qfrocedure (either because it is not substapteduivalent to a legally marketed devici

because it is required by statute and the FDA'deémpnting regulations have an approved applicatitne) FDA must approve a Pkéarketinc

Application ("PMA") before marketing can begin. RM must demonstrate, among other matters, thantdical device provides a reason.

assurance of safety and effectiveness. A PMA agiidin is typically a complex submission, includithg results of nortinical and clinice

studies. Preparing a PMA application is a mucharepensive, detailed and time-consuming procesempared with a 510(K) pnearke

notification. The Company has approved PMAs fer tilvo rapid HIV tests now marketed by Alere MediaalClearview® Complete HIV 2-
and Clearview® HIV 1-2 STAT PAK®.

FDA approval of our DPP®1IV screening assay for use with oral fluid or ilogamples was achieved by means of a PMA applicafltne
Clinical Laboratory Improvement Act of 1988 ("CLIAprohibits laboratories from performing witro tests for the purpose of provid
information for the diagnosis, prevention or treatrnof any disease or impairment of, or the assestof, the health of human beings un
there is in effect for such laboratories a ceddiic issued by the United States Department of Reaid Human Services (via the FIL
applicable to the category of examination or pracedperformed. Although a certificate is not regdifor the Company, it considers
applicability of the requirements of CLIA in thegign and development of its products. The stayutiefinition of "laboratory” is very broa
and many of our customers are considered labsLIA @aiver will remove certain quality control aradher requirements that must be me
certain customers to use the Company's productstlaindis critical to the marketability of a produictto the poir-of-care diagnostic



market. The Company has received a CLIA waiverfch of the two lateral flow rapid HIV tests nowanketed in the U.S. The CLIA wai\
was granted by the FDA for HIV 1/2 STAT-PAK® on Namber 20, 2006 and for the Clearview@®mplete HIV 1/2 on October 22, 2007.
2008 the FDA revised its CLIA waiver requirementstBat an additional prospective trial need be cotell in order to demonstrate clin
utility by showing that the device is capable dantifying new infections when used by untrainedrsis®©ur DPP@HIV 1/2 test received CLI.
waiver in October of 2014.

In addition, the FDA regulates the export of mebivices that have not been approved for marketirige United States. The Federal Fi
Drug and Cosmetic Act contain general requireménmtsany medical device that may not be sold in theted States and is intended
export. Specifically, a medical device intended daport is not deemed to be adulterated or mistedrif the product: (1) complies with -
specifications of the foreign purchaser; (2) is motonflict with the laws of the country to whidghis intended for export; (3) is prominer
labeled on the outside of the shipping packageitlimintended for export; and (4) is not soldoffiered for sale in the United States. Howe
the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act does petraiexport of devices to any country in the woilldhe device complies with the laws
the importing country and has valid marketing atttagion in one of several "listed" countries unttex theory that these listed countries |
sophisticated mechanisms for the review of mediealces for safety and effectiveness.

The Company is also subject to regulations in fpraiountries governing products, human clinical$rand marketing, and may need to ol
approval or evaluations by international publicltreagencies, such as the World Health Organizaiimmrder to sell diagnostic products
certain countries. Approval processes vary fromnéy to country, and the length of time required &pproval or to obtain other clearar
may in some cases be longer than that requiretifiited States governmental approvals. On the dthad, the fact that our HIV diagno:
tests are of value in the AIDS epidemic may leaddime government process being expedited. Thateatgotentially adverse governmel
regulation affecting Chembio that might arise friuture legislative or administrative action canhetpredicted.

12




Environmental Laws

To date, we have not encountered any costs reladingmpliance with any environmental laws.

Intellectual Property
Intellectual Property Strateg

Our intellectual property strategy is to: (1) budur own intellectual property portfolio aroundr@PP®technology; (2) pursue licenses, tr
secrets and know-how within the area of rapid pofrtare testing, and (3) develop and acquire propyigtasitions to reagents and r
hardware platforms for the development and manufaaf rapid diagnostic tests.

The Company has obtained patent coverage on the®De¢hnology, including four U.S. patents, and paéntChina, Malaysia, Euras
Mexico, Singapore, Japan, Australia, Indonesia.edand the U.K. Additional patent applicationstioe DPP®technology are pending in 1
U.S., as well as in many foreign countries sucBi@il, Canada, the European Union, India, Israet| South Africa. Patents have also |
filed on extensions to the DPP® product line consegh as 4th generation assays. The four U.8n{saére as follows:

U.S. Patent Issued Expires Nature Type Description

No.

7,189,522  3/13/2007 3/11/2025 test device utility a test device for determining the presence
of a ligand in a samp

7,682,801 3/23/2010 3/11/2025 testdevice utility a test device and a method for determining

and methoc the presence of a ligand in a sar

7,879,597 2/1/2011 3/11/2025 test device utility a test device for determining multiple
ligands in a sampl

8,507,259 8/13/2013 3/11/2025 testdevice utility a test device for determining the
presence of a ligand in a sam

The Company also licenses a group of lateral fleghhology patents from Alere. Our lateral flow gwots, which are primarily our STAT-
PAK®, SURE CHECK®, and DIPSTICK®roduct lines, may incorporate methods that aremeld under one of the patents licensed -
Alere that we use in our tests. That U.S. Patém85,982 is also referred to as the Charlton patdnich patent expired on February 3, 2C
This patent describes a test device and methaal ¢otored particle immunoassay that determinepitbgence of an analyte in a sample.

The Company has also filed for patents and obtasoate patents in the U.S. for other inventions |sctis multiple host species veterinary
test, and patent applications for the other inwargtiare in various stages from being recently fdad not yet examined, to already exam
and allowed but not yet issued. The Company deddgtand strategically foreign files its patentpéipations based on a number of econc
and strategic factors related to the invention.

Trademarks

The Company has filed and obtained trademarks t®rproducts including DPP®, SURE CHECK® and STATK®A and also fc
the SampleTainer® used in certain DPP® productee DPP®trademark is also registered under the Europeawettion (ECT). Th
Company recently filed a trademark for STAT-VIEW®,market the barrel product in Europe.

Trade Secrets and Know-How

We believe that we have developed a substantiay bbdrade secrets and kndvow relating to the development and manufacturiatefa
flow and DPP®based diagnostic tests, including but not limitedthe sourcing and optimization of materials focksuests, and how
maximize sensitivity, speed-to-result, specificéyability and reproducibility. The Company posassproprietary knoweow to develop tes
for multiple conditions using colored latex. Owffier formulations enable extremely long shelf §vef our rapid HIV and other tests and
believe that this provides us with an important pefitive advantage.

Lateral Flow Technology and Reagent Licenses

As part of the agreements executed in 2006 witlreAfer the marketing of our HIV tests, we were geahnonexclusive licenses to certi
lateral flow patents for certain products manufestuand marketed by Chembio including but not kaito our lateral flow HIV tests. Ti
license allows us to produce, market and sell assaing lateral flow technologies specifically unting our STAT-PAK®, SURE CHECK®
DIPSTICK®, and veterinary product lines. Under this licengeeament, we pay royalties to Alere ranging from t898%2%, depending up
the country in which the products are sold. Evewugh the relevant patent has expired in most gthrésdictions, or were never issuec
markets where we have sold these products, our faetmee of the products in the United States hgsired that we pay royalties under
license, which has been a substantial expens2014 our lateral flow royalty expense to Alere 482,000, and since 2007 we have inctL
a total of $2.83 million in lateral flow royalty penses. As of February 3, 2015 this royalty expemas no longer payable as the applic
patent expires at that time.

Although we believe our DPP® outside of the scope of all lateral flow pateotsvhich we are aware, we consult with patent celinan:
seek licenses and/or redesigns of products thdielveve to be in the best interests of the Comgard/our stockholders. Because of the «
and other negative consequences of -consuming patent litigation, we often attempt tdaib a license on reasonable terms. Nevertr



there is no assurance that the Alere lateral flatempts we have licensed will not be challengedhat dther patents containing claims releva
the Company's lateral flow or DPR®oducts will not be granted to third parties amat ficenses to such patents, will be availablesmsonabl
terms, if any. In the past Alere has aggressiegiforced its lateral flow intellectual propertytrelugh some of the main patents will ex
within the next couple of years and we are not avadrany patent enforcement litigation that is dngaowith respect to the Alere lateral fl:
intellectual property.

Regardless, the DPPt®chnology provides us with our own intellectuabperty. We believe it provides us with a freedanoperate, and tr
it also enables tests to be developed with impreersitivity as compared with comparable testsateral flow platforms. The Company |
signed and anticipates signing new developmenept®jbased upon the DPR&hnology that will provide new manufacturing andrketing
opportunities. We have filed other patent appiie that we believe will strengthen the DPRiellectual property and have also filed
patent protection for certain other point-of-cagehinologies or applications thereof.

The peptides used in our rapid HIV tests were pgatehy Adaltis Inc. and were licensed to us und&®-gear norexclusive license agreem
dated August 30, 2002. However, in connection wittaltis' bankruptcy, during the third quarter @02 we bought out all of our remain
obligations under that agreement. We also hawendied the antigens used in other tests includimgSgphilis, Tuberculosis, Leptospiro:
Leishmaniasis and Chagas tests, and we may ertier btense agreements. In prior years we condlliense agreements relatec
intellectual property rights owned by the Unitedt8$ associated with HIV- 1, and during the finsarger of 2008 we entered into a didense
agreement for HIV-2 with Bio-Rad Laboratories N.the exclusive licensee of the Pasteur Institii&s2 intellectual property estate.
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Corporate History

On May 5, 2004, we completed a merger with Traddodutions, Inc. through which Chembio Diagnosticstens Inc. became our wholly-
owned subsidiary, and through which the manageraendt business of Chembio Diagnostic Systems Incarbecour management ¢
business. As part of this transaction, we charmeadname to Chembio Diagnostics, Inc. In 2003,had sold our prior business, and
result, we had no specific business immediatelyrpa the merger.

Since the formation of Chembio Diagnostic Systents in 1985, it has been involved in developingnafacturing, selling and distributing in-
vitro diagnostic tests, including rapid tests begig in 1995, for a number of conditions in humand animals.

On March 12, 2004, we implemented a 1-for-17 revegit of our common stock. All references irsthiorm 10K to shares of our comm
stock have been adjusted to reflect this reverbe sp

On May 30, 2012, the Company effected a 18aeverse split of its common stock. This was dtnallow the Company to move to
NASDAQ trading market from the OTCQB market, whimtcurred on June 7, 2012. As a result of the sspdik, the outstanding 63,967,2
common shares were reduced to 7,995,918 outstamdimgnon shares on May 30, 2012. The effect of nerse stock split also has b
retroactively reflected for all periods in thesesiincial statements.
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Glossary
AIDS
ALGORITHM

Acquired Immunodeficiency Syndrome. AIDS is caubgdhe Human Immunodeficiency Virus, HI
For rapid HIV testing this refers both to methodbootocol (in developing countries to date) fomgsrapid tests fro

(parallel or seriadifferent manufacturers in combination to screed aonfirm patients at the point-ck&re, and may also refer to

ANTIBODY

ANTIGEN
ANVISA
ARVs

CDC

CLIA waiver
DIAGNOSTIC
FIOCRUZ

FDA
19G

NGO

OoTC

PEPFAR

PMA
PROTOCOL
REAGENT
RETROVIRAL

SENSITIVITY

SPECIFICITY

USDA
WHO

specific tests that have been selected by an agamayinistry of health to be used in this way. argllel algorithn
uses two screening tests from different manufacsuaed a tidsreaker test only if there is a discrepancy betwtbe
screening tests results. A serial algorithm onlgsua second confirmatory test if there is a pasitesult from th
screening test, meaning that the number of conforgdests used is equal to the positivity rat¢hia testing venue.
tie-breaker test resolves discrepancies between teersand the confirmatory te

A protein which is a natural part of the human inmasystem produced by specialized cells to nemgralntigen:
including viruses and bacteria that invade the bdégch antibody producing cell manufactures a umigntibody thi
is directed against, binds to and eliminates oné,aly one, specific type of antige

Any substance which, upon entering the body, stiesl the immune system leading to the formatioantibodies
Among the more common antigens are bacteria, mltexins, and viruse

The National Health Surveillance Agency of Br:

Anti-retroviral medications developed to fight All

United States Centers for Disease Control and Rtere

Clinical Laboratory Improvement Act designation ttllows simple tests to be performed in pointafe setting
such as doctor's offices, w-in clinics and emergency roon

Pertaining to the determination of the nature arseaof a disease or condition. Also refers to eéatgor procedur
used in diagnosis to measure proteins in a clirsaaiple

The Oswaldo Cruz Foundation of Bra

United States Food and Drug Administrat

IgG or Immunoglobulin are proteins found in humdadd. This protein is called an "antibody" and isimportan
part of the body's defense against disease. Wheehdtly is attacked by harmful bacteria or virusegibodies hel
fight these invader:

Non-Governmental Organizatic

Ovel-the-Counter

The President's Emergency Plan for AIDS Re

Pre-Marketing Approval FDA approval classification for a medical devicattlis not substantially equivalent t
legally marketed device or is otherwise requiredstagute to have an approved application. Rapid tdsts must hay
an approved PMA application before marketing ofsagroduct can begi

A procedure pursuant to which an immunodiagnostit is performed on a particular specimen in otdebtain th
desired reactior

A chemical added to a sample under investigatioordter to cause a chemical or biological reactidvictv will enabl
measurement or identification of a target subste

A type of virus which contains the enzyme Reversanscriptase and is capable of transforming intectells tc
produce diseases in the host such as A

Refers to the ability of an assay to detect andsomeasmall quantities of a substance of interelse Greater tt
sensitivity, the smaller the quantity of the substaof interest the assay can detect. Also retetke likelihood c
detecting the antigen when prest

The ability of an assay to distinguish between lsiminaterials. The greater the specificity, thétdrean assay is
identifying a substance in the presence of substaatsimilar makeuy

U.S Department of Agricultur

World Health Organizatio
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider each of the followiistx factors and all of the other information prd&d in this Prospectus before purcha:s
our Common Stock. The risks described below arsethvee currently believe may materially affect us.idvestment in our Common St
involves a high degree of risk, and should be dsrsid only by persons who can afford the lossaif tntire investment.

Risks related to our industry, business and strategy

Because we may not be able to obtain or maintain ¢hnecessary regulatory approvals for some of our pducts, we may not genera
revenues in the amounts we expect, or in the amoumntecessary to continue our business. Our existingroducts as well as ou
manufacturing facility must meet quality standards and are subject to inspection by a number of domest regulatory and other
governmental and non-governmental agencies.

All of our proposed and existing products are sctbje regulation in the U.S. by the U.S. Food amdgoAdministration, the U.S. Departm
of Agriculture and/or other domestic and internadib governmental, public health agencies, reguatoodies or normgovernment:
organizations. In particular, we are subject tacistgovernmental controls on the development, rfeature, labeling, distribution a
marketing of our products. The process of obtginaquired approvals or clearances varies accotdirige nature of, and uses for, a spe
product. These processes can involve lengthy atalled laboratory testing, human or animal clihitcils, sampling activities, and otl
costly, timeeonsuming procedures. The submission of an apjglicéo a regulatory authority does not guarante the authority will grant
approval or clearance for that product. Each aitthmay impose its own requirements and can detagefuse to grant approval or cleara
even though a product has been approved in ancolertry.

The time taken to obtain approval or clearanceegagiepending on the nature of the application aag masult in the passage of a signific
period of time from the date of submission of tipplecation. Delays in the approval or clearancecpsses increase the risk that we will
succeed in introducing or selling the subject patsiuand we may determine to devote our resouocddferent products.

Changes in government regulations could increasecasts and could require us to undergo additidmigls or procedures, or could mak
impractical or impossible for us to market our prots for certain uses, in certain markets, orlat al

Changes in government regulations may adverseblctfiur financial condition and results of openmagidbecause we may have to ir
additional expenses if we are required to changeplement new testing, manufacturing and controcpdures. If we are required to de
resources to develop such new procedures, we miajave sufficient resources to devote to reseanchdevelopment, marketing, or ot
activities that are critical to our business.

We can manufacture and sell our products only itaply with regulations and quality standardsldithed by government agencies suc
the FDA and the USDA as well as by ngovernmental organizations such as the ISO and WW®@.have implemented a quality system
is intended to comply with applicable regulationslthough FDA approval is not required for the ewrpof our products, there are exf
regulations promulgated by the FDA that specificaéllate to the export of our products that requioenpliance with FDA quality syste
regulation ("QSRs") and that also require meetiagain documentary requirements regarding the ajpmaf the product in export marke
Although we believe that we meet the regulatorpdsads required for the export of our productsséheegulations could change in a ma
that could adversely impact our ability to expart products.
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Our products may not be able to compete with new dgnostic products or existing products developed byell-established competitors
which would negatively affect our business.

The diagnostic industry is focused on the testifhgiological specimens in a laboratory or at thénpof-care and is highly competitive ¢
rapidly changing. Some of our principal compesttanay have considerably greater financial, tecthr@nd marketing resources than we
Several companies produce diagnostic tests thatpetamdirectly with our testing product line, inclog but not limited to, Orasu
Technologies, Alere and Trinity Biotech. Furthermthese and/or other companies have or may haeigts incorporating molecular anc
other advanced technologies that over time coulécty compete with our testing product line. Aswn@roducts incorporating ne
technologies enter the market, our products magrnecbsolete or a competitor's products may be eféeetive or more effectively market
and sold.

There are competing products that could significarly reduce our U.S. sales of rapid HIV tests.

In 2006 Alere, Inc. acquired a division from AbbBliagnostic located in Japan that manufacturedraarketed a rapid HIV test product |
called Determine®. The Determinef®rmat was developed for the developing world aechate settings and, central to the needs o
market. The format is essentially a test strip thamtegrated into a thin foil wrapper. When opande underside of the wrapper serves a
test surface for applying the blood sample andogperiihg the test. This design reduces costs anpsty weights and volumes and provide
advantage for the developing world markets it sen@ome of the disadvantages of the platformheaimount of blood sample that is ne¢
(50 microliters versus 2.5, 5 and 10 for our ldtéoav barrel, lateral flow cassette, and DPB@®ducts respectively), the open nature of tht
surface, and the absence of a true control thigrdiitiates biological from other kinds of samples.

The so-called "3 generation" version of this product has been matkér many years and is the leading rapid HIV that is used in a lar
majority of the national algorithms of countriesfied by PEPFAR and the Global Fund, as well as nadimgr countries in the world. TI
product is not FDA-approved though it is CE markElde newest Determine®IV version, which was developed and manufacturgdlere's
subsidiary in Israel, Orgenics, is the so-called"@eneration" version Determine®@st. According to its claims, this product deteity
antibodies and P24 HIV antigens. Because the Pfdeanis known to occur in HI\Bositive individuals' blood samples before antilesdilo
the 4" generation Determine®st is designed to detect HIV infection earliearthiests that solely rely on antibody detectiorner@bio's test
as well as all of the other currently FDA-approvadid HIV tests, only detect antibodies. There laoevever laboratory tests that are FDA
approved that are "4th generation” tests, but #reyof course neither rapid nor point-of-care.

The initial "4 generation" Alere Determine®pid test product that was also CE marked andAlet launched internationally some ye
ago has not been successfully commercialized td#st of our knowledge and at least certain phbtisstudies were not favorable for
product. However the # generation product that is now FDapproved was apparently modified as compared tairtiial internationz
version, and it may perform more satisfactorilyler&® received FDA approval of this modified prodirctAugust 2013 and is seeking CL
waiver for it. Alere is also aggressively pursudmeyelopment of the market for this product in dpttion of receiving CLIA waiver. Althou
the product can now be sold to moderate compledtyified laboratories, there is very limited suppf the product thus far, and there is
assessment thus far concerning the actual perfaenainthis product in the hands of customers. Wiewxe the price that Alere is charging
this product is substantially higher than our asdiptests, as well as those of our competitorsh@asntigen claim provides some custome
an additional reimbursement code. Moreover thersupport by a number of key opinion leaders fer plublic health value of such -
generation tests, and if Alere is able to succdigsfaunch this product, it represents a significaompetitive threat to Chembio as well a
each of the other rapid HIV test manufacturers ¢0ra and Trinity primarily).

During 2011, Biolytical, Inc. of Vancouver, Canadgeived FDA approval and in 2012 received CLIAweaiof a flowthrough rapid HIV te:
called "INSTI". The flowthrough technology used in the INSTI test is olifhan lateral flow, and requires handling of mukltigbmponents
vials of solution) to perform the test in multipdeeps. However, these steps can be accomplishiedsrthan ten minutes, and the actua
results occur in only one minute after those steyes completed. Therefore samplerésult time is shorter than any of the compet
products. The product also has good performanaiensl There are settings where that reduced testltime, despite the multiple st
required, may be a distinct advantage, and we\meBgolytical has made some progress in penetratmtain public health markets.

Therefore, even though our lateral flow productgently enjoy a substantial market share in the. Wagid HIV test market, and we have
additional rapid HIV test, the DPPBIV 1/2 Assay, there a number of risks and unceties concerning current and anticipated develops
in this market. Although we have no specific knedgde of any other new product that is a significamhpetitive threat to our products, or-
will render our products obsolete, if we fail to imtain and enhance our competitive position or faiintroduce new products and proc
features, our customers may decide to use prodeetoped by our competitors, which could result inss of revenues and cash flow.

More generally, the point-of-care diagnostics irtdus undergoing rapid technological changes, \rigiguent introductions of new technology-
driven products and services. As new technololggzome introduced into the point-ocdire diagnostic testing market, we may be requio
commit considerable additional efforts, time ansbrgces to enhance our current product portfolidemelop new products. We may not t
the available time and resources to accomplish #rig many of our competitors have substantialBatar financial and other resource
invest in technological improvements. We may netable to effectively implement new technoladjjwen products and services or
successful in marketing these products and serticesr customers, which would materially harm operating results.

Although we own our DPP® patent, lateral flow teclugy is still a competitive platform to DPP@nd lateral flow technology has a lower
of manufacture than DPP® products. Although the ®BPlatform has shown improved sensitivity as compavét conventional lateral flo
platforms in a number of studies, several factarsngo the development and performance attribufgeraducts. Therefore the ability of «
products to successfully compete will depend oresswother factors including but not limited to cuaving a patented rapid test platf
technology, that differentiate DPP® from lateralil as well as from other diagnostic platform tedbgies.

We believe that our DPP® outside of the scope of currently issued patéamtthe field of lateral flow technology, therebyfaring the
possibility of greater freedom to operate. Howethwre can be no assurance that our patents goroducts incorporating the patent cla
will not be challenged at some time in the future.

Our use of third-party suppliers, some of which may constitute our e supply source, for certain important product canponents
presents a risk that could have negative consequerscfor other business.



A number of our components and critical raw materaxe provided by third-party suppliers, some dfialn may be solsource supplier
which impacts our ability to manufacture or selbquct if our suppliers cannot or will not delivéilose materials in a timely fashion, or at
due to an interruption in their supply, qualitytechnical issues, or any other reason. If this m;oue could incur substantial expense and
to be able to reestablish the appropriate quatibgt, regulatory and markatceptance circumstances needed for commerciabssic&Eve
with the needed expense and time, we may not leetalskestablish any or all of these factors. deence of any one or more of these fa
could prevent us from being able to commerciallyduce and market the affected product or products.

New developments in health treatments or new non-g@gnostic products may reduce or eliminate the demahfor our products.

The development and commercialization of producttside of the diagnostics industry could advers#fect sales of our products. |
example, the development of a safe and effectieeina to HIV or treatments for other diseases oddions that our products are designe
detect, could reduce, or eventually eliminate tbenand for our HIV or other diagnostic products aegllt in a loss of revenues.

We may not have sufficient resources to effectivelintroduce and market our products, which could maerially harm our operating
results.

Introducing and achieving market acceptance forrapid HIV tests and other new products will reguubstantial marketing efforts and
require us and/or our contract partners, salestagend/or distributors to make significant expé&ngis of time and money. In some instai
we will be significantly or totally reliant on thmarketing efforts and expenditures of our contpatners, sales agents, and/or distributor
they do not have or commit the expertise and ressuto effectively market the products that we nfaeture, our operating results will
materially harmed.
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The success of our business depends on, in additimthe market success of our products, our abilityo raise additional capital through
the sale of debt orequity or through borrowing, and we may not be abldgo raise capital or borrow funds on attractive tems and/or in
amounts necessary to continue our business, or dt.a

We were profitable for five consecutive years tlgio2013. Nevertheless, prior to 2009 we sustasigificant operating losses since 2(
and we incurred an operating loss for 2014. APefember 31, 2014, we had a stockholders' equi§16f7 million and a working capi
surplus of $12.4 million. We estimate that our resources are sufficient to fomdneeds through the end of 2015 and beyond. eftleales
we have already made, and may continue to makejfisant financial commitments to invest in our esmland marketing organizati
regulatory approvals, research and developmenidited) new technologies, and production capacitluting expanded facilities.

Our liquidity and cash requirements will dependseweral factors. These factors include (1) thellefeevenues; (2) the extent to whict
any, that revenue level improves operating castvsjo(3) our investments in research and developnfastlities, marketing, regulatc
approvals, and other investments it may deternumaake; and (4) our investment in capital equipnaert the extent to which it improves ¢
flow through operating efficiencies. There are seumances that we will generate positive cash faR2015 or, in the alternative, be succes
in raising sufficient capital to fund our needsaf015.

Our U.S. market sales are difficult to predict 0.8 given (i) the introduction of a new rapid tbgtAlere, and the uncertainty as to whethe
to what extent it will be successful in taking awsates of our products; and (ii) our early Juned2@tmination of the agreement with a tl
party for exclusive distribution of our cassetteduct in the U.S. As a result of this terminatiare expect to continue to experience hi
average revenue per unit, and a lower volume of §hfes, of the cassette product. Higher reveruemit is anticipated because we previo
sold the cassette product to the exclusive U.Sriloligor at a significantly lower price than thdgar at which the distributor resold the proc
to customers (including reellers and distributors) in the United States.wkheer this could occur only after any inventorytthiee exclusiv
U.S. distributor had accumulated of our product e@ssumed, which has taken several months. Iniaddih marketing this product direct
we are incurring substantial costs associated edtablishing a sales and marketing organization ianestablishing channel distributi
partners.

We believe that underlying demand for HIV rapidtites in the United States remains strong, and tivatrestoration of some of the fund
cutbacks from sequestration and the implementatiothe Affordable Care Act and of the United StaRrgventive Services Task Fa
recommendations will have a positive impact ondaeelopment of the market. Further, our produmgsgell established and relied upon t
large installed base of customers over many yeaus®in the U.S. global market, and we believe thia strong advantage. We also be
that our DPPGHIV 1/2 Assay for which CLIA waiver was obtained @ctober 2014, for use with oral fluid or bloodsngdes will be able 1
serve new customers that were previously unavailebus with our lateral flow blood tests. Howewdgvelopment of new customers with
product is costly and time-consuming.

We are attempting to increase international sdl@upproducts, and we have invested in additiseaburces in connection with this effort;
as we have experienced, the nature of internatiomsihess is such that it can be volatile fromqebtd period, depending on ordering patt
of donor-funded programs.

Furthermore, a number of factors can slow or pregales increases or cause sales decreases, targiatly increase the cost of achiev
sales assuming they are achieved. These factduslenc

economic conditions and the absence of or reduati@wvailable funding source
regulatory requirements and customs regulati

cultural and political difference

foreign exchange rates, currency fluctuations anifg;

dependence on and difficulties in managing intéonat distributors or representative
the creditworthiness of foreign entitie

difficulties in foreign accounts receivable coliect,

competition

pricing; and

any inability we may have in maintaining or incriegsrevenues

If we are unable to maintain or increase our reesniiom domestic and/or international customers,amerating results will be materia
harmed.

Although we have an ethics and anteéorruption policy in place, and have no knowledge roreason to know of any practices by oL
employees, agents or distributors that could be caetrued as in violation of such policies, our busirss includes sales of products
countries where there is or may be widespread corption.

Chembio has a policy in place prohibiting its enygles, distributors and agents from engaging inupbiousiness practices, including activi
prohibited by the United States Foreign CorruptcBras Act (the "FCPA"). Nevertheless, because wekwhrough independent sales ag
and distributors (and do not have any employeesibsidiaries) outside the United States, we ddawé control over the day-ttay activitie:
of such independent agents and distributors. Iitiadd in the donofunded markets in Africa where we sell our produthsre is significal
oversight from PEPFAR, the Global Fund, and adyiscommittees comprised of technical experts cornngrriihe development a
establishment of national testing protocols. Tihia process that includes an overall assessmenpaodduct which includes extensive prot
performance evaluations including five active dedleations and manufacturer's quality systems, disaseorice and delivery. In Brazil, wht
we have had a total of six product collaboratiofith WIOCRUZ, the programs through which our progductay be deployed are all fundec
the Brazilian Ministry of Health. Although FIOCRUZ affiliated with the Brazilian Ministry of Healtland is its sole customer, FIOCRU.



not the exclusive supplier for the Ministry of HiémalHowever, because each of our collaborationh WIDCRUZ incorporates a technolc
transfer aspect, we believe we have a competitivarstage versus other suppliers to the Brazilianidity of Health, assuming other aspec
our product offering through FIOCRUZ are otherwésenpetitive in comparison. We have no knowledgeeason to know of any activities
our employees, distributors or sales agents ofaatipns which could be in violation of the FCPAhalugh there can be no assurance of this.

We rely on trade secret laws and agreements with olkey employees and other third parties to protecbur proprietary rights, and we
cannot be sure that these laws or agreements adedely protect our rights.

We believe that factors such as the technologirdlcaeative skills of our personnel, strategictieteships, new product developments, freq
product enhancements and name recognition are tedsenour success. All of our management persbrame bound by nodisclosur
agreements. If personnel leave our employmensome cases we would be required to protect ouliénteal property rights pursuant
common law theories which may be less protectiaa fhrovisions of employment, non-competition or4aistlosure agreements.

We seek to protect our proprietary products undmiet secret and copyright laws, enter into licemgeements for various materials
methods employed in our products, and enter inttegjic relationships for distribution of the prothi These strategies afford only limi
protection. We currently have some foreign patessised, and we are seeking additional patent gtiotein several other foreign jurisdictic
for our DPP®technology. We have licenses to reagents (antigems peptides) used in several of our products pnodlucts unde
development. Despite our efforts to protect omppetary assets, and respect the intellectualgrtppights of others, we participate in sev
markets where intellectual property rights protatsi are of little or no value. This can place products and our company at a compet
disadvantage.
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Despite the efforts we make to protect our confiidérinformation, such as entering into confidelityaagreements in connection with n
business opportunities, unauthorized parties miyngat to copy aspects of our products or to olitformation that we regard as propriete
We may be required to expend substantial resouncasserting or protecting our intellectual propeights, or in defending suits relatec
intellectual property rights. Disputes regardintgllectual property rights could substantiallyajeproduct development or commercializa
activities because some of our available funds @dnd diverted away from our business activitiesspDtes regarding intellectual prope
rights might include state, federal or foreign dditigation as well as patent interference, patexgxamination, patent reissue, or tradei
opposition proceedings in the U.S. Patent and Tnzadle Office.

To facilitate development and commercializatioragdroprietary technology base, we may need to ml@ditional licenses to patents or other
proprietary rights from other parties. Obtainimglanaintaining these licenses, which may not bédabla, may require the payment of trpnt
fees and royalties. In addition, if we are unablebtain these types of licenses, our productldeneent and commercialization efforts may be
delayed or precluded.

Our continued growth depends on retaining our curreit key employees and attracting additional qualifid personnel, and we may nc
be able to do so.

Our success will depend to a large extent uporskilks and experience of our executive officersnagement and sales, marketing, opera
and scientific staff. We may not be able to attraicretain qualified employees in the future doettie intense competition for qualif
personnel among medical products businesses, g#ogreonsiderations, our ability to offer competticompensation, relocation packa
benefits, and/or other reasons.

If we are not able to attract and retain the neargsgersonnel to accomplish our business objectivesmay experience constraints that
adversely affect our ability to effectively manuia®, sell and market our products to meet the des\af our strategic partners in a tin
fashion, or to support internal research and dewvetmt programs. Although we believe we will be cassful in attracting and retain
qualified personnel, competition for experiencegrsiists and other personnel from numerous compaaie academic and other rese
institutions may limit our ability to do so on aptable terms.

We have entered into employment contracts with@huief Executive Officer, John Sperzel, our Chiefe@ing Officer, Sharon Klugewic
and our Chief Scientist & Technology Officer , Jauasfandiari. Due to the specific knowledge angdegience of these executives regar
the industry, technology and market, the loss ef gbrvices of any one of them could have a matadaérse effect on the Company.
contract with Mr. Sperzel has a term of three yesrding March 2017. The contract with Ms. Klugewias a term of two years ending N
2015. The contract with Mr. Esfandiari has a teifthree years ending March 2016. The Companyhé&asined a key man insurance policy
Mr. Esfandiari. The contract with Mr. Sperzel pdms that Mr. Sperzel will serve as the Chief ExeeuOfficer and as a Director of 1
Company through March 13, 2017.

We believe our success depends in part on the canied funding of and our ability to participate in large testing programs in the U.£
and worldwide. Funding of these and or similar prgrams may be reduced, discontinued and/or we may hbe able to participate for
other reasons.

We believe it to be in our best interests to megiuilly participate in large testing programs. Morer many of these programs are funde
governments and other donors, and there can besuraace that funding will not be reduced or cotepfediscontinued. Participation in thi
programs also requires alignment and engagemehnttiagtmany other participants in these prograntdiiéing the World Health Organizatic
U.S. Center for Disease Control, U.S. Agency faelnational Development, foreign governments arglrthgencies, nogevernment:
organizations, and HIV service organizations. & are unsuccessful in our efforts to participatthase programs, our operating results c
be materially harmed.

In December 2013 President Obama signed into l@WPBPFAR Stewardship and Oversight Act, which ésriost recent reauthorizatior
PEPFAR. However, unlike the 2008 PEPFAR authowmatiwhich authorized approximately $45 billion untling, the new law does |
authorize a specific dollar amount for funding. viigheless it is widely anticipated that PEPFARI wiintinue to enjoy strong funding; 1
FY14 budget has $6 billion for global HIV/AIDS asince, including $4 billion for PEPFAR.

To the extent that we are unable to collect our ostanding accounts receivable, our operating resultsould be materially harmed.

There may be circumstances and timing that requérdo accept payment terms, including delayed payrterms, from distributors
customers, which, if not satisfied, could causeritial losses.

We generally accept payment terms which requirgouship product before the contract price has be&id fully, and there also ¢
circumstances pursuant to which we may acceptdudilayed payment terms pursuant to which we magirtue to deliver product. To 1
extent that these circumstances result in sigmifieg@counts receivables and those accounts redesvate not paid on a timely basis, or are
paid at all, especially if concentrated in oneveo tustomers, we could suffer financial losses.

Although we were profitable from 2009 through 2013we incurred a net loss for 2014 and cannot be caih that we will be able tc
sustain profitability in the future.

From the inception of Chembio Diagnostic Systems, in 1985 through the period ended December @28 ,2we incurred net losses. We v
then profitable each year from 2009 through 2082014, we made substantial expenditures for salesmarketing, regulatory submissic
product development, production and warehouse dgpand other purposes, and we incurred a netadipgr loss. Our ability to rachiew
profitability in the future will primarily dependroour ability to increase sales of our productsedasn having made the aforementic
expenditures to reduce production and other casid,to successfully introduce new products and medthversions of our existing prodt
into the marketplace. If we are unable to increaserevenues at a rate that is sufficient to aahigrofitability, or adequately control &
reduce our operating costs, our operating resutddvbe materially harmed.
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To the extent that we are unable to obtain sufficiet product liability insurance or that we incur pro duct liability exposure that is not
covered by our product liability insurance, our opeating results could be materially harmed.

We may be held liable if any of our products, oy anoduct which is made with the use or incorparatf any of the technologies belongini
us, causes injury of any type or is found otherwissuitable during product testing, manufacturimgrketing, sale or use. We have obta
product liability insurance even though we haveemeeceived a product liability claim, and have gratly not seen product liability claims
screening tests that are accompanied by approglisttaimers. Nevertheless, in the event thegedaim, this insurance may not fully co
our potential liabilities. In addition, as we aigt to bring new products to market, we may neeth¢oease our product liability cover:
which could be a significant additional expensd tha may not be able to afford. If we are unablehtain sufficient insurance coverage &
acceptable cost to protect us, we may be forcedbdmdon efforts to commercialize our products osé¢hof our strategic partners, which wc
reduce our revenues.

Risksrelated to our Common Stock
Our Common Stock continues to be illiquid, so invasrs may not be able to sell as much stock as thesant at prevailing market prices.

The average daily trading volume of our Common Stoc the NASDAQ market was approximately 109,008rek per day over the th
months ended December 31, 2014 as compared witlxdprately 40,500 shares per day over the threetinscended December 31, 2013.
liquidity of our stock depends on several factarsluding but not limited to the financial resuttthe Company and overall market conditit
so it is not possible to predict whether this lesfiquidity will continue, be sustained, or dease.

Decreased trading volume in our stock would makadte difficult for investors to sell their shari@sthe public market at any given time
prevailing prices.

Our management and larger stockholders exercise sidicant control over the Company.

As of December 31, 2014, our named executive afjcdirectors and 5% stockholders beneficially cdvapproximately 23.1% of our voti
power, which includes two large investors that liersdly owns approximately 10.9% and 6.4%, resp@ty of the outstanding stock. For
foreseeable future, and assuming these ownershigmages continue to apply, to the extent thaehparties vote similarly, they may be
to exercise significant control over many matteguiring approval by the board of directors or stackholders. As a result, they may be
to:

control the composition of our board of directc
control our management and polici
determine the outcome of significant corporatedaations, including changes in control that mapéeeficial to stockholders; ai

act in each of their own interests, which may donflvith or differ from the interests of each othar the interests of the ott
stockholders
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our manufacturing, administrative offices and resledacilities are located in Medford, New Yorka addition we have warehousing spac
well as some additional administrative offices kechin Holbrook, New York. We lease approximate®y650 square feet of industrial spac
Medford for $27,305 per month. The space is @ilifor research and development activities (apprateély 4,160 square feet), offi
(approximately 3,100 square feet) and productigpi@ximately 32,400 square feet). The lease texpires on April 30, 2017. The le:
provides for annual increases of two and ba#-percent each year starting May 1, 2015. Wasdeapproximately 21,450 square fee
industrial space in Holbrook for $14,657 per monithe space is utilized for offices (approximat@lp00 square feet) and warehou:
(approximately 18,950 square feet). The lease ®xpires on April 30, 2018. The lease providesdonual increases of three percent
year starting March 1, 2015. The Company beli¢lissspace should be sufficient for its needs enftreseeable futur

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
From time to time, we may be involved in litigatioglating to claims arising out of our operationghie normal course of business. We k
of no material, existing or pending legal procegdiragainst us, nor are we involved as a plaintifiny material proceeding or penc
litigation. There are no proceedings in which ahpur directors, officers or affiliates, or anygrgtered or beneficial shareholder, is an ad
party or has a material interest that is adversritanterest.
ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not Applicable.

PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELA TED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information
Our stock is quoted on the NASDAQ, under the symi@#MI." The table below sets forth the high awavIbid prices per share of «

common stock for each quarter of our two most ridgerompleted fiscal years. These prices represgat-dealer quotations without ret
markup, markdown, or commission and may not neciéssapresent actual transactions.

Fiscal Year 2014 High Bid Low Bid

First Quarte! $ 3.8t $ 2.81
Second Quarte $ 3.5¢ $ 2.81
Third Quartel $ 3.8t % 3.0z
Fourth Quarte $ 5.1¢ $ 3.4C
Fiscal Year 2013 High Bid Low Bid

First Quarte! $ 57t $ 4.61
Second Quarte $ 51C $ 4.1C
Third Quartel $ 532 $ 3.0C
Fourth Quarte $ 39t % 3.1¢

Holders

As of March 1, 2015, there were approximately leidrd owners of our common stock.

Dividends

The Company has never paid cash dividends on iitsram stock and has no plans to do so in the foaddeéuture.
Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

Not applicable
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Presented in this table are selected financial fdatde past five years ended December 31, 2014.

CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SELECTED HISTORICAL FINANCIAL DATA

Statement of Operations Data:

As of and For the Years Endec

Decembe Decembe Decembe Decembe Decembe
31, 2014 31, 2012 31,2012 31, 2011 31, 201C
TOTAL REVENUES $27,645,28 $29,549,60 $25,610,59 $19,388,03 $16,704,70
GROSS MARGIN (1) 10,814,02 3% 12,300,15 42% 10,789,99 42%  9,390,30: 48% 8,100,69 48%
OPERATING COSTS:
Research and development
expense(l) 4,832,53 17% 5,834,24' 2C% 4,486,30: 18% 4,878,11' 25%  2,586,30: 15%
Selling, general an
administrative expenséb 7,531,73! 27% 5,461,08: 18% 4,851,58 16%  3,424,29 18%  2,940,72 18%
12,364,27 11,295,33 9,337,88! 8,302,41 5,527,02!
INCOME (LOSS) FROM
OPERATIONS (1,550,25) 1,004,82 1,452,10: 1,087,88 2,573,67
OTHER INCOME
(EXPENSES): 137 12,94 (1,589 (12,329 (14,509
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE
INCOME TAXES (1) (1,550,12) -6% 1,017,77 3% 1,450,51 6% 1,075,56: 6% 2,559,16 15%
Income tax (benefit) provisic (412,919 486,95: 509,23 (5,133,22) -
NET INCOME (LOSS) $(1,137,20) $ 530,81 $ 941,28: $ 6,208,79 $ 2,559,16
Basic income (loss) per shar $ (0.19 $ 0.0¢ $ 0.12 $ 0.7¢ $ 0.3¢
Diluted income (loss) pel
share $ (0.19 $ 0.0¢€ $ 0.11 $ 0.7: $ 0.2¢
Weighted average number o
shares outstanding, basic 9,530,32! 8,994,08! 7,986,03! 7,874,80 7,762,85
Weighted average number o
shares outstanding, dilutec  9,530,32! 9,519,96: 8,614,94. 8,556,28. 8,865,11.
Balance Sheet Data:
Working capital $12,372,16 $ 4,221,01 $ 7,630,36! $ 6,133,95 $ 4,560,27
Total asset 25,010,19 24,486,59 17,335,15 15,485,74 9,086,17.
Total liabilities 5,286,03! 4,309,491 3,460,63! 2,991,111 3,277,23
Shareholders' equi 19,724,16 20,177,10 13,874,52 12,494,63 5,808,94.

(1) percentage shown reflects the percentage of totatvenues
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Overview

This discussion and analysis should be read inuoetipn with the accompanying Consolidated FindnStatements and related notes.

discussion and analysis of our financial conditéomd results of operations are based upon our ddased financial statements, which h
been prepared in accordance with accounting pilieeigenerally accepted in the United States. Tlkggyation of financial statements
conformity with accounting principles generally apted in the United States of America requiresousidke estimates and assumptions
affect the reported amounts of assets and liadslitdisclosure of any contingent liabilities at timancial statement date and reported amc
of revenue and expenses during the reporting pe@adan ongoing basis, we review our estimatesaasdmptions. Our estimates are base
our historical experience and other assumptionisviieebelieve to be reasonable under the circumetarectual results are likely to differ frc
those estimates under different assumptions oritons, but we do not believe such differences willterially affect our financial position
results of operations. Our critical accounting piels, the policies we believe are most importarthtopresentation of our financial statem
and require the most difficult, subjective and ctemgudgments, are outlined below in "Critical Acnting Policies," and have not chan
significantly.

In addition, certain statements made in this repaaly constitute "forward-looking statements". Tédarwardlooking statements invol
known or unknown risks, uncertainties and othetoi@cthat may cause the actual results, performaneehievements of the Company tc
materially different from any future results, paerfance or achievements expressed or implied bfotfneard{ooking statements. These fact
include, among others, 1) our ability to obtain essary regulatory approvals for our products; andw ability to increase revenues

operating income, which is dependent upon ourtghiii develop and sell our products, general econ@onditions, demand for our produ
and other factors. You can identify forwdmbking statements by terminology such as "maygutd”, "will," "should," "expects," "intends
"plans,” "anticipates," "believes," "estimates,"régicts," "potential," "continues" or the negatieé these terms or other compare
terminology. Although we believe that the expedtadi reflected in the forwardoking statements are reasonable, we cannot gigarduntur:

results, levels of activity, performance or achieeats.

Except as may be required by applicable law, waataundertake or intend to update or revise ouwvdnd{ooking statements, and we ass|
no obligation to update any forwalobking statements contained in this report as sulteof new information or future events
developments. Thus, you should not assume thasitaunce over time means that actual events anénigeaut as expressed or implied in s
forwarddooking statements. You should carefully reviewd @onsider the various disclosures we make inrtpsrt and our other reports fi
with the Securities and Exchange Commission thatrgit to advise interested parties of the riskseuninties and other factors that may a
our business.

All of the Company's future products that are aotlsebeing developed are based on its patented Pathl Platform (DPP®})which is a uniqu
diagnostic point-ofare platform that has certain advantages ovetalaflew technology. The Company has completed praent of sever
products that employ the DPP® technology whichangently marketed under Chembio's label (DPP® HI¥ Screening Assay and DBP
HIV 1/2 -Syphilis Assay), or which may be marketed purstamtrivate label license or distribution agreemesutsh as those with the Oswe
Cruz Foundation ("FIOCRUZ"), Labtest, RVR and Bia€eR

Research and development ("R&D"), milestone, arahigand royalty revenues for the year ended Dece8the2014 decreased to $1,696,
from $2,034,000 in the prigrear, which was the result of a winding down ofrgsan 2014 over 2013. R&D expenses in the ye&044 wer
$4.83 million, compared with $5.83 million in thegr-year.

Research & Development Activities

Ebola Point-of-Care (POC) Test In October 2014, we signed an agreement withgirstted BioTherapeutics, Inc. (IBT), to develodidate
and commercialize a POC Ebola assay for the didignosirket. This work involves applying IBT's Ebaleagents with Chembio's proprie
DPP® technology to generate a multiplexed unitary agsagiagnose Ebola, including the potential of arifebillness multiplex test fc
expanded applications. The outcome of prelimirfegsibility testing is encouraging. We are workitlgsely with the CDC laboratory
Atlanta, GA, and estimate we will have product &lae for field evaluation in 2Q of 2015. Additially, we have applied for prgualificatior
application to World Health Organization (WHO) aslhas Emergency Use Authorization (EUA) with theA: We continue to seek fundi
for this project to accelerate development andrg@ksupply.

Cancer POC Test We have entered into a partnership with an iv#gonal diagnostics company to develop a POC distimtest for the
early detection and monitoring of a specific typeancer. The cancer project represents the fisli@ation of the DPP technology outside of
the infectious disease field, as announced in @etdb14. This scope of the agreement involvedymbdevelopment of an existing assay,
utilizing Chembio's DPP@&echnology. The goal is to optimize the existiaggtal flow assay design, conduct verification aalidation studies
and to produce pilot lots to support preclinicaldsés. Under the terms of the agreement, neithentbio's partner nor the specific type of
cancer is being disclosed.

DPP® HIV-Syphilis: We have developed and launched a version of tidyat for international sale. Studies have beéiaiad to evaluate
version of this test that has been developed 48 market, to meet the performance requirementa Eombination test to detect both t
and Syphilis, including a "reverse" algorithm tigaturrently in clinical use in the United States $yphilis testing.

DPP® Dengue DevelopmentBased on our 2013 experience developing a BP&brile lliness Assay in partnership with a U.Svejomen
agency, we signed an agreement to develop a stand-®PP® Dengue Fever Assay which would be able to dete@fIGM and NS.
antigens. The goal is to conduct verification aatidation studies, as well as produce pilot ltdassupport preclinical studies. Under the te
of the agreement, Chembio's partner is not beisgated.

DPP® FLU Immunostatus Assay -The Company entered into a foll-on, mileston-based development agreement in November 2014



private contracting organization acting on behélfh@ United States Centers for Disease ControlRmdention (CDC), for a multiplex P(
influenza immunity test utilizing Chembio's patahfeual Path Platform (DPP) technology.

DPP® Brain Injury Test : Chembio entered into an agreement with the CaiensScience Group (CSG) Division of Perseus Seiébimuyj
LLC, to utilize Chembio's patented DPRechnology to develop a POC diagnostic test fartratic brain injury (TBI), including sport®latec
concussion. Under terms of the agreement, CSGenieat biomarker will be combined with Chembio'sgigtary DPP® platform to develop
semi-quantitative or quantitative point-odire test to diagnose TBIl. CSG has agreed to pamBio milestone development payments dt
2015.

DPP ® Malaria POC Rapid Test: Chembio was awarded a grant from the Bill & MdinGates Foundation in January 2015 to expedi
feasibility testing and development of a DPMalaria POC rapid diagnostic to accurately identifidividuals infected with Plasmodit
falciparum parasite. Chembio's DPRechnology was selected for this grant due toxteptional sensitivity and potential to aid therfdatior
in its goal of eradicating malaria. To achieve tlgisal, diagnostics must be capable of detecting nttadaria parasite in infected, |
asymptomatic people. Current POC rapid diagnostits lack sufficient sensitivity to identify atidividuals with transmissible infections.

Additionally, Chembio's product pipeline includesnaltiplex test that detects P24 HIV antigen ashaelHIV 1/2 antibodies, and a rapid

for the detection of Hepatiti§-antibodies. These products are currently in kdgweent to meet the performance claims requiredHerU.S
market.
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Requlatory Activities

DPP® HIV 1/2 Screening Assay for Use with oral fld or blood samples ‘We received Food and Drug Administration (FDA) ap@l of
our Pre-Marketing Application (PMA) for this produa December 2012. In October 2014 , the FDA tgarithe waiver for DPP® IV 1/2
Assay for Oral Fluid, Fingerstick Whole Blood an@énbdus Whole Blood under the Clinical Laboratory toygment Amendments of 1¢
(CLIA) regulations.

DPP® HIV-Syphilis — We have developed this product for international &inS. marketing. For the international market, pheduct has be:
registered in Mexico, and successfully launchedswid in this region. In February 2015, this proidwas granted approval from the Brazi
ANVISA. We have submitted this product both forakaation by the CDC, acting on behalf of the Unittdtes Agency of Internatiol
Development, and the WHO, which has accepted tloidyzt to be evaluated for pegralification in its global procurement schemeQOictobe
2014, WHO conducted a three day audit of our fiedias follow up to pre-qualification activitiesrfthe DPP® HIVSyphilis Assay, includin
other products submitted for pre-qualification tgh WHO. No major nogenformances were identified during this audit, amdcontinue t
work with WHO to obtain prerualification approval status for this device. dmtinue to pursue an FDA submission for this pobdand ar
in the progress of studies to evaluate a versian tlas been developed for the US market, to meetpérformance requirements fc
combination test to detect both HIV and Syphiligluding a "reverse" algorithm that is currentlyclimical use in the United States for sypt
testing.

There can be no assurance that any of the aforeorestt Research & Development and/or Regulatorylpets or activities will result in ai
product approvals or commercialization, nor thatyaof the existing research and development aawjitor any new potential developrn
programs or collaborations will materialize or thetey will meet regulatory or any other technicajuirements and specifications, and/or
if continued, will result in completed products, titat such products, if they are successfully cetepl, can or will be successft
commercialized.

Recent Events

On January 19, 2015, the Company entered into & @®dnibus Agreement (the "Omnibus Agreement”) \BitatSure Diagnostic Systems,
("SDS") to acquire certain rights from, and to leetlertain matters with, SDS. Prior to executiérihe Omnibus Agreement, SDS ownec
percent of the rights to the SURE CHECK® HIV 1/2sAg (the "Barrel Product") pursuant to theWzy Agreement"”, as defined below, .
subject to the "3-Way Agreement”, as defined beldke "2Way Agreement" is defined as the Joint HIV Barreddict Commercializatic
Agreement, dated as of September 29, 2006, as auebetween Chembio and SDS, that establishegspective rights of Chembio and £
concerning the Barrel Product. TheWay Agreement” is defined as the HIV Barrel Licendarketing And Distribution Agreement, datec
of September 29, 2006, as amended, among Chembi®, &d Alere Inc. ("Alere"), which grants to Aleegclusive U.S. marketing a
distribution rights, through May 31, 2016, to tharil Product.

Pursuant to the Omnibus Agreement, beginning Ju216, Chembio will own full rights to the SURE EBK® HIV 1/2 Assay, including
perpetual, non-exclusive, transferable, ssbignable license, and including sales, marketiiggribution and trademark rights, subject ta
terms of the 3%ay Agreement. Chembio paid $400,000 to SDS irhamge for these rights. In addition certain amgwwed by SDS

Chembio were exchanged for manufacturing equiproamied by SDS. The license will be amortized oteuseful life and the equipment v
be depreciated over its excepted life.

For all sales of the Barrel Product made by Cherobiside the United States from July 1, 2014 uhe#l close of business on May 31, 2(
SDS will receive an amount equal to 30% of Chershiet sales. For all sales of the Barrel Prodwderby SDS outside the U.S. prior to
close of business on May 31, 2016, Chembio wileihez an amount equal to 30% of SDS' net salescuzgion of "net sales" will be based
the amount of revenues received, reduced by aastslties and sales commissions incurred. Untildlose of business on May 31, 2016, ¢
of Chembio and SDS will continue to receive payrmmdrim Alere under the terms of theA&y Agreement for sales of the Barrel Produc
Alere.

The 3-Way Agreement will continue to remain in effpursuant to its terms. TheVZay Agreement was terminated pursuant to the pien
of the Omnibus Agreement.

Also under the terms of the Omnibus Agreement, 8Bx$Chembio agreed to resolve all other mattersdest them, including matters set fc
in the complaint recently filed by SDS against Chanin the United States District Court for the tas District of New York.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AS COMPARED WITH THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2013

Income:

For the year ended December 31, 2014, Loss befoogrie taxes was $(1,550,000) compared to Incommédeixes of $1,018,000 for the y
ended December 31, 2013. Net Loss for the 201libgevas $(1,137,000) as compared to a Net Inconts581,000 for 2013. The chat
from Net Income to Net Loss is primarily attribulalbo decreased revenues, decreased gross mandimaeased operating expenses. C
margin decreased in the year ended December 3%, &0tompared with the year ended December 31,, 29181,486,000, or 12.1%. T
decreased gross margin and increased operatinqi®&gethe most significant of which were an inaelaswages and related expense
$940,000, an increase in commissions of $530,0@Mswting expenses of $171,000, marketing materidls$279,000, stockase:
compensation of $169,000, travel and entertainméi$130,000 and change in bad debt allowance of0b®1 partially offset by decreas
clinical trial expenses of $1,310,000, accountadrost of the change in Net Loss.

Revenues:
Selected Product Categories For the years endec
December 31, 201:  December 31, 201. $ Change % Change

Lateral Flow HIV Tests and

Components $ 9,518,24; $ 20,248,36. $ (20,730,12) -52.9%
DPP® Tests and Component: 15,655,68 6,592,66! 9,063,02 137.4%
Other 775,84 674,76:. 101,08! 14.9%
Net Product Sales 25,949,76 27,515,78 (1,566,01) -5.6%%
License and royalty revenue 23,25] 4,90¢ 18,35 374.0%
R&D, milestone and grant revenue 1,672,25 2,028,91 (356,659 -17.5¢%
Total Revenues $ 27,645,228 $ 29,549,60 $ (1,904,32) -6.44%

Revenues for our lateral flow HIV tests and relatainponents during the year ended December 31, B@tdeased by approximat
$10,730,000 from the same period in 2013. This pvasarily attributable to decreased sales to Sdutterica, of approximately $6,500,0
decreased sales to the U.S. of $1,890,000, aneaken sales to Africa of $2,255,000. RevenuesdoDPP®products during the year enc
December 31, 2014 increased by approximately $0063over the same period in 2013, primarily folesan Brazil to FIOCRUZ. Tt
decrease in R&D, and in milestone and grant revewas primarily due to a reduction in revenue froentain development projects that w
nearing completion during the period, partiallyseff by $1,125,000 in revenue from the license eohiwve signed in February 2014 with R
Diagnostics. R&D revenues include funds, recoghiaa an "as expenses are incurred" basis, fromazePh NIH grant for Leptospiros
which was effective as of June 1, 2009, and frdAhase Il grant for Tuberculosis, which was effextitarch 1, 2011, as well as a developr
contract with Battelle entered into in the fourtager of 2014.

Gross Margin:

Gross Margin related to Net Product
Sales: For the years ended

December 31, 201.  December 31, 201 $ Change % Change

Gross Margin per Statement of

Operations $ 10,814,02 $ 12,300,15 $ (1,486,13)) -12.0¢%
Less: R&D, milestone, grant, licenst

and royalties 1,695,51! 2,033,82. (338,309 -16.6%
Gross Margin from Net Product Sales $ 9,118,50: $ 10,266,33 $ (1,147,82) -11.18%
Product Gross Margin % 35.14% 37.31%

The overall gross margin dollar decrease of $1Q@®Bjncluded a $1,148,000 decrease in gross méim net product sales and a $338,
decrease in noproduct revenues. The decrease in net product gades margin of $1,148,000 is primarily attribuéato the change in prodi
mix compared to 2013, particularly the reductionsafes to our U.S. distributor in the third andrtbuguarters which were at much hig
margins. The net product sales gross margin dezrigsasomprised of two components, one is the dsedizhange in margin percentage
2.2% which contributed $564,000 to the decreasd,tha other is the decrease in product sales &6$]000, which at the 37.3% mar
contributed the balance of $584,000. The 2.2%edese in the percentage, from 37.3% in 2013 t0%852014, was primarily due to a lar
amount of unapplied overhead along with the redsedels to our U.S. distributor.
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Research and Development

This category includes costs incurred for produesearch and development, regulatory approvals,nieah support, evaluations &
registrations.

Selected expense line: For the years endec

December 31, 201. December 31, 201: $ Change % Change

Clinical and Regulatory Affairs:

Wages and related cost $ 448,85. $ 436,08¢ $ 12,76¢ 2.92%
Consulting 29,74 53,49: (23,757) -44.4(%
Stock-based compensation 3,231 19,47¢ (16,24%) -83.41%
Clinical trials 205,58 1,515,21; (1,309,62) -86.49%
Other 93,78( 82,85: 10,92¢ 13.1%%
Total Regulatory 781,19: 2,107,12. (1,325,93)) -62.99%
R&D Other than Regulatory:

Wages and related cost 2,456,51. 2,224,88. 231,63: 10.41%
Consulting 123,96! 106,15! 17,81( 16.78%%
Stock-based compensation 41,30¢ 86,02: (44,717 -51.9¢%
Materials and supplies 1,021,511 975,50: 46,018 4.72%
Other 408,04: 334,56: 73,48( 21.96%
Total other than Regulatory 4,051,34 3,727,12i 324,21t 8.7(%
Total Research and Development $ 4,832,653 $ 5,834,24! $ (1,001,71) -17.1%

Expenses for Clinical & Regulatory Affairs for tgear ended December 31, 2014 decreased by $1,828s0€ompared to the same peric
2013. This was primarily due to a decrease of $,(BID in clinical trial expenses.

R&D expenses other than Clinical & Regulatory Affaincreased by $324,000 in the year ended DeceBhe2014, as compared with
same period in 2013. The increases were primeeited to an increase in wages and related castisin material and supplies, to support

sponsored research and internal development pregram

Selling, General and Administrative Expense:

Selected expense line:

For the years endec

December 31, 201- December 31, 201 $ Change % Change
Wages and related costs $ 2,763,371 $ 2,068,17. $ 695,19° 33.61%
Consulting 456,65¢ 279,68t 176,97( 63.27%
Commissions 1,432,56 902,39: 530,17« 58.7%%
Stock-based compensation 399,33: 169,50: 229,83. 135.5%
Marketing materials 345,42¢ 112,32t 233,10( 207.5%
Investor relations/investment bankers 168,41( 214,78t (46,37¢) -21.5%
Legal, accounting and compliance 662,52: 621,42¢ 41,09: 6.61%
Travel, entertainment and trade show: 320,28 190,69¢ 129,58: 67.95%
Bad debt allowance (recovery) 28,00( (33,45() 61,45( -183.7%
Other 955,17 935,53t 19,63¢ 2.1(%
Total S, G &A $ 7,631,73' $ 5461,08. $ 2,070,65! 37.92%

Selling, general and administrative expenses ferytbar ended December 31, 2014, increased by $2@Yas compared with the same pe
in 2013, a 37.9% increase. This increase resplti@darily from increases in wages and related ¢egbéch for 2014 included the developm
of a sales and marketing team and the COO (natided in the first six months of 2013), consultingenses, the cost of the CEO search
commissions due to increased sales to Brazil, whigte partially offset by a decrease in investtatiens/investment bankers.
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Other Income and Expense

For the years ended

December 31, 201.  December 31, 201. $ Change % Change
Other income (expense $ (5,707 $ 7,50C $ (13,20 -176.0%
Interest income $ 583¢ $ 577¢ $ 61 1.06%
Interest expense - (33%) 33t -100.0%
Total Other Income and (Expense $ 132 § 12,94 $ (12,81 -98.98%

Other income (expense) for the year ended DeceBihe2014 decreased approximately $13,000, primdrily to a loss on the sales of a fi
asset of $5,700 from a gain on the sale of a fasgbt $7,500 in the same period in 2013.

Income tax (benefit) provision:

For the year ended December 31, 2014 the Compamogmeed a $(413,000) income tax benefit and irsméats deferred tax assets
$(403,000). For the year ended December 31, 20&3Company charged $487,000 to income tax expamda@educed the deferred tax a
by $458,000. The effective tax rate used to reizegthe benefit in 2014 was 26.6% compared to 84 7ate used in 2013 to record
amount charged. In both years mbeductible expenses for tax purposes accountenhdst of the difference from the standard 34% Uag
rate. The Company maintains a full valuation aloee on research and development tax credits.

MATERIAL CHANGES IN FINANCIAL CONDITION

Selected Changes in Financiz

Condition As of
December 31, 201.  December 31, 201 $ Change % Change
Cash and cash equivalel $ 4,614,531 $ 9,650,27! $ (5,035,73) -52.1&%

Accounts receivable, net of allowance
doubtful accounts of $52,000 and
$24,000 at December 31, 2014 and 2!

respectively 8,338,88! 4,592,12 3,746,76! 81.5%%
Inventories 3,638,29! 3,188,722 449,57 14.1(%
Fixed assets, net of accumulated

depreciation 2,797,92! 1,978,23. 819,69 41.4%%
Deposits and other assi 245,87( 44,36 201,50 454.1°%
Deferred tax asset, net of valuation

allowance 4,031,30:; 3,590,20 441,09} 12.2%
Accounts payable and accrued liabiliti 4,946,033 4,309,49 636,54( 14.7%
Deferred revenu 340,00( - 340,00( 100.0%0

Cash decreased by $5,036,000 from December 31, poibdarily due to net cash used in operating &@#w for the year of 2014. In additi
there were increases in accounts receivable, netllofvance, of $3,747,000, inventories of $450,0fiked assets of $1,488,000 bel
depreciation, deposits and other assets of $20200@eferred taxes of $441,000. We experiencédcaease in accounts payable and acc
liabilities of $637,000 and deferred revenue of(§880.

The increase in accounts receivable was primatitibatable to the higher amount of credit salethatend of December 2014 versus Dece
of 2013 as well as some extended terms grantedrtaig customers. The increase in inventorieugstd an increase in a component ust
our products while a vendor refurbishes their facil The increase in fixed assets is primarily doi¢ghe new warehouse facility. The incre
in deposits and other assets is due to additimrahl deposits and related capitalized expensegerigzd tax asset increase is related ti
provision for income tax benefit.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

For the years endec

December 31, 201. December 31, 201: $ Change % Change

Net cash (used in) provided by

operating activities $ (3,820,29) $ 2,277,61. $ (6,097,91) -267.7%
Net cash used in investing activitie (1,452,60) (885,609 (566,99) 64.02%
Net cash provided by financing

activities 237,16. 5,306,41. (5,069,24) -95.5%
(DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ (5,035,73) $ 6,698,411 $ (11,734,15) 175.18%

The Company's cash decreased as of December 34 ,13045,036,000 from December 31, 2013, primarilg ¢o net cash used in opera
activities and investing activities for year of 201

The cash used in operations in 2014 was $3,820,000arily due to an increase in accounts recewaifl $3,775,000, an increase
inventories of $450,000, an increase in other asxe$279,000, a decrease in prepaid and otheemuassets of $33,000, and a net loss r
non-cash items of $326,000, partially offset by an éase in accounts payable and other accrued liabilif $637,000 and an increas:
deferred revenue of $340,000. Net loss net of camit items includes net loss of $1,137,000, $40@3Bi0Mmenefit for income taxes, partic
offset by $739,000 in depreciation and amortizatieom increase in allowance for doubtful account$28,000, and $447,000 in shdrase:
compensation. The use of cash from investing @ietivis primarily the purchase of fixed assetfie Tncrease in cash from financing activi
was proceeds from option exercises.

Fixed Asset Commitments
As of December 31, 2014, the Company had paid dspos various pieces of equipment aggregating 8 which is reflected in Oth

Assets on the balance sheet. The Company is furtimemitted to additional equipmeptirchase obligation of $9,000 as various milestame
achieved by the various vendors.
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RECENT DEVELOPMENTS AND CHEMBIO'S PLAN OF OPERATION S FOR THE NEXT TWELVE MONTHS

During 2014, Chembio began executing a strategigded to position the Company for future growthisT$trategy impacts the entire Chen
business, including commercial operations, manufaw operations, product development, researdatwaiations, and regulatory affairs.

Our first step took place in April 2014, when wedaaan important decision to terminate our existih§. HIV 1/2 STAT-PAK® distributior
agreement in June 2014. We then establishedrgteefier Chembio U.S. sales and marketing tear®chober 2014, we achieved a signific
milestone when the FDA granted a CLIA waiver for tead product, the point-of-care DPR@V 1/2 Assay, for use with oral fluid or blo
samples. This waiver, for the first time, grantedtiue opportunity to market the DPREV 1/2 Assay to the broad healthcare community
support our direct sales and marketing initiateed to ensure a successful launch of this proauestablished agreements with a numb
premier distribution partners (e.g., McKesson/PSSher Healthcare, Henry Schein, Medline) for tigribution of both DPFP HIV 1/2 anc
HIV 1/2 STAT-PAK ® Assays in the U.S. Looking ahead to 2015, we exfmeturther expand our commercialization team diwdributior
partnerships in order to build on the sales initetve created in 2014.

Another important achievement during 2014 was tang performance in Latin America, where we sagwni§icant uptake of our DPPHIV
1/2, DPP® Syphilis and our combination DPPHIV-Syphilis Assays. Thanks to the support of ¢éamgterm commercial partners in t
region, we had very considerable sales growth aziBand Mexico during the year, with sales in Braxreasing nearly 90% as compare
the prior year, which helped us achieve 137% grawibPP® sales as compared to 2013. It is important to tiweinterest in our DPPHIV-
Syphilis Assay has been significant from health@ayencies around the world, leading us to belipaethis product will continue to represe
great growth opportunity in Latin America and thgbout the world.

On the operational front, Chembio made importamestments in 2014, which we expect to contributeun success in 2015 and beyonc
May 2014, we established a Chembio warehouse atidbdition center in Holbrook, NY and made improwsits to our manufacturing facil
in Medford, NY. Our partnership with RVR (Malaysiedntinues to progress according to key milest@meswe expect the facility in Kuz
Lumpur to begin production of commercial producin5.

During the year, we made the decision to streamdimeinternal product development pipeline to foousfour key projects that we believe
most likely to result in highvalue assays that will address critical needs.s&hmograms include a multiplex test that detedts ahd Syphilis
specific antibodies (which we are already sellimiginationally), a multiplex rapid test for earlaatection of HIV by detecting P4 antigen ¢
well as antibodies, a test for Hepatitis-C, andriovpments to our oral fluid detection technologhe3e projects are all based on our BPP
technology for which we were issued a United Stateent in 2007 and for which additional patentt@ction has issued or is pending
number of other countries. We believe these prograill create the next generation of Chembianded products and fuel our contin
growth at home and abroad.

Another key element to our strategy in 2014 wadngaing. During the last 6 months, we entered iataumber of important resea
collaborations that leverage our patented DRffatform technology to develop diagnostics for somieghe most serious diseases and h
crises worldwide. These partnerships involve theettmmment of DPP® tests for certain febrile illnesses (e.g., malagiengue fever, Ebol:
traumatic brain injury (including sportsiated concussion), flu immunostatus, and a sigefoifm of cancer. We are proud to be working g
side some of the world's leading and most inflrtiealth organizations in these endeavors, inofudihe Centers for Disease Control
Prevention (CDC) and the Bill & Melinda Gates Foation. In each of these collaborations, our obyects to develop new and valua
products that will be commercialized via Chembsalkes teams and distributor partners globally.

We are happy to report that in 2014 and early 20&5eceived a number of key regulatory approvads will further facilitate our plan ft
growth. In October, the FDA granted a CLIA Waier our lead product, the point-of-care DPRIV 1/2 Assay, for use with oral fluid
blood samples. The HIV 1/2 STAT-PAK®&ssay received CE Mark in March 2014 and we haaated our filing for CE Marking to refle
the new trade name of STAT-VIEWHIV 1/2 Assay (formerly SURE CHECR) for sale in the EU market. The CE Marking for fDEP®
HIV 1/2 Assay is expected in 2015. In February 20the DPP® HIV-Syphilis Assay was granted approval from the BiazilANVISA.
Recently, we submitted the DPPHIV-Syphilis Assay for evaluation by both the CDC, mgtion behalf of the United States Agenc'
International Development, and the WHO, which hesepted this product to be evaluated for quedification in its global procureme
scheme.

We believe 2015 will mark a number of significaments for the Company, including further developtraithe newlyformed U.S. sales tea
the ex-US commercial expansion of the DRMV-Syphilis Assay, the pursuit of a DPRHIV-Syphilis Assay for the U.S. market, and prog
on key product development and research initiatthes will strengthen DPP as a branded platform technology. We are optimi$tat, th
strategy we implemented in 2014 will strengthen lmase business in POC infectious disease testirgte new opportunities to leverage
patented DPP technology, advance our key development progrardscammercial partnerships, and establish the foiimu#or a successf
2015 and beyond.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in confty with accounting principles generally accepie the United States of America requ
management to make estimates and assumptionsfthbeit the amounts reported in the financial stateim@nd accompanying notes. Ac
results could differ materially from those estinsate

We believe that there are several accounting malithat are critical to understanding our histérécal future performance, as these pol
affect the reported amounts of revenue and the migngificant areas involving management's judgmems estimates. These signific
accounting policies relate to revenue recogniti@search and development costs, valuation of imvgntaluation of londived assets at
income taxes. These policies, and the relatedephwes, are described in detail below.

Revenue Recognitic—

We recognize revenue for product sales in accomdamith ASC 605, Revenue is recognized when therpeisuasive evidence of
arrangement, delivery has occurred or services Hasen rendered, the sales price is determinabld, caflectability is reasonak
assured. Revenue typically is recognized at tifrghipment. Sales are recorded net of discouakstes and returns.

For certain contracts, we recognize revenue fronDR&ilestone and grant revenues when earned. Saet invoiced after expenses
incurred. Revenues from projects or grants fundextivance are deferred until earned.

For certain collaborative research projects, wegaze revenue by defining milestones at the inoapdf the agreement and applying
milestone method of revenue recognition for reléwamtracts.

Stock-Based Compensation —

We recognize the fair value of equitgsed awards as compensation expense in our statefneperations. The fair value of our stock op
awards was estimated using a Bl&dholes option valuation model. This valuation niedeomputations incorporate highly subjec
assumptions, such as the expected stock priceilitgland the estimated life of each award. The failue of the options, after considering
effect of expected forfeitures, is then amortizgeherally on a straighine basis, over the related vesting period ofdhton. The fair value
our restricted shares is based on the market \&ltlee shares at the date of grant and is recodrirea straightine basis over the relat
vesting period of the award.

Research & Development Co—

Research and development activities consist priynafinew product development, continuing enginagfior existing products, regulatory ¢
clinical trial costs. Costs related to researath @evelopment efforts on existing or potential ucts are expensed as incurred.

Valuation of Inventories —

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or mfanksing the first-in, firsbut method (FIFO) to determine cost. Our policyoiperiodically
evaluate the market value of the inventory andstage of product life cycle, and record a reseoveahy inventory considered slow moving
obsolete. For example, each additional 1% oblelds inventory would reduce such inventory by agpnately $36,000.

Allowance for doubtful accoun—

Our policy is to review our accounts receivable aoperiodic basis, no less than monthly. On a qugrbasis an analysis is made of
adequacy of our allowance for doubtful accounts adpistments are made accordingly. The currdotvahce is approximately 1%
accounts receivable. For example each additiod#tabfiaccounts receivable that becomes uncollectilmleld reduce such balance of acco
receivable by approximately $83,000.

Income Taxe—

Income taxes are accounted for under ASC 740 atdkive guidance ("Guidance") which requires thsedsnd liability method of account
for deferred income taxes. Deferred tax assetsliabdities are determined based on the differehetwveen the financial statement and
bases of assets and liabilities. Deferred taxtagsdiabilities at the end of each period areedeined using the tax rate expected to be in ¢
when taxes are actually paid or recovered.

The Guidance also requires that a valuation alleede established when it is more likely than hat &ll or a portion of a deferred tax a
will not be realized. A review of all available $itve and negative evidence needs to be considereldding a company's current and |
performance, the market environment in which thegany operates, length of carryback and carryfatveariods and existing contracts -
will result in future profits. Prior to 2011 arilrough September 30, 2011, the Company had avélliation allowance recorded aga
deferred tax assets since it was not more likedy thot that the Company would realize the benefitich deferred tax assets. During 2011
Company determined based upon the guidance und@r748 that it was more likely than not that it webukalize the benefit of such defer
tax assets. As result, the Company reversed theatiah allowance previously recorded against thierded tax assets. The Company
maintains a full valuation allowance on researath @evelopment tax credits

The Guidance also prescribes a comprehensive nfodekcognizing, measuring, presenting and disolpsn the consolidated financ
statements tax positions taken or expected to kent@n a tax return, including a decision whetteeffie or not to file in a particul;



jurisdiction.

The above listing is not intended to be a comprsivenlist of all of our accounting policies. In macases, the accounting treatment
particular transaction is specifically dictated &gcounting principles, generally accepted in thétddnStates of America, with no need
management's judgment in their application. Tlaeecalso areas in which management's judgmenteotsey any viable alternative would |
produce a materially different result. See ouriddfinancial statements and notes thereto whiohtain accounting policies and ot
disclosures required by accounting principles galheaccepted in the United States of America.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The Consolidated Financial Statements and schedthé¢<onstitute Item 8 are attached at the enthisfAnnual Report on Form 1K- An
index to these Financial Statements and schedukdso included on page F-1 of this Annual ReporEorm 10-K.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE.

Not Applicable.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

@) Disclosure Controls and Procedutdsder the supervision and with the participatidroor senior management, consisting of
chief executive officer and our chief financial ioéfr, we conducted an evaluation of the effectigsnef the design and operation of
disclosure controls and procedures (as definedulesR13a-15(e) and 15kb(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934msnded (tf
"Exchange Act"), as of the end of the period codeby this report (the "Evaluation Date"). Based tbat evaluation, the Compar
management, including our chief executive officed @hief financial officer, concluded that as of tvaluation Date our disclosure cont
and procedures were effective to ensure that irdtion required to be disclosed by us in the repibras we file under the Exchange Ac
recorded, processed, summarized and reported wvtithitime periods specified in SEC rules and for@sir disclosure controls and proced:
include, without limitation, controls and procedsirdesigned to ensure that information requiredetalisclosed by us in our Exchange
reports is accumulated and communicated to our gemnant, including our chief executive officer ardet financial officer, as appropriate
allow timely decisions regarding required discl@sur

Management's Annual Report on Internal Control Gvi@ancial Reporting. The Company's managemergsponsible for establishing ¢
maintaining an adequate system of internal cordvelr financial reporting (as defined in Exchangeé Rale 13a15(f)). Our internal contr
over financial reporting is a process, under thpesuision of our chief executive officer and chiefancial officer, designed to provi
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilityirdincial reporting and the preparation of financ#tements for external purpose:
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptessin the United States. These internal costosler financial reporting processes inc
policies and procedures that:

a. Pertain to the maintenance of records that in restse detail accurately and fairly reflect the sactions and dispositions of the as
of the Company

b. Provide reasonable assurance that transactioneeoeded as necessary to permit preparation ohdiah statements in accorda
with generally accepted accounting principles, #vat receipts and expenditures of the Company eirggbmade only in accordar
with authorizations of management and directorthefCompany; an

c. Provide reasonable assurance regarding preventiomely detection of unauthorized acquisition, vsealisposition of the Compan
assets that could have a material effect on tlenfiral statement:

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @étmisstatements. Therefore, even tl
systems determined to be effective can provide mrdgonable assurance of achieving their contijektizes.

In evaluating the effectiveness of our internaltominover financial reporting, our management usesicriteria set forth by the Committee
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commis$@@SO) in Internal Control ntegrated Framework. Based on this evaluatiam
Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officers comt#d that our internal control over financial repwtwas effective as of December 31, 2(

This annual report does not include an attestatagort of our registered public accounting firm astjng internal control over financ
reporting.

Management's report was not subject to attesttjoour registered public accounting firm pursuanthte rules of the Securities and Exchz
Commission that permit the Company to provide aninagement's report in this annual report.

(b) Changes in Internal Control over Ficial Reporting. There were no changes in ouriaecontrol over financial reporting identifi
in connection with the evaluation required by paaph (d) of Rule 13a-15 or Rule 188-under the Exchange Act that occurred during
Company's last fiscal quarter of the period covérgdhis report that have materially affected, m seasonably likely to materially affect,
internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

Not applicable
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PART Il
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE
Directors and Executive Officers

John J. Sperzel (51)President, Chief Executive Officer and Director.r. dperzel was appointed Chief Executive Officed &nesident «
Chembio Diagnostics, Inc. and a member of our Baatdarch 2014. Prior to joining the Company, Mperzel, was the President and (
of International Technidyne Corporation (ITC) frddeptember 2011 to December 2013. Mr. Sperzel daasePresident at AxiShield fron
September 2004 to September 2011. He also has deglidr leadership positions at Bayer DiagnostB®riens Dx), Instrumentati
Laboratory, and Boehringer Mannheim DiagnosticsctiRoDx). Mr. Sperzel graduated from Plymouth S@a#ege in New Hampshire, witt
B.S. in Business Administration/Management. He entity serves as an advisor to the board of therisiic Marketing Association, and v
the president of the board of that Association(82 Mr. Sperzel's knowledge of, and experiengce¢hi@ Company's specific business an
industry sector, together with the continuing cotrenowledge that he is accumulating about the Gompin his position as CEO of 1
Company, made him an excellent candidate for sgreinthe Board.

Richard J. Larkin (58), Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Larkin was appointad Chief Financial Officer of Chembio Diagnostits¢. upot
consummation of the merger in 2004. Mr. Larkin rgees our financial activities and information eyss. Mr. Larkin has been the Ci
Financial Officer of Chembio Diagnostic Systems.Iaince September 2003. Prior to joining ChembiagBostic Systems Inc., Mr. Larl
served as CFO at Visual Technology Group ("VTG8nirMay 2000 to September 2003, and also led VT@lisutancy program that provic
hands-on expertise in all aspects of financial isepvincluding the initial assessment of clientaficial reporting requirements within an
Enterprise Resource Planning (Manufacturing) emvirent through training and implementation. Prmjdining VTG, he served as CFC
Protex International Corporation from May 1987 smudary 2000. Mr. Larkin holds a BBA in Accountifigm Dowling College and is
member of the American Institute of Certified Pabiccountants.

Javan Esfandiari (48), Chief Science and Technology Officer. Mr. Esfandjained Chembio Diagnostic Systems, Inc, in 2004r.
Esfandiari co-founded, and became aowaier of Sinovus Biotech AB where he served asdbareof Research and Development concel
lateral flow technology until Chembio Diagnostics&gms Inc. acquired Sinovus Biotech AB in 20000nk1993 to 1997, Mr. Esfandiari v
Director of Research and Development with Site Biotech/National Veterinary Institute, Uppsaldweden, which was working
collaboration with Sinovus Biotech AB on developren veterinary lateral flow technology. Mr. Esthari received his B.Sc. in Clinic
Chemistry and his M. Sc. in Molecular Biology frdrand University, Sweden. He has published artiglegarious veterinary journals and
co-authored articles on tuberculosis serology WithLyashchenko.

Sharon Klugewicz (47),Chief Operating Officer. Prior to joining the Conmyain September 2012, Ms. Klugewicz, served as @eviice
President, Scientific & Laboratory Services at P@brporation (NYSE:PLL), a world leader in filtrati, separation and purificati
technologies. Prior to that, Ms. Klugewicz heldumber of positions at Pall Corporation over hery2@r tenure there, including in the Pall |
Sciences Division, in Marketing Product Managemand Field Technical Services, which included atosas Senior Vice President, Glo
Quality Operations. Ms. Klugewicz holds an M.S.Biochemistry from Adelphi University and a B.S. Weurobiology from Stony Broc
University.

Dr. Gary Meller M.D. (64), Director. Dr. Meller was elected to our Board dfdators on March 15, 2005, and currently servetherBoard'
Audit, and Nominating And Corporate Governance Cdttes, including as Chairman of the Audit ComnatteDr. Meller has been t
president of CommSense Inc., a healthcare busof®msdopment company, since 2001. CommSense Indkswuaith clients in Europe, Asi
North America, and the Middle East on medical infation technology, medical records, pharmaceupcadluct development and financi
health services operations and strategy, and nedupt and new market development. From 1999 gatitl Dr. Meller was the executive v
president, North America, of NextEd Ltd., a leadinternet educational services company in the Asaific region. Dr. Meller also wa:
limited partner and a member of the Advisory BoafdCrestview Capital Master LLC, which was our kst shareholder. Dr. Meller it
graduate of the University of New Mexico SchoolMédicine and has an MBA from the Harvard Businesiso8l. Dr. Meller's experience
the medical field both domestic and foreign (esqlchis experience with CommSense Inc.) as welhiaginancing experience make him
excellent candidate for serving on the board.

Kathy Davis (58),Director and Chair of the Board. Ms. Davis wastld to the Board in May 2007, and was elected andi 2014 to senr
as Chair of the Board. She currently serves onBthard's Audit, Compensation, and Nominating Andpdoate Governance Committe
including as Chair of the Nominating And Corpor&@evernance Committee. In 2014, Ms. Davis alsoeskran the Board's CEO Ses
Committee, and in 2013 she served on the Boardsi&pCommittee for handling certain strategic apyaties. Since January 2007, |
Davis has been the owner of Davis Design Group La €pmpany that provides analytical and visualgdot public policy design. Previous
from February 2005 to December 2006, she servéidea€hief Executive Officer of Global Access Pomstartup company with products 1
data transport, data processing, and data storetgeork and hub facilities. From October 2003 tauky 2005, Ms. Davis was Lieuten
Governor of the State of Indiana, and from Jan2&@0 to October 2003 was Controller of the Cityrafianapolis. From 1989 to 2003, |
Davis held leadership positions with agencies amdjiams in the State of Indiana including State gaidDirector, Secretary of Family
Social Services Administration, and Deputy Comnoissr of Transportation. From 1982 to 1989 Ms. Dédnékl increasingly senior positic
with Cummins Engine, where she managed purchasiagufacturing, engineering, and assembly of cegaigine product lines. Ms. Da
also led the startup of and initial investmentsab$50 million Indiana state technology fund, sereasthe not-forprofit boards of Noble «
Indiana,

Lumina Foundation for Education, Indianapolis Foatwh, Central Indiana Community Foundation, Wesi@overnor's University Indiar
and Indiana University School of Public and Envirmmtal Affairs. She holds a Bachelor of SciencéMiechanical Engineering from t
Massachusetts Institute of Technology and an MBAnfiHarvard Business School. Ms. Davis has vanguatiéence in business, political ¢



financial areas that made her an excellent cargligatserving on the Board.

Dr. Barbara DeBuono M.D., M.P.H., (59), Director. Dr. DeBuono, who was elected to the Company's Bo&mirectors in June 201
currently serves on the Board's Compensation andibding And Corporate Governance Committees, diolyas Chair of the Compensal
Committee. Ms. DeBuono is a renowned expert inlipdiealth innovation, health policy, education aedearch. She currently serves
consultant to both public and private entities imed in healthcare, healthcare policy and healthgaoducts. From May 2011 to Jant
31,2012., Dr. DeBuono served as President and CEORBIS International, which is dedicated to savsight and eliminating avoidat
blindness worldwide with headquarters in New YoikyC Previously, from 2002011, Dr. DeBuono was Chief Medical Officer, Partaac
Global Director of Health and Social Marketing atrter Novelli, and from 200@008 she was Executive Director, Public Health
Government at Pfizer Inc. Dr. DeBuono has sens@ammissioner of Health for the state of New Yarkl as Director of Health in Rhc
Island and she was honored by the CDC Foundati@®®® as one of five Public Health Heroes natioewi®he serves as adjunct profess
The George Washington University School of Publialth, and is a ceunder of The MAIA Foundation, a charity dedicatedwomen’
health in sulBaharan Africa. A Fellow of the American College Rifysicians, Dr. DeBuono received her B.A. from theiversity o
Rochester, her M.D. from the University of Roche&ehool of Medicine, and a Masters in Public Hedi.P.H.) from Harvard Universi
School of Public Health. Dr. DeBuono's experieimcand knowledge of, both domestic and internafiopablic health services, public het
innovations, and the medical field make her an kstwecandidate for serving on the board.
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Dr. Peter Kissinger, Ph.D. (70)Director. Dr. Kissinger, who was elected to the Company'ss@oé Directors in June 201, kurrently serves
on the Company's Audit, and Compensation Committ®esKissinger is a scientist, entrepreneur acablamic, with a multi-faceted career in
biotechnology and biomedical technologies. Hé&ésfounder of Bioanalytical Systems, Inc. (NASDABASI), which he led from 1974-2007,
and is Professor of Chemistry at Purdue Univer$ifgst Lafayette, Indiana. Dr. Kissinger's academsearch has involved the study of
modern liquid chromatography techniques, and i viethodology for drug metabolism and the neuroses. Dr. Kissinger has published
more than 240 scientific papers and is a FellothefAmerican Association of Pharmaceutical Sciemtied the American Association for the
Advancement of Science. In 2005, he became th&r@aa of Prosolia, which markets mass spectromatrgvations for life science,
industrial and homeland security applications2087, he and Candice Kissinger founded Phlebdtics, a medical device company focused
on diagnostic information for intensive care meukciHe is a columnist for the trade publication dRiscovery News. Dr. Kissinger received
a B.S. in Chemistry from Union College, Schenectadly. and a Ph.D. in Analytical Chemistry from tHaiversity of North Carolina in
Chapel Hill. Dr. Kissinger has knowledge of ang@sxence in biotechnology and biomedical techn@sgis well as publicly-traded
companies, all of which make him an excellent cdatt for serving on the board.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compdinces

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of413% amended (the "Exchange Act"), requires theg@amy's directors, executive offic
and beneficial owners of more than 10% of the Camijsacommon stock to file with the Securities anxdtltange Commission initial reports
ownership and reports of changes in ownership ofraon stock and other equity securities of the Camipa he Company believes that dui
the year ended December 31, 2014, each person wh@mwofficer, director and beneficial owner of entiran 10% of the Company's comr
stock complied with all Section 16(a) filing reqerinents .

Code of Ethics

The Company has adopted a code of ethics thatespgliits principal executive officer, principatdincial officer, principal accounting offic
controller, and persons performing similar funco\ copy of the Company's code of ethics is abdé on the Company's website
www.chembio.com.

Identification of Audit Committee; Audit Committee Financial Expert

The Company's board of directors has establishealidit committee. Katherine L. Davis, Dr. Petediiger and Dr. Gary Meller each sel
on the audit committee, with Dr. Meller serving @sirman. The Company's board of directors hasrated that Dr. Meller is an au
committee financial expert and is independent.
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ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The following table summarizes all compensatiororded by the Company in each of the last two cotegldiscal years for our princig
executive officer and our two most highly compeadatxecutive officers other than our principal exee officer whose annual compensa
exceeded $100,000.

Option All Other_
Name / Salary* Bonus? Stock Awards 3 Compeensatlor Total
Principal %) %) Awards (6)] ()] (%)
Position Year $
John J. Sperzel 2014 $  298,55¢ $ - $ - $ 669,628 $ - $ 968,18
CEO 2013 n/e n/e n/e n/e n/e n/e
Lawrence A. Siebert>’7 2014 $ 84,70: $ 87,000 $ - $ - $ 14746. $  319,16!
CEO 2013 $ 290,00¢ $ 50,75( $ - $ 21,61C $ 10,24 $  372,60(
Javan Esfandiari 2014 $ 315,000 $ 90,00 $ - $ - $ 9,82t $ 414,82
CSTO 2013 $ 292,46. $ 44,62F $ - $ 14107t % 8,697 $  486,86.
Sharon Klugewicz 2014 $ 259,61t $ 75,000 $ - $ - $ 4,18. $ 338,79
COO 2013 $ 233,64: $ 595( $ - $ 18,55. $ 354 $ 261,68!

1 Salary is total base salary. John Sperzel'sysadtiects his base pay from commencement of tmigleyment on March 13, 2014 until the end of 2014.

2 Bonuses earned in 2014 were partially basedarhieg certain objectives, which included revenoktad levels and operating profit levels. Additddramounts earned were
discretionary.

3 The estimated fair value of any option or comrstmtk granted was determined in accordance with ABX; "Stock-Based Payment".

4 Mr. Sperzel also serves as a director on the @ogip board of directors. Mr. Sperzel does nativecany compensation for this director role.

5 Mr. Siebert also served as a director on the Gmylp board of directors until March 13, 2014. Biebert did not receive any compensation fordisctor role.

6 Other compensation includes an employer matdf1¢K) contributions and car allowances where applie.

7 Mr. Siebert served as Chief Ececutive Officethef Company until March 13, 2014, for which he reee a salary at the annual rate of $290,000. Rvtarch 13, 2014 to
September 13, 2014, Mr. Siebert was a consultahiet€ompany pursuant to a six-month agreementliach he received total compensation of $145,000ese consulting fees
are included in the table under "All Other Compéiosé.

Mr. Sperzel. Effective March 13, 2014 (the "Effective Datehe Company entered into an Employment Agreemetht Jahn J. Sperzel Il

serve as the Company's CEO for a term of threesyellir. Sperzel's annual base salary is $375,0@0, twe possibility of a discretiona
performancebased annual cash bonus of up to 40% of his by sahe Employment Agreement also provides fgrant of 250,000 optio
to purchase shares of the Company's common st8¢k32 of which will be incentive stock options unttee Company's 2008 Stock Incen
Plan (the "Plan™), and 206,868 of which will be rqumlified stock options. The options will becomersable at the rate of 50,000 share:
year for each of the first through the fifth anniary of the Effective Date. In the event Mr. Sig¥s employment is terminated by reasc
disability or for "cause,” as defined in the Emptmnt Agreement, all compensation, including hisebaalary, his right to receive
performance bonus, and the vesting of any unvesgptidns, will cease as of his termination date, &hrd Sperzel will receive no several
benefits. If the Company terminates Mr. Sperzatgloyment without cause or Mr. Sperzel terminaiesemployment for a reasonable b
as defined in the Employment Agreement (which idekiinvoluntary termination within a sirenth period upon a "Change of Control"), t
the Company will pay Mr. Sperzel his base salaryafperiod of six months as severance and allotihvested stock options immediately <
become vested. The Employment Agreement also icanpaovisions prohibiting Mr. Sperzel from (i) &iling the Company's employees fc
period of 24 months following his termination, @liciting the Company's customers, agents, agragburces of distribution of the Compa
business for a period of twelve months following términation, and (iii) except where terminatieririvoluntary upon a "Change in Contr
engaging or participating in any business thatadiyecompetes with the business activities of themPany in any market in which 1
Company is in business or plans to do businessglthie period in which he is entitled to severamecepr a period of six months if he is

entitled to severance payments under the Employigrdement. The foregoing description of the Emgplent Agreement is qualified in

entirety by reference to the full text of the Empteent Agreement.

Mr. Esfandiari. The Company entered into an employment agreeefésttive March 5, 2013 (the "Employment Agreemgnilith Mr.
Esfandiari to continue as the Company's Senior Voesident of Research and Development for aniaddltterm of three years throu
March 5, 2016. MrEsfandiari's salary under the Employment Agreensf800,000 for the first year, with possible irases for the seco
year and /or for the third year. Mr. Esfandiareiigible for a performan«-based bonus of up to 50% of his base salary fdr ezgpective yee
which is in the same proportions as described beloger "Executive Bonus Plan". The Company alsmigd Mr. Esfandiari, pursuant to
Company's 2008 Stock Incentive Plan, incentivekstmations to purchase 30,000 shares of the Compaoyhmon stock. The price per st
of these options is equal to the fair market vaifithe Company's common stock as of the close@frirket on March 5, 2013, which is
date on which the Agreement was effective. Of tlegek options, options to purchase 10,000 shasison each of the first three anniversi
of the effective date of the Employment Agreememt. Esfandiari is eligible to participate in anyofit sharing, stock option, retirement pl
medical and/or hospitalization plan, and/or othemddit plans except for disability and life insucarthat the Company may from time to t
place in effect for the Company's executives dutimg term of Mr. Esfandiari's employment agreeméhtMr. Esfandiari's employme
agreement is terminated by the Company withoutesaoisif Mr. Esfandiari terminates his employmegteeement for a reasonable basis
defined in the Employment Agreement, including with2 months of a change in control, the Compamedgired to pay as severance
Esfandiari's salary for twelve months.

Ms. Klugewicz. The Company entered into an employment agreerdated May 22, 2013 with Ms. Klugewicz (the "Emplagm
Agreement"), effective May 22, 2013 (the "Effectidate”). The Agreement provides that she will semg the Company's COO for a terr
two years. Ms. Klugewicz will receive an annuabsglof $250,000, with the option of a discretiongrgrformanc-based annual cash bonu:



up to 37.5% of her base salary. The Employment é&ment also provides for a grant of 5,000 optionpumhase shares of the Compa
common stock, vesting at a rate of 2,500 sharemagh of the first and second anniversaries of ffecive Date. In the event Ms. Klugewic
employment is terminated by reason of disabilitfasr'cause”, as defined in the Employment Agreeimalh compensation including her b
salary, her right to receive a performance bonas, the vesting of any unvested options, will ceaseof her termination date, and |
Klugewicz will receive no severance benefits. |& tBompany terminates Ms. Klugewicz's employmenheut cause or Ms. Klugewi
terminates her employment for a reasonable basidefined in the Employment Agreement (which dé&finiincludes involuntary terminati
within a sixonth period upon a "Change of Control"), thenGmenpany will pay Ms. Klugewicz her base salarydqueriod of six months
severance, and all her unvested stock options simmiediately become vested. The Employment Agreénaso contains provisio
prohibiting Ms. Klugewicz from (i) soliciting the @npany's employees for a period of twefdyr months following her termination, |
soliciting the Company's customers, agents, orratharces of distribution of the Company's busirfess period of twelve months followi
her termination, and (iii) for a period of twelveonths following termination of this Agreement, egtehere termination is involuntary upo
"Change in Control," engaging or participating iwyadusiness that directly competes with the busimesivities of the Company in any mai
in which the Company is in business or plans tasiness. The foregoing description of the Emplayn#greement is qualified in its entir«
by reference to the full text of the Employment égment.

Neither Mr. Larkin, Mr. Ippolito, Mr. Lambotte ndvir. Steele has an employment contract with the Comg
Executive Bonus Plan

The Company has established a bonus plan for @sutives who do not have a contract. For the figear ended December 31, 2014, t
were three executives eligible for this bonus plBach executive can earn up to 25% of that exeestsalary in the form of a cash bonus.
Compensation Committee determined that 80% of geewdive's bonus will be quantitative factors, lohee the budget, and the other 2
which will be based on other factors, will be det@nary. For 2014, the quantitative 80% portidrtte plan called for attaining certi
revenue goals, and for attaining certain opergtiogit goals.
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OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR-END 2014

Option Awards Stock Awards
Number of Market
Number of Securities Number of  Value of
Securities Underlying Shares of  Shares of
Underlying  Unexercised Option Stock That Stock That
Unexercised Options Exercise Option Option Have Not Have Not oot
Options Unexercisable Price Expiration  Vesting Vested Vested
Name Exercisable (#) (#) $ Date Date (#) ($) note

John J. Sperzel 25,000 3.4163 3/21/2021 3/13/2015 5
25,000 3.4163 3/21/2021 3/13/2015 2
18,132 3.4163 3/21/2021 3/13/2016 5
31,868 3.4163 3/21/2021 3/13/2016 2
50,000 3.4163 3/21/2021 3/13/2017 2
50,000 3.4163 3/21/2021 3/13/2018 2
50,000 3.4163 3/21/2021 3/13/2019 2
Javan Esfandiari 10,000 5.44 3/5/2018  3/5/2014 1
10,000 5.44 3/5/2018  3/5/2015 1
10,000 5.44 3/5/2018  3/5/2016 1
4,765 5.56 2/26/2018 2/26/2013 4
7,969 4.00 2/16/2017 2/16/2012 3
12,500 2.16 3/4/2015  3/5/2013 1
12,500 2.16 3/4/2015  3/5/2012 1
12,500 2.16 3/4/2015  3/5/2010 1
Sharon Klugewicz 2,500 4.50 5/22/2018 5/22/2014 1
2,500 4.50 5/22/2018 5/22/2015 1
630 5.56 2/26/2018 2/26/2013 4
12,000 4.45 9/4/2017  9/4/2013 5
12,000 4.45 9/4/2017  9/4/2014 5
12,000 4.45 9/4/2017  9/4/2015 5

1 Options issued in connection with an employmentmct and under the 2008 Stock Incentive F

2 Options issued in connection with the start oplayment with the Company and not under a F

3 0n February 16, 2012, the Company determined tiot @ February 16, 2012, to certain employees®fdbmpany, options to purchase an aggrege
203,125 shares of the Company's common stock.eXéesise price for these options was the last tranlgrket price for the Company's common stock on
February 16, 2012, which was $4.00 per share. optiens become exercisable on the effective dateeo§rant. Each option granted will expire and
terminate, if not exercised sooner, upon the eadieccur of (a) 30 days after termination of émeployee's employment with the Company or (b) title f
anniversary of the effective date of gre

4 0On February 26, 2013, the Company determined tot gra February 26, 20123 to certain employees®ftbmpany, options to purchase an aggregate of
16,360 shares of the Company's common stock. Xéweise price for these options was the last tradacket price for the Company's common stock on
February 26, 2013, which was $5.56 per share. optiens become exercisable on the effective datkeo§rant. Each option granted will expire and
terminate, if not exercised sooner, upon the eadieccur of (a) 30 days after termination of émeployee's employment with the Company or (b) iftie
anniversary of the effective date of gre

5 Options issued in connection with the start oplryment with the Company and under the 2008 Skockntive Plan
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Director Compensation

Effective January 1, 2015, all non-employee directre paid $25,000 annual fee in samitual payments, and once every five years, ¢
date of the annual meeting of shareholders at wifiiglttors are elected or edected (every 5 years), receive stock optionstpiae, subject 1
vesting as described below, 46,875 shares of thep@ny's common stock, with an exercise price etputie market price on the date of
grant. Stock options to acquire 9,375 shares beasmxarcisable on the date of grant, and optiorsetire an additional 9,375 shares bec
exercisable on the date of each of the four sudegezhnual meetings of shareholders if and to thierg that the noemployee director
reelected as a director at each such annual meeiagining in April 2014, the noamployee board chair was paid a monthly fee of &&
and as of January 1, 2015, this monthly fee wassseli to $4,167. The audit committee chair is @aidannual fee of $2,500, paid semi
annually. In addition, the noemployee directors are paid $1,000 for each boérdirectors’ meeting attended, and paid $500 farh
telephonic board of directors meeting. The romployee directors who are members of a committéleeoboard of directors are paid $500
each committee meeting attended, or $750 for eanimittee meeting attended if that nemployee director is the committee chair. Dires
also may be paid for serving on ad hoc committéélseoBoard.

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Name Fees Earned o1 Option Awards Total
Paid in Cash ($)2 $)
$)*
Katherine L. Davis $ 105,75( $ 80,82: $ 186,75:
Barbara DeBuono 52,00( - 52,50(
Pete Kissinger 46,50( - 46,50(
Gary Meller 31,00( 80,82 111,82:

1 Fees earned or paid in cash represents a yeargnfiéees for meeting expenses: (a) Ms. Davis vedean $18,000 annual fee as a member of the lud
directors, a $6,500 monthly fee as chair since IA3014 aggregating $58,500, $18,000 in fees as mbae of the CEO Search Committee and $11,2
meeting fees earned during 2014; (b) Dr. DeBuogeived an $18,000 annual fee as a member of thel lmbairectors, $24,000 in fees as chairpersothe
CEO Search Committee and 10,000 in meeting fegfIr(Kissinger received an $18,000 annual fee member of the board of directors, $18,000 in fees
member of the CEO Search Committee and $10,500eieting fees; (d) Dr. Meller received an $18,000uahrfiee as a member of the board of direc
$2,500 in fees as chairperson of the Audit Commigied $10,500 in meeting fees.

2 Each noremployee member of the board of directors is gthrdace every five years, the right to purchas@?® shares of the company's common ¢
with an exercise price equal to the market pricet@ndate of the grant as part of annual non-enegldyoard compensation. Ofifth of these options a
exercisable on the date of grant, one-fifth becexmrcisable on the first anniversary of the datgraht, and additional orfédths become exercisable on
second through fourth anniversaries of the datgraft. The fair value of options at the date ofngnaas estimated using the BlaSkholes option pricir
model.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Partipation

No executive officer of the Company served as a bemof the Board of any other public company dutimg year ended December 31, 2!
No member of the Compensation Committee served axecutive officer of any other public companyidgrthe year ended December
2014. No interlocking relationship exists betwelka members of our Compensation Committee and tlz@dBar compensation committee
any other company. As of March 1, 2015, the memloérthe Compensation Committee were Dr. BarbarBuoao (Chairman), Katheri
Davis, and Dr. Peter Kissinger, each of whom isnte by the Board of Directors to be independent.
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The following table sets forth certain informatimgarding the beneficial ownership of our commamlstoy each person or entity known b
to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of thestanding shares of common stock, each of ouctdire, each of our "named execu
officers"”, and all of our directors and executifioers as a group as of March 1, 2015.
Amount and Nature
Name and Address o of Beneficial
Beneficial Owner Ownership Percent of Class

John J. Sperzé)

3661 Horseblock Road

Medford, NY 1176 50,00( 0.52%

Esfandiari, Javaf
3661 Horseblock Road
Medford, NY 11762 144,84 1.50%

Larkin, Richard®
3661 Horseblock Road
Medford, NY 11762 66,51« .69%

Ippolito, Tom®
3661 Horseblock Road
Medford, NY 11762 38,91¢ 40%

Steele, MichaeP
3661 Horseblock Road
Medford, NY 11762 24,78t .26%

Klugewicz, Sharorf)
3661 Horseblock Road

Medford, NY 11762 37,13( .38%
Meller, Gary(”

3661 Horseblock Road

Medford, NY 11762 114,37! 1.19%

Davis, Katherine L®
3661 Horseblock Road
Medford, NY 11762 67,67 70%

DeBuono, Barbar&
3661 Horseblock Road
Medford, NY 11762 39,45¢ A1%

Kissinger, Petef®)
3661 Horseblock Road

Medford, NY 11762 41,25¢ 43%
GROUP 1) 623,14 6.29%
Wellington Management Compan

LLP

280 Congress Street

Boston, MA 0221( 1,050,28I 10.91%

Norman H. Pessi
366 Madison Ave, 14 Floor
New York, NY 10017 616,47¢ 6.40%
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Beneficial ownership is determined in accordandé trie Rule 13d-3(a) of the Securities ExchangeoAdi934, as amended, and generally
includes voting or investment power with respecdourities. Except as subject to community prigdaws, where applicable, the person
named above has sole voting and investment powhbrrespect to all shares of our common stock shasvibeneficially owned by that person.

The beneficial ownership percent in the table isudated with respect to the number of shares RZB) of the Company's common st
outstanding as of March 1, 2015; and with respeetaich stockholder, the denominator is the surhehtimber of common shares outstan
and the number, if any, of outstanding optionsuded in that stockholder's beneficial ownershipclEstockholder's beneficial ownershi
calculated as the number of shares of common steaked plus the number of shares of common stoak witich any preferred stoc
warrants, options or other convertible securitiesed by that stockholder can be converted within&gs.

The term "named executive officer” refers to oungipal executive officer, our two most highly coemsated executive officers other thar
principal executive officer who were serving asaiive officers at the end of 2014, and two addaicndividuals for whom disclosure wol
have been provided but for the fact that the irtllisls were not serving as executive officers ofGbenpany at the end of 2014.

() Includes 50,000 shares issuable upon exer€igptions exercisable within 60 days. Does nolide 200,000 shares issuable upon exercise of
options that are not exercisable within the next&gs.

2) Includes 32,734 shares issuable upon exer€igptions exercisable within 60 days. Does nolide 10,000 shares issuable upon exercise of aptiol
that are not exercisable within the next 60 d

3) Includes 23,217 shares issuable upon exercisetioingpexercisable within 60 day

4) Includes 20,399 shares issuable upon exercisetimingpexercisable within 60 days

(5) Includes 24,785 shares issuable upon exercisetioingpexercisable within 60 days. Does not incllid@®00 shares issuable upon exercise of op
that are not exercisable within the next 60 d

(6) Includes 27,130 shares issuable upon exer€isptions exercisable within 60 days. Does noluide 14,500 shares issuable upon exercise of aptiol
that are not exercisable within the next 60 d

@) Includes 9,375 shares issuable upon exercieptains exercisable within 60 days. Does notlidel37,500 shares issuable upon exercise of option
that are not exercisable within the next 60 d

(8) Includes 9,375 shares issuable upon exercieptains exercisable within 60 days. Does not idel@7,500 shares issuable upon exercise of options
that are not exercisable within the next 60 d

9 Includes 39,454 shares issuable upon exer€isptions exercisable within 60 days. Does noluide 9,375 shares issuable upon exercise of option:

that are not exercisable within the next 60 d

(10) Includes 39,454 shares issuable upon exeotigptions exercisable within 60 days. Does nokide 9,375 shares issuable upon exercise of aption
that are not exercisable within the next 60 d

(11) Includes footnotes (-(10).
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

Combined Equity Compensation Plans - Informationfas
December 31, 201

Number of
Securities
Remaining
Available for
Number of Future Issuance
Securities to be under Equity
Issued Upon  Weighted-Average Compensation
Exercise of Exercise Price of  Plans (Excluding
Outstanding Outstanding Securities
Options, Warrants Options, Warrants Reflected in
Plan Category and Rights and Rights Column (a)
(a) (b) (©)
Equity compensation plans approved by securitydrs? 691,86¢ $ 3.6€ 728,17:
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechotgiers - - -
Total 691,86¢ $ 3.6€ 728,17

1 The "Number of Securities to be Issued Upon Exeraf Outstanding Warrants and Rights" represen&283 from the 2008 Sto
Incentive Plan, 129,750 under the 2014 Stock IneerPlan and 206,868 issued outside of the Plafise 2008 Stock Incentive Plan v
increased by 125,000 units at the Annual Stockhatdeeting held September 23, 2011. The "NumbeSeamfurities Remaining Available -
Future Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plang'esents 57,923 from the 2008 Stock Incentive Blaoh 670,250 under the 2014 St

Incentive Plan.
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE.

The executive officers of the Company are as fallodohn J. Sperzel, president, chief executive@ffand member of the board of directol
the Company, Sharon Klugewicz, chief operatingeeifj Richard J. Larkin, chief financial officer thfe Company, and Javan Esfandiari, C
Science and Technology Officer of the Company.

On February 25, 2013, the Company granted optionsutchase the following numbers of shares of then@any's common stock set fc
below to the executive officers of the Company ndrbelow. The exercise price for these options thaslast traded market price for
Company's common stock on February 26, 2013, whiak $5.56 per option. The options become exeileisaib the effective date of t
grant. Each option granted will expire and terrteéndf not exercised sooner, upon the earlier touoof (a) 30 days after termination of
employee's employment with the Company or (b) thie &nniversary of the effective date of grant.

Number of Shares of Commor

Name of Executive Officer Stock Options
Richard Bruce- Vice President of Operatiol 1,520
Javan Esfandia— Executive Vice President of R& 4,765
Tom Ippolito- Vice President of Regulatory Affairs, QA & G 1,775
Richard J. Larkir— Chief Financial Office 1,670
Lawrence A. Sieber~ Chief Executive Office 5,215
Michael Steele Vice President of Sales and Market 785
Sharon Klugewici- Vice President of QA/Q( 630

The Company entered into an employment agreemésttiee March 5, 2013, with Mr. Esfandiari to conié as the Company's Senior \
President of Research and Development for an addititerm of three years through March 5, 2016e Tompany also entered into
employment agreement effective May 22, 2013, with Klugewicz to serve as Chief Operating Officardderm of two years. On March
2014, Mr. Siebert, the former Chief Executive Cdficretired from the Company and entered into axgixith Consulting Agreement with 1
Company. On March 13, 2014, the Company entertedain employment agreement (the "Employment Agre¢theith John J. Sperzel Il
serve as its Chief Executive Officer beginning oarth 13, 2014. See Item 11 for additional infation.

Director Independence

Our common stock trades on the NASDAQ. Accordinglg are subject to the corporate the governameelatds of NASDAQ, which requi
among other things, that the majority of the boafdlirectors be independent. We define an "indepatiddirector in accordance with -
NASDAQ Global Market's requirements for independéinectors. Under this definition, we have detered that each of Katherine Da
Barbara DeBuono, Peter Kissinger, and Gary Mellgrently qualify as independent directors. We dolist this "independent" definition
our internet website.
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ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Audit Fees

For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 201Gdimpany engaged BDO USA, LLP as its independerduating firm to perform an au
of the Company's annual financial statements ireduoch Form 10K, including reviews of the quarterly financial 'gments and assistance v
and review of documents filed with the SEC, for $0®0 and $159,950 respectively in fees.

Audit-Related Fees

For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 201&dhmany's independent accounting firm, BDO USAPLHid not provide the Compe
with any assurance and related services reasonalated to the performance of the audit or reviéwhe Company's financial statements
are not reported above under "Audit Fees."

Tax Fees

For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 201&dhmpany's independent accounting firm, BDO USAP| billed the Company $18,3
and $17,500, respectively for professional servioesax compliance, tax advice and tax planning.

All Other Fees

For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 201&dhwany's independent accounting firm, BDO USAPLHid not provide the Compeé
with any services for other matters.

Audit Committee Pre-Approval Policies

The Audit Committee approves in advance all audit aonaudit services performed by the independent acemyfirm. There are no oth
specific policies or procedures relating to the-@peroval of services performed by the independeabunting firm.
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ITEM 15.

EXHIBITS INDEX
Number Description

3.1
3.2
4.1
4.2
4.3
4.4
4.5
4.6
4.7
4.8
10.1*
10.2*
10.3*

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.8

10.9

10.10
14.1
21
23.1
31.1
31.2

32

Articles of Incorporation, as amended.

Amended and Restated Bylaws.

Form of Employee Option Agreement, for 1999 PI&y

1999 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended.

2008 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended

Form of Option, for 2008 Stock Incentive Plan

2014 Stock Incentive Plan (

Form of Option, for 2014 Stock Incentive Plan

Rights Agreement, dated March 8, 2010

Form of Warrant (to be filed by amendme

Employment Agreement dated March 13, 2014 with Jbt®perzel lll (5

Employment Agreement dated March 5, 2013 with Jd&sfandiari (9)

Employment Agreement dated May 22, 2013 with Sh&ilogewicz (10)

HIV Barrel License, Marketing and Distribution Agmaent, dated as of September 29, 2006, by and atherigegistrant,
Alere and StatSure. (1

HIV Cassette License, Marketing and Distributionrégment, dated as of September 29, 2006, betwedRebistrant and
Alere. (11)

Non-Exclusive License, Marketing and Distribution Agneent, dated as of September 29, 2006, betwedrethistrant and
Alere. (11)

Joint HIV Barrel Product Commercialization Agreemetated as of September 29, 2006, between thesiRagi and StatSur
(11)

Secured Revolving Demand Note, dated as of AptiBA3, by and among the Registrant, Chembio DistiggSystems, In
and HSBC Bank, NA (1C

Loan and Security Agreement, dated as of AprilZ81,3, by and among the Registrant, Chembio DiagrsSystems, Inc.
and HSBC Bank, NA (1C

2015 Omnibus Agreeme

Ethics Policy (12

List of Subsidiarie:

Consent of BDO USA, LLP, Independent RegisterediPércountants

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursudo Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursudo Section 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chigfhancial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section@.35 adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbar-Oxley Act of 2002

101.INS XBRL Instance Documer

101.SCF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docum

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutr
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Definition Linkbase Docume

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Label Linkbase Docume

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Docum

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's dmepart on Form 1-KSB filed with the Commission on March 31, 20
Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's tegisn statement on Form SB-2 (File No. 333-8578&) with the
Commission on August 23, 1999 and the Registr&orms 8-K filed on May 14, 2004, December 20, 280d April 18,
2008.

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's dmepart on Form 1-KSB filed with the Commission on March 12, 20
Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's definproxy statement on Schedule 14A filed witk thommission on
Auguust 3, 2012

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's @ugrReport on Form +Q filed with the Commission on May 8, 20:

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's definproxy statement on Schedule 14A filed witk thommission on April
29, 2014

Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's @ugrReport on Form -Q filed with the Commission on August 7, 20
Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's tegisn statement on Forn-A filed with the Commission on March 11, 20
Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's AhReport on Form 1-K filed with the Commission on March 7, 20:
Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's @ugrReport on Form -Q filed with the Commission on August 8, 20
Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's @uiReport on Form-K filed with the Commission on October 5, 20!
Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's AhRegort on Form 1-KSB filed with the Commission on March 30, 20!
An asterisk (*) beside an exhibit number indicatesexhibit contains a management contract, congpernysplan or
arrangement which is required to be identifiedhiis teport.
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SIGNATURES

In accordance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the ExgjeAct, the registrant has caused this reportetsigned on its behalf by 1

undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC.

Date: March 5, 2015 By /s/ John J. Sperz

John J. Sperz:
President, Chief Executive Officer a
Member of the Boar

In accordance with the requirements of the Exchakgethis report has been signed below by theofeithg persons on behalf of

registrant and in the capacities and on the datlisdted.

Signatures Title Date
/sl John J. Sperz Chief Executive Officer, President and Marcl2615
John J. Sperz: Member Of The Boar

(Principal Executive Officer

/s/ Richard J. Larkil Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial & arch 5, 2015
Richard J. Larkir Accounting Officer)
/s] Gary Meller Director March 5, 2015
Gary Meller
/s/ Katherine L. Davi: Director & Chair of the Board March 5, 2015

Katherine L. Davis

/sl Peter T. Kissinge Director
Peter T. Kissinge

/s/ Barbara DeBuon Director
Barbara DeBuon
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Chembio Diagnostics, Inc.
Medford, New York

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Chembio Diagnostics, Inc. and Subgidibe "Company") as of Deceml|
31, 2014 and 2013 and the related consolidatedrsttts of operations, changes in stockholderstyequid cash flows for the years tl
ended. These financial statements are the redplitysof the Company's management. Our resporigibi$ to express an opinion on th
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting Oversigbaf® (United States). Thc
standards require that we plan and perform thet doidibtain reasonable assurance about whethatieolidated financial statements are
of material misstatement. The Company is not meguio have, nor were we engaged to perform, ait atids internal control over financi
reporting. Our audits included consideration dkinal control over financial reporting as a bdsis designing audit procedures that
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for thegppse of expressing an opinion on the effectivertéghe Company's internal control ¢
financial reporting. Accordingly, we express nalswpinion. An audit also includes examining, orteat basis, evidence supporting
amounts and disclosures in the financial statemastessing the accounting principles used andisamt estimates made by managemer
well as evaluating the overall financial statemaneisentation. We believe that our audits provideasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements refert@@dbove present fairly, in all material respetitg, consolidated financial position of Cherr
Diagnostics, Inc. and Subsidiary as of Decembe2814 and 2013, and the consolidated results of dperations and their cash flows for
years then ended in conformity with accounting giptes generally accepted in the United Statesro&Aca.

BDO USA, LLP

[s/BDO USA, LLP

Melville, New York
March 5, 2015
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

AS OF
- ASSETS -
December 31 December 31,
2014 2013

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 4,614,531 $ 9,650,27!
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doub#fttounts of $52,000 and $24,0(

at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respecti 8,338,88! 4,592,12.
Inventories 3,638,29! 3,188,72
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,066,47. 1,099,37!
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 17,658,19 18,530,50
FIXED ASSETS, net of accumulated depreciati 2,797,92! 1,978,23;
OTHER ASSETS:
Deferred tax asset, net of valuation allowa 4,031,30: 3,590,20
License agreements, net of current por 256,87 326,87
Deposits on manufacturing equipm 20,017 16,41(
Deposits and other assets 245,87( 44,367
TOTAL ASSETS $ 25,010,19 $ 24,486,59

- LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY -

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit $ 4,946,031 $ 4,309,49
Deferred revenue 340,00( -
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 5,286,03! 4,309,49
TOTAL LIABILITIES 5,286,03! 4,309,49
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Preferred stoc— 10,000,000 shares authorized, none outstar - -
Common stock - $.01 par value; 100,000,000 shardmezed, 9,611,139 and

9,324,783 shares issued and outstanding for 20d2@t3, respectivel 96,117 93,24¢
Additional paic-in capital 47,556,42 46,875,02
Accumulated deficit (27,928,37) (26,791,17)
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 19,724,16 20,177,10
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 25,010,19 $ $ 24,486,59

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED

REVENUES:

Net product sale

License and royalty reveni

R&D, milestone and grant revenue
TOTAL REVENUES

Cost of product sales

GROSS MARGIN

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Research and development exper
Selling, general and administrative expenses

(LOSS) INCOME FROM OPERATIONS

OTHER:

Other income
Interest incomt
Interest expense

(LOSS) INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES (BENEFIT)

Income tax (benefit) provision

NET (LOSS) INCOME

Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

Weighted average number of shares outstanding, bas

Weighted average number of shares outstanding, dited

For the years endec

December 31

December 31,

2014 2013
$ 25,949,76 $ 27,515,78
23,25/ 4,90¢
1,672,25: 2,028,91
27,645,28 29,549,60
16,831,26 17,249 45
10,814,02 12,300,15
4,832,53 5,834,24
7,531,73! 5,461,08
12,364,27 11,295,33
(1,550,25) 1,004,82
(5,707 7,50(
5,83¢ 5,77¢
- (335)
132 12,94:
(1,550,12) 1,017,77
(412,919 486,95:
$ (1,137,20) $ 530,81¢
$ 0.17 $ 0.0¢
$ .12 $ 0.0€
9,530,32! 8,994,08!
9,530,32! 9,519,96:

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements
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Balance at
December 31,
2012

Common Stock:
New Stock
from Offering

Options:
Exercisec
Stock option

compensatiol

Net income

Balance at
December 31,
2013

Options:
Exercisec
Stock option

compensatiol

Net loss

Balance at
December 31,
2014

CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013

Additional Paid Accumulated

Common Stock in Capital Deficit Total
Shares Amount Amount Amount Amount
8,036,23 $ 80,36: $ 41,116,14 $ (27,321,99) $ 13,874,522
1,200,00 12,00( 5,396,46; - 5,408,46;
88,55 88¢ 30,54¢ - 31,43:
- - 331,87( - 331,87(
- - - 530,81¢ 530,81¢
9,324,78 $ 93,24¢ $ 46,875,02 % (26,791,17) $ 20,177,10
286,35t 2,864 234,29 - 237,16
- - 447,10( - 447,10(
- - - (1,137,20) (1,137,20)
9,611,13 $ 96,11: $ 47,556,422 % (27,928,37) $ 19,724,16

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Cash received from customers and gr:
Cash paid to suppliers and employ
Interest receive

Interest paid

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activitie

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition of and deposits on fixed assets

Net cash used in investing activitie

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from option and warrant exerc
Proceeds from sale of common stock,

Payment of loan obligation

Net cash provided by financing activities

(DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of the period

Cash and cash equivalent- end of the period

December 31

December 31,

RECONCILIATION OF NET (LOSS) INCOME TO NET CASH (US ED IN) PROVIDED BY OPERATING

ACTIVITIES:

Net (Loss) Income

Adjustments
Depreciation and amortizatic
Provision for (benefit from) deferred tax
Provision for (recovery of) doubtful accoul
Share based compensat

Changes in assets and liabiliti
Accounts receivabl
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current a:
Deposits and other assi
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit
Customer deposits and deferred revenue

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activitie

Supplemental disclosures for non-cash investing arfthancing activities:

Deposits on manufacturing equipment transferrdikénl asset:

2014 2013
$ 23,89851 $ 29,778,84
(27,724,65) (27,506,67)
5,83¢ 5,77¢
- (338)
(3,820,29) 2,277,61.
(1,452,60) (885,60¢)
(1,452,60) (885,601
237,16 31,43:
- 5,408,46;
- (133,48))
237,16: 5,306,41
(5,035,73) 6,698,41
9,650,27! 2,951,85'
$ 4,614,531 $ 9,650,27!
$ (1,137,20) $ 530,81
739,29° 607,82
(403,37}) 458,15
28,00( (34,000
447,10( 331,87(
(3,774,76) 263,23
(449,57 (700,65!)
32,90¢ (159,58:)
(279,22) (2,391)
636,54( 1,005,56
340,00 (23,229
$ (3,820,29) $ 2,277 ,61.
$ 603,620 $ 521,56

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE 1 — DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS:

Chembio Diagnostics, Inc. and its subsidiary, Chenilbagnostic Systems, Inc. (collectively, the "Qmamy" or "Chembio"),
develop, manufacture, and market rapid diagnosststthat detect infectious diseases. The Compamgis lateral flow
products are three rapid tests for the detectioHlIdf antibodies in whole blood, serum and plasmadas, two of which
were approved by the FDA in 2006; the third is doldexport only. Lateral Flow Rapid HIV tests repented nearly 37% of
the Company's product revenues in 2014. The Coywgroducts based on its patented DPP® platfarpresented
approximately 60% of the Company's product revenneg2014. The Company also has other rapid tesds tibgether
represented approximately 3% of sales in 2014e Tohmpany's products are sold to medical laboesasind hospitals,
governmental and public health entities, non-govemntal organizations, medical professionals arallrestablishments both
domestically and internationally. Chembio's produante sold under the Company's STAT-PAK®, SURE CKE®r DPP®
registered trademarks, or under the private ladieits marketing partners, for example the Clean®eabel owned by Alere,
Inc. ("Alere™), which is the Company's exclusiverketing partner for one of its rapid HIV laterabd test products in the
United States. These products employ lateral tieghnologies that are proprietary and/or licengethé Company. All of
the Company's products that are currently beingld@ed are based on its patented Dual Path PlaffoR®P®), which is a
unique diagnostic point-of-care platform that hastain advantages over lateral flow technology.DiEecember 2012, the
Company received FDA approval for its DPP® HIV B8say for the detection of HIV antibodies in salivéhole blood,
serum and plasma samples, which was CLIA-Waiveddtober 2014.

NOTE 2 — SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
(a) Principles of Consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements include tteoants of the Company and its wholly owned subsidi All
intercompany transactions and balances have beeimaled in consolidation.

(b) Use of Estimates:

The preparation of the consolidated financial stetets in conformity with accounting principles geally accepted
in the United States requires management to magengsgtions and estimates that affect the reporteduata of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingesgets and liabilities at the dates of the codat#d financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenuesxgmhses during the reporting periods coverecdeliyerActual
results could differ from these estimates. Judgmemd estimates of uncertainties are required plyaqy the
Company's accounting policies in certain areas. follewing are some of the areas requiring sigaificjudgments
and estimates: determinations of the useful livieassets, estimates of allowances for doubtful acts) inventory
reserves, stock-based compensation and deferredsats.

(c) Fair Value of Financial I nstruments:

The carrying value for cash and cash equivaletsounts receivable and accounts payable, approgifaat value
because of the immediate or short-term maturithe$e financial instruments.

(d) Statements of Cash Flows:

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, tiragany considers all highly liquid investments watimaturity of
three months or less when purchased to be cashadeyis.
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013

(e) Concentrations of Credit Risk:

Financial instruments which potentially subject tbempany to concentrations of credit risk consratgipally of
temporary cash investments and trade receivables.Company places its temporary cash instrumertts well-
known financial institutions and, at times, may main balances in excess of the FDIC insurancet.liffihe
Company monitors the credit ratings of the finahaiatitutions to mitigate this risk. Concentratiof credit risk
with respect to trade receivables is principallytigaited by the Company's ability to obtain lettefscredit from
certain foreign customers, and its diverse custdrmase both in number of customers and geograpbatitms. As of
December 31, 2014, we have a significant conceoiraif outstanding credit with one customer in BraxVe
currently do not require collateral for accountseigable.

® Inventories:

Inventories, consisting of material, labor and nfaotwring overhead, are stated at the lower of opstarket. Cost
is determined on the first-in, first-out method.

(9) Fixed Assets:

Fixed assets are stated at cost, less accumulaecbdiation. Depreciation is computed using thaigit-line

method over the estimated useful lives of the rethpe assets, which range from three to seven ydazasehold
improvements are amortized over the useful lifthefasset or the lease term, whichever is shoBeposits paid for
fixed assets are capitalized and not depreciatétita related asset is placed in service.

(h) License Agreement:

In February 2008, the Company entered into a seiiie agreement for which it had initially recordedasset of
$1,000,000. This asset is being expensed ovestanated economic life of ten years, based on tpeeted lifespan
of our then current HIV products. The current jwortof this asset is $100,000 as of December 314 2(hd 2013
and is reported in prepaid expenses and otherrtuassets. The long-term portion as of December2814 and
2013 is $200,000 and $300,000, respectively anefliscted in other assets on the consolidated balaheet.

0] I mpairment of Long-Lived Assets and I ntangible Assets

Long-lived assets to be held and used are analf@eonpairment whenever events or changes in cistantes
indicate that the related carrying amounts maybeatecoverable. The Company evaluates at eachdeatdneet date
whether events and circumstances have occurredinbatate possible impairment. If there are intaas of
impairment, the Company uses future undiscountesh dlows of the related asset or asset grouping tive
remaining life in measuring whether the assets@teverable. In the event such cash flows aresrpécted to be
sufficient to recover the recorded asset values affsets are written down to their estimated falue: We believe
that the carrying values of our long-lived tangibled intangible assets were realizable at Dece®bef014 and
2013, respectively.

0)] Revenue Recognition:

The Company recognizes revenue for product salasdardance with ASC 605, revenue is recognizechvithere is
persuasive evidence of an arrangement, delivenpbesrred or services have been rendered, the gadesis fixed
and determinable, and collectability is reasonalblysured. Revenue typically is recognized at tinfe o
shipment. Sales are recorded net of discountatesland returns.
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013

For certain contracts, the Company recognizes evdmom non-milestone contracts and grant reverwiesn
earned. Grants are invoiced after expenses atgr@tt Revenues from projects or grants fundeddwance are
deferred until earned.

The Company follows Financial Accounting StandaBdsrd ("FASB") issued authoritative guidance ("qride")
prospectively for the recognition of revenue unither milestone method. The Company applies the toitesmethod
of revenue recognition for certain collaborativesaarch projects defining milestones at the inceptid the
agreement.

() Research and Development:
Research and development (R&D) costs are experssedared.

)] Stock-Based Compensation:
Stock-based compensation expense is calculated ti@rBlack-Scholes valuation model based on awaltioisately
expected to vest, reduced for forfeitures, and es@e on a straight-line basis over the requisiteice period of the
grant.

(m) | ncome Taxes:
The Company accounts for income taxes under ar assdeliability approach which recognizes defertaxl assets
and liabilities based on the difference betweenfi@ncial statement carrying amounts and the tseb of assets
and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effadhie years in which the differences are expecedierse.
The Company follows a more-likely-than-not threshfdr financial statement recognition and measurgroéa tax
position taken, or expected to be taken, in a &nrn. The guidance relates to, among other thiclgssification,
accounting for interest and penalties associatet taix positions, and disclosure requirements. Angrest and
penalties accrued related to uncertain tax positwill be recorded in tax expense.

(n) Earnings Per Share

The following weighted average shares were usethibcomputation of basic and diluted earningsspare:

For the years ended
December 31, 201 December 31, 201
Basic 9,530,32I 8,994,08!

Diluted 9,530,32! 9,519,96!

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividirtgeaenings attributable to common stockholdersheyweighted-
average number of common shares outstanding forpdr®d. Diluted earnings per share for the yeadedn
December 31, 2014 and 2013 reflects the potenilisi@h from the exercise or conversion of othecigdties into
common stock.

The following securities, presented on a commorresigguivalent basis, have been used in the dilpgdshare
computations:

For the years endec

December 31,
December 31, 201. 2013

1999, 2008 and 2014 Plan Sto«
Options - 525,88t

There were 798,475 and 169,662 options and warrmarisianding as of December 31, 2014 and 2013ecésply,

which were not included in the calculation of dddtincome per share for the years ended becausetfeet would
have been anti-dilutive.
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013

(0) Recent Accounting Pronouncements Affecting the Company:

In May 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standardsddte No. 2014-09, "Revenue from Contracts with
Customers" ("ASU 2014-09"), which supersedes nealtlgxisting revenue recognition guidance undemaating
principles generally accepted in United States $:UGAAP"). The core principle of ASU 2014-09 isrerognize
revenues when promised goods or services are ¢éraedfto customers in an amount that reflects ¢imsideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled for thosedgoor services. ASU 2014-09 defines a five steggss to achieve
this core principle and, in doing so, more judgmand estimates may be required within the revergegnition
process than are required under existing U.S. GAAP.

The standard is effective for annual periods bagomfter December 15, 2016, and interim periodsetim, using
either of the following transition methods: (i) @lfretrospective approach reflecting the applmatdf the standard in
each prior reporting period with the option to ¢leertain practical expedients; or (ii) a retrogpecapproach with
the cumulative effect of initially adopting ASU 20D9 recognized at the date of adoption (whichudek additional
footnote disclosures). We are currently evaluating impact of our pending adoption of ASU 2014-09 aur
consolidated financial statements and have nodg&trmined the method by which we will adopt thendard in
2017.

NOTE 3 — INVENTORIES:
Inventories consist of the following at:

December 31, 201: December 31, 201

Raw materials $ 2,323,86. $ 1,710,62
Work in process 346,49: 464,48
Finished goods 967,94. 1,013,61

$ 3,638,29! $ 3,188,722

NOTE 4 — FIXED ASSETS:
Fixed assets consist of the following at:

December 31, 2014 December 31, 201

Machinery and equipme $ 3,508,94. $ 3,158,26!
Furniture and fixture 388,04( 352,92:
Computer and telephone equipm 315,91¢ 167,04!
Leasehold improvemen 1,955,81 1,016,78.
Automobiles - 37,06
6,168,71 4,732,07

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (3,370,78) (2,753,84)
$ 2,797,92 $ 1,978,23,

There were no capital leases at the end of Dece®beP014. Fixed assets at December 31, 2014iatdade
$315,000 in equipment, which has been deliveredsatdip but is undergoing validation and as suduigently not
being depreciated. Depreciation expense for thé42and 2013 years aggregated $616,943 and $505,000
respectively.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company laddl geposits on various pieces of equipment agtjrega
$20,017 and $16,410, respectively. The Companfurher committed to an additional obligation of, 330 as
various milestones are achieved by the various mend

NOTE 5— ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consigheffollowing at:

December 31, 201: December 31, 201

Accounts payable — suppliers $ 1,980,121 $ 1,815,36
Accrued commissions 947,45: 371,90!
Accrued royalties / license fee 1,034,06: 1,028,28
Accrued payroll 106,48 328,56

Accrued vacation 219,92. 203,44«



Accrued bonuses 265,50( 317,37
Accrued expense- other 392,48t 244 55(

TOTAL $ 4,946,031 $ 4,309,491
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE 6 — DEFERRED RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT REVENUE:

The Company recognizes income from R&D milestondemwthose milestones are reached and non-milestone
contracts and grants when earned. Grants arecied@fter expenses are incurred. Any projects antgrfunded in
advance are deferred until earned. As of Decembe2@14, there were $340,000 unearned advanceduese

NOTE 7 — TERM NOTE, REVOLVING DEMAND NOTE, VEHICLE FINANCING AND LICENSE FEE PAYABLE:

On April 30, 2013, the Company entered into a n@maind loan agreement ("Demand Note") with HSBC Bank
USA ("HSBC"). The Demand Note allows the Companyltaw on the line from time to time an amount umio
aggregate of $2,000,000 outstanding at any one fiilme accrued interest on the Demand Note is payabhthly at

an interest rate equal to one-quarter percent apowee per annum. The Company can repay any oofathe
principal balance outstanding at any time. Thia @emand note for which the bank lender can demepalyment of
the entire loan, with accrued interest, at any tifrfee loan is subject to annual reviews, as wellrmsnnual 30-day
clean-up, during which there can be no amountganding.

The Security Agreement, related to the Demand Nmiatains covenants that place restrictions onQbmpany's
operations, including covenants relating to mergdebt restrictions, capital expenditures, tangii¢ worth, net
profit, leverage, fixed charge coverage, employaen | restrictions, distribution restrictions (commstock and
preferred stock), dividend restrictions, restrinfmn lease payments to affiliates, restrictionglmemnges in business,
asset sale restrictions, restrictions on acquisstiand intercompany transactions, and restrictmmsundamental
changes in the Company and in its business.

The Company currently maintains its operating, plyand primary cash accounts at HSBC. As of Ddumm31,
2014, nothing had been drawn down on the Demand &lad all covenants were met.

NOTE 8 — INCOME TAXES:

The (benefit from) provision for income taxes fbetyears ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, is @admf the

following:
2014 2013
Current
Federal $ (16,119 $ 27,17"
State 6,57¢ 1,62%
Total current (benefit) provision (9,54%) 28,79¢
Deferred
Federal (449,45)) 454,43¢
State 46,07" 3,71F
Total deferred (benefit) provision (403,37Y) 458,15:
Total (benefit) provision $ (412,919 $ 486,95.
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013

The Company had an ownership change as describédtémal Revenue Code Sec. 382 during 2004 ("2004
change"). As a result, the Company's net operdtisges prior to the 2004 change of $5,832,516 webgect to an
annual limitation of $150,608 and for the firstdiy5) years are entitled to a BIG (Built-In-Gaing)$488,207 per

year. These net operating losses expire in 20 Rigjr 2024.

The Company had a second ownership change durio§g 22006 change"). The net operating losses iecurr
between the 2004 change and the 2006 change B&8(L were subject to an annual limitation of $1,831 and
for the first five (5) years are entitled to a Bt& $1,756,842 per year. These net operating loszpse in 2018

through 2028.

After applying the above limitations, at Decembér 3014, the Company has post-change net operatisgcarry-
forwards of approximately $11,696,561 which exjietween 2020 and 2034. In addition the Companydsesarch
and development tax credit carryforwards of apprately $1,175,725 for the year ended December (14 ,2vhich

expire between 2025 and 2034.

2014 2013

Current assets
Inventory reserve $ 311,93. $ 307,08(
Accrued expenses 286,61t 329,18°
Net current deferred ass $ 598,54 $ 636,26°
Noncurrent assets

Net operating loss car-forwards $ 3,986,611 $ 3,616,08!

Research and development cre 1,175,72! 1,052,16!

Other credits 107,96 124,41

Other 149,92! 107,80¢
Gross noncurrent deferred tax as: 5,420,23: 4,900,471
Depreciation (213,206 (258,107)
Noncurrent deferred tax ass 5,207,02 4,642,37.

Less valuation allowances (1,175,72) (1,052,161
Net noncurrent deferred tax ass $ 4,031,30. $ 3,590,20

A reconciliation of the Federal statutory ratetie effective rate applicable to income (loss) befacome taxes is as

follows:

Year Ending December 3

2014 2013
Federal income tax at statutory ra (34.00)% 34.00%
State income taxes, net of federal ber .28% 0.47%
Nondeductible expens: 4.54% 10.27%
Change in valuation allowan: 9.47% 33.48%
Tax credits (9.47)% (33.48)%
Change in tax rate 1.96% 3.10%
Other .58% (0.01)¥%
Income tax (benefit (26.64)% 47.83%

Interest and penalties, if any, related to incomeliabilities are included in income tax expense. of December 31,

2014, the Company does not have a liability foreutain tax positions.

The Company files Federal and New York state inctemeeturns. Tax years for fiscal 2011 throughh2@re open

and potentially subject to examination by the fatland New York state taxing authorities.
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE 9 — STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:

(@)

(b)

(©)

Common Stock

During 2014, options to purchase 318,750 sharéseo€ompany's common stock were exercised, eithiaralsh
or cashless into 286,356 shares of common stoak akercise price of $1.04.

The Company closed on an underwritten public affgpof 1,200,000 shares of its common stock at $H£10
share on April 3, 2013. The net proceeds of therff, after deducting the underwriters' discowand other
offering expenses payable by the Company, was appately $5,408,000.

During 2013, options to purchase 88,551 shareh®fGompany's common stock were exercised at egercis
prices ranging from of $1.04 to $1.76.

Preferred Stock

The Company has 10,000,000 shares of preferredk stothorized and none outstanding. These shams ca
become issuable upon an approved resolution bybtsd of directors and the filing of a Certificabé
Designation with the state of Nevada.

Options

During the fourth quarter of 2014, the Company és536,000 options to purchase common stock to dynew
hired vice-president of the Company. The optiomsexercisable in three equal annual installmetaitisg on
the first anniversary of the date of issue. Théoogs issued have an exercise price of $4.35 pareshwhich
was the last traded price of the common stockhenday issued. The options expire five years fdate of
issue.

During the second quarter of 2014 the Company ésypdions to two of its directors pursuant to tr@rpany's

compensation policy for directors. Each direct@swssued 46,875 options to purchase common stbhk.

options are exercisable in five equal annual iiretahts starting on the date of issue. The optissised have an
exercise price of $3.480 per share, which waslasietraded price of the common stock on the dsyed. The
options expire five years from date of issue.

The Company entered into an employment agreeméattige March 13, 2014 ("Employment Agreement”),
with Mr. Sperzel to serve as the Company's Chiefddkive Officer, which included issuing incentivedanon-
incentive stock options to purchase 250,000 shafethe Company's common stock. The options become
exercisable in five equal annual installments stgrton the first anniversary of the effective datke the
Employment Agreement. The exercise price for theggé@ns was to be equal to the volume-weightedame
trading price for the Company's common stock ondiWat3, 2014, which was $3.416 per share. The option
expire seven years from date of issue.

The Company entered into an employment agreeméttioe May 22, 2013 ("Employment Agreement"), with
Ms. Klugewicz to serve as the Company's Chief QpegaOfficer, which included issuing incentive stoc
options to purchase 5,000 shares of the Compaagisnon stock. The options become exercisable inemual
annual installments starting on the first anniversd the date of issue. The exercise price fos¢heptions was
to be equal to the last traded price for the Comsacommon stock on May 22, 2013, which was $4.60 p
share. Each option granted will expire and terngindtnot exercised sooner, upon the earlier taunof (a) 30
days after termination of the employee's employmeitth the Company or (b) the fifth anniversary bkt
effective date of the grant.

On February 26, 2013, the Company issued 16,36@repto purchase common stock to executives of the
Company as part of their 2012 bonus. The optioasaercisable immediately at $5.56 per share, wiviah the
last traded price of the common stock on that day, they expire five years from the date of issue.
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013

The Company entered into an employment agreemésdtiee March 5, 2013 ("Employment Agreement”), hwit
Mr. Esfandiari to continue as the Company's SeMme President of Research and Development, which
included issuing incentive stock options to pureh&,000 shares of the Company's common stock. The
options become exercisable in three equal annsshliments starting on the first anniversary of tege of
issue. The exercise price for these options wasetequal to the last traded price for the Comgacgmmon
stock on March 5, 2013, which was $5.44 per shBeeh option granted will expire and terminate, dft n
exercised sooner, upon the earlier to occur oB(ajlays after termination of the employee's empkryinwith

the Company or (b) the fifth anniversary of thesefive date of the grant.

(d) Warrants

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company bagarrants outstanding to purchase shares of common
stock.

NOTE 10 — RIGHTS AGREEMENT:

In March 2010, the Company entered into a RighteeAment (the "Rights Agreement") between the Comaual
Action Stock Transfer Corp., as Rights Agent. Barg to the Rights Agreement, the Company declardividend
distribution of one preferred share purchase righiRight") for each outstanding share of Commarckt$0.01 par
value (the "Common Stock"), of the Company. TherBaz Directors set the payment date for the distibn of the
Rights as March 8, 2010, and the Rights were digtted to the Company's shareholders of record andite. The
description and terms of the Rights are set fartthé Rights Agreement.

Rights Initially Not Exercisable. The Rights are not exercisable until a DistribatiDate. Until a Right is
exercised, the holder thereof, as such, will hawerights as a shareholder of the Company, includmighout
limitation, the right to vote or to receive dividim

Separation and Distribution of Rights. The Rights will be evidenced by the certificates shares of Common
Stock registered in the names of the holders tlieamol not by separate rights certificates untl &arlier to occur of
(i) the close of business on the tenth businessfdlégwing a public announcement that an Acquiridgrson (as
defined in the Rights Agreement) acquired a Combi@&nership (as defined in the Rights Agreement}5%o or
more of the outstanding shares of the Common Stibek"Shares Acquisition Date") or (ii) the latdr(8) the close
of business on the tenth business day (or such date as may be determined by action of the Bo#idirectors
prior to such time as any person or group of at@d or associated persons becomes an Acquirirspeafter the
date that a tender or exchange offer or intentmrtdmmence a tender or exchange offer by any pessdinst
published, announced, sent or given within the rimgpof Rule 14d-4(A) under the Securities ExchaAgeof 1934,
as amended, the consummation of which would résahy person having Combined Ownership of 15% orenof
the outstanding shares of the Common Stock, orifBuch a tender or exchange offer has been puddish
announced, sent or given before the date of thbhtRiygreement, then the close of business on tith trisiness day
after the date the Rights Agreement was enter@d(ortsuch later date as may be determined byracfithe Board
of Directors prior to such time as any person bexoan Acquiring Person); (the earlier of such dedésred to in
(i) and (ii), which date may include any such dttat is after the date of the Rights Agreement fodgr to the
issuance of the Rights, being called the "DistidouDate").
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE 11 — EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN:

The Company has a 1999 Stock Option Plan ("SORgjnaily covering 187,500 shares of Common Stockdér
the terms of the SOP, the Compensation CommitteeeoCompany's board is authorized to grant ingertptions
to key employees and to grant non-qualified optimm&ey employees and key individuals. The optibesome
exercisable at such times and under such condiderdetermined by the Compensation Committee. SKDE was
amended at the Company's 2005 stockholders' meeiing number of options under the SOP was inccetmseover
375,000 shares of common stock. It was also antetwlallow independent directors to be eligible goants under
the portion of the SOP concerning non-qualifiedian®. As of December 31, 2014, there were no amtbhg
options under this SOP. No additional options f@yssued under the SOP more than 10 years tft@doption

Effective June 3, 2008, the Company's stockholdeted to approve the 2008 Stock Incentive PlanR"BIwith
625,000 shares of Common Stock available to beedssit the Annual Stockholder meeting on Septer2ei2011
the Company's stockholders voted to approve araser to the shares of Common Stock issuable uhde3IP by
125,000 to 750,000. Under the terms of the SIB,@ompensation Committee of the Company's Boardtleas
discretion to select the persons to whom awardsaiee granted. Awards can be stock options, pesttistock
and/or restricted stock units. The awards becorstedeat such times and under such conditions asmdigied by the
Compensation Committee. As of December 31, 20hdret were 336,826 options exercised, 355,251 aption
outstanding and 57,923 options still availabledddsued under the SIP.

Effective June 19, 2014, the Company's stockholdetsd to approve the 2014 Stock Incentive PlatR18"), with
800,000 shares of Common Stock available to bedsWwnder the terms of the SIP14, the Compens&@mnmittee

of the Company's Board has the discretion to selexpersons to whom awards are to be granted. dsaean be
stock options, restricted stock and/or restrictedls units. The awards become vested at such tmeésunder such
conditions as determined by the Compensation CoremitAs of December 31, 2014, there were no option
exercised, 129,750 options outstanding and 670p%06ns still available to be issued under the 81P1

The Company's results for the years ended DeceB1he2014 and 2013 include stock-based compenseatipense
totaling $447,100 and $332,000, respectively. Samlounts have been included in the Consolidatetr@ents of
Operations within cost of goods sold ($700 and @08, respectively), research and development ($&4#nd
$106,000, respectively) and selling, general amdiadtrative expenses ($401,900 and $148,000, ctsply). In
accordance with ASC 718 the Company has not redoaddeferred tax asset related to the net operddisges
resulting from the exercise of disqualifying stamhtions in the accompanying financial statemenkte Gumulative
amount of unrecognized tax benefits at DecembeR314 was immaterial, and if the Company is abletilize this
benefit in the future it would result in a creditadditional paid-in capital.

Stock option compensation expense in the yearsdeBaéeember 31, 2014 and 2013 represents the estnfiair
value of options outstanding which is being amedipn a straight-line basis over the requisiteinggteriod of the
entire award.

The weighted average estimated fair value of stjutions granted in the years ended December 34 26d 2013
was $3.52 and $3.99 per share, respectively. @ine/élue of options at the date of grant was estinh using the
Black-Scholes option pricing model. The expectelhnidy is based upon historical volatility of ostock and other
contributing factors. The expected term is basetherCompany's historical experience with simijguet options.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The weighted-average assumptions made in calcgl#imfair values of options are as follows:

For the years endec

December 31, 201.

December 31, 201

Expected term (in years) 4.5-6.3 4-5
Expected volatility 61.5(-96.10% 99.6(-115.77%
Expected dividend yield n/a n/a
Risk-free interest rate .83-1.52% .34-0.34%

The Company granted 379,750 new options duringyda ended December 31, 2014 to employees at aagev/e

exercise price of $3.52 per share.

The following table provides stock options activity the year ended December 31, 2014:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining
Number of Exercise Price per Contractual Aggregate Intrinsi
Stock Options Shares Share Term Value
Outstanding at December 31
2013 656,39¢ $ 2.57 1.65 years $ 801,88t
Grantec 379,75( $ 3.52
Exercisec 318,75 $ 1.04 $ 341,72
Forfeited/expired/cancelled 25,52¢ $ 3.17
Outstanding at December 31
2014 691,86¢ $ 3.6€ 3.97 years $ 334,63t
Exercisable at December 31
2014 265,61¢ $ 3.67 1.94 years $ 158,14¢

The following table summarizes information abowicktoptions outstanding at December 31, 2014:

Stock Options Outstanding

Stock Options Exercisable

Average Weighted Weighted

Range of Remaining Average Aggregate Average Aggregate

Exercise Contract Life Exercise Intrinsic Exercise Intrinsic

Prices Shares (Year) Price Value Shares Price Value

$ 0.000 to

3.500 475,00( 45C $ 321 % 332,50( 131,25( $ 271 $ 157,50(
3.501 to 4.50 153,74« 2.5¢4 4.2¢ - 103,24« 4.24 -
4.501 to 8.00 75,62¢ 2.9C 5.3( - 43,62¢ 5.2¢ -
Tota 704,36¢ 3.9C $ 3.67 % 332,50( 278,11¢ $ 3.6§ $ 157,50(

As of December 31, 2014, there was $631,000 ofunetcognized compensation cost related to stoclormpthat are ni
vested, which is expected to be recognized ovegighted average period of approximately 2.38 yedis total fair value «
shares vested during the years ended Decembe®34 ahd 2013, was $283,000 and $118,000, resphrctive
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE 12 — GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION AND ECONOMIC DEPEN DENCY:

FASB Guidance establishes standards for the waly libainess enterprises report information aboutraijye
segments in financial statements and requiresttitate enterprises report selected informationlsid astablishes
standards for related disclosures about producsandces, geographic areas, and major customers.

The Company produces only one group of similar petelknown collectively as "rapid medical tests'aMgement
believes that it operates in a single business sagrlet sales by geographic area are as follows:

For the years ende
December 31, 201: December 31, 201

Africa $ 2,097,35. $ 4,352,73.
Asia 96,06 115,88
Europe 191,94 99,14¢
North America 11,134,69 9,730,55
South America 12,429,71 13,217,46

$ 25,949,766 $ 27,515,78

Sales to Africa decreased in 2014 primarily duedécreased sales in Uganda by approximately $1,602 M igeria b
approximately $226,000 and Ethiopia by approxinya$310,000. Sales in Asia decreased slightly by, 80 European sa
increased by $93,000. Sales increased in 2014otthMmerica from increased sales to Mexico of $3,200 and we
partially offset by decreased sales in the U.Sppreximately $1,889,000 million. Sales decreasef(14 to South Ameri
were primarily from decreased sales from an ordeickvdid not repeat in 2014 of $6,464,000 and wedially offset b
increased sales in Brazil of approximately $5,808,0

NOTE 13 — COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:

Employment Contracts:

The Company has contracts with three key employ&bs. contracts call for salaries presently aggieg#929,500
per year. One contract expires in May 2015, onpres in March 2016 and one contract expires ind&017. The
following table is a schedule of future minimumasgcommitments:

2015 $ 794,00(
2016 426,00(
2017 78,00(

Pension Plan:

The Company has a 401(k) plan established forntpleyees. Effective January 1, 2011 the Compasgted to
match 40% of the first 5% (or 2% of salary) thateanployee contributes to their 401(k) plan. Exgsnelated to

this matching contribution aggregated $82,750 ad,@0 for the years ended December 31, 2014 ai@, 20
respectively.

Obligations Under Operating Leases:

The Company leases industrial space used for ofR&® and manufacturing facilities, currently wighmonthly rent
of $27,305. The current lease expires on April 3017. The lease provides for annual increases bR percent
each year starting May 1, 2015. In February of4/2@he Company entered into a lease, effective Mar014, for
another facility located a short distance fromcitsrent facility currently with a monthly rent 0.4,658. The space
will be used primarily for warehousing and provides additional office space. The lease expiresAgmil 30,
2018. The lease provides for annual increasdsreétpercent each year starting March 1, 2015.
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The following is a schedule of future minimum rém@mmitments (assuming no increases):

Years ending December 31,

2015 $ 513,41«
2016 527,15:
2017 306,01t
2018 64,06

$ 1,410,65!

Rent expense was $476,000 and $250,700 for the wealed December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Economic Dependency:

The following table delineates sales the Compary thacustomers in excess of 10% of total salegsterperiods

indicated:
Accounts
For the years endec Receivable As of
December 31, 201. December 31, 201, December 31, 201 December 31, 201
% of % of
Sales Sales Sales Sales
Customerl $ 6,618,25. 2€% $ 8,894,96! 32% $ 386,27( $ 547,88t
Customer 2 3,455,40: 13% * * 138,33! 209,16t
Customer @ 12,253,52 47% 6,449,38! 23% 6,230,88! 2,064,941
Customer ¢ * * 6,745,93' 25% * *
In the table above the asterisk (*) indicates Has to the customer did not exceed 10% for thiegedicated.
The following table delineates purchases the Compwad with vendors in excess of 10% of total puselsafor the
periods indicated.
Accounts
For the years ended Payable As of
December 31 December 31
December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013 2014 2013
% of % of
Purchases Purc. Purchases Purc.
Vendor 1 $ 1,331,64 14% $ 1,114,811 10% $ 200,85! $ 84,16
Vendor 2 1,594,83 17% $ 0 0% - -

In the table above the asterisk (*) indicates thathases from the vendor did not exceed 10% fopériod indicated.

The Company currently buys materials which are Ipased under intellectual property rights agreemeamd are
important components in its products. Managemestieves that other suppliers could provide simitaaterials on
comparable terms. A change in suppliers, howesauld cause a delay in manufacturing and a pos#iske of sales,
which would affect operating results adversely.
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NOTE 14 — COLLABORATIVE RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT AG REEMENTS:

In 2014 and 2013, the Company earned $1,672,258miand $2,028,917 million, respectively, from easch revenues and
milestones. The Company is now involved in adddio feasibility and development contracts related its DPP®
technology. The total expended on R&D in 2014 2083, was approximately $4.0 million and $3.7 roiili respectively.

a. National Institutes of Health (NIH) Gran

In March 2011, the Company received a $2,850,000omi 3-year grant from the United States Natiohwdtitutes of
Health to complete development of a test for Tublesis. Grants are invoiced after expenses araried. The
Company earned, for the years ended December 3% @0d 2013, $388,000 and $1,089,000, respectiveiy this
grant. The Company has earned $2,850,000 fromdtaat from inception through December 31, 2014 wbich
$1,019,000 was paid to sub-contractors.

b. Battelle/CDC DPI® Influenza Immunity Tes

In November 2014, the Company entered into a follmywmilestone-based development agreement brirthmgotal up
to $1,239,000 based on Chembio's previous sucddsgfal development of a multiplex rapid point-ofre ("POC")
influenza immunity test utilizing its patented DuBhth Platform (DPP®) technology. The follow on esgnent
contemplates a period of approximately six montha/hich the follow-on development activity is to bempleted. For
the years ended Decmber 31, 2014 and 2013, the &ogmgarned $115,000 and $643,500, respectively thisngrant.
The Company has earned $1,036,000 from this gramt inception through December 31, 2014.

c. Cooperative research agreement with a U.S. govenhiagency.

In May 2013, the Company was awarded a cooperatigearch agreement with a U.S. government agencypfdo
$883,000 for an 8 month development project to gveapid POC diagnostic tests for five infectialiseases associated
with febrile illness. For the years ended Decmbgr 2014 and 2013, the Company earned $117,0006@66,000,
respectively from this grant. The Company has edu$883,000 from this grant from inception throudcember 31,
2014.

d. RVR DPP® technology transfer agreement

In February 2014, the Company entered into a tdolggdransfer agreement with RVR Diagnostics fof5$D,000. The
agreement was modified in September 2014. Peratteement, as modified, the Company earned $1,025)0
milestone payments during 2014.

e. RVR Dengue agreement

In October 2014, he Company entered into a devetmpragreement with RVR Diagnostics for $300,00@vdtue for
this agreement is being recognized under a prapatiperformance method. As of December 31, 20&4Gbmpany
earned $60,000 from this agreement.

Governmental Regulation:

All of the Company's existing and proposed diagrogtoducts are regulated by the United States Faadl Drug
Administration (FDA), United States Department ofrisulture, certain state and local agencies, andémnparable
regulatory bodies in other countries. Most aspettevelopment, production, and marketing, inahgdproduct testing,
authorizations to market, labeling, promotion, nfacturing, and record keeping are subject to reviéfter marketing
approval has been granted, Chembio must continmnaply with governmental regulations. Failurectmply with

these regulations can result in significant peeslti
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CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTICS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE 15 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:

On January 19, 2015, Chembio entered into a 20156ike Agreement (the "Omnibus Agreement") with Stae Diagnostic
Systems, Inc. ("SDS") to acquire certain rightsrfr@nd to settle certain matters with, SDS.

Pursuant to the Omnibus Agreement, beginning Jyr016, Chembio will own full rights to the SURE EBK® HIV 1/2
Assay, including a perpetual, non-exclusive, traradfle, sub-assignable license, and includingsatarketing, distribution and
trademark rights, subject to the terms of the 3-\Wgyeement. Chembio paid $400,000 to SDS in exgbdar these rights. In
addition certain amounts owed by SDS to Chembiewachanged for manufacturing equipment owned b$.SDhe license will
be amortized over its useful life and the equipnveilitbe depreciated over its excepted life.
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EXHIBIT 10.10
2015 OMNIBUS AGREEMENT

This 2015 Omnibus Agreement (this\greement"), dated as of January __, 2015 (theffective Date"), is entere
into between Chembio Diagnostic Systems, Inc., Eiere corporation having its principal place otimgss at 36¢
Horseblock Road, Medford, New York 11763, Chembio "), and StatSure Diagnostic Systems, Inc., a Dale
corporation having its principal place of businas4333 East 9 Street, Brooklyn, New York (SDS"), each of whic
is hereinafter referred to individually as Bdrty " and collectively the Parties."

RECITALS

A.  Alere Inc. ("Alere ", formerly Inverness Medical Innovations, Inc.h&nbio, and SDS entered into
HIV Barrel License, Marketing and Distribution Agraent, dated as of September 29, 2006, as ametidetThree-
Way Agreement"), which Three-Way Agreement will expire by itsrtes on May 31, 2016;

B. Chembio and SDS entered into the Joint HIV BarreldBct Commercialization Agreement, dated ¢
September 29, 2006, as amended (the/6-Way Agreement”);

C. SDS filed a complaint against Chembio in the Uni&tates District Court for the Eastern DistrictNgw
York on December 2, 2014 (Civil Action No. 14-cviH) hereinafter referred to as th€dmplaint "), but has not y:
served the summons and Complaint;

D. In order to resolve all disputes that have beertooitd have been, raised arising out of or relat;the
business relationships between the Parties, ingudithout limitation all matters that were or codllave been asser
in the Complaint, and all matters that were or ddwdve been asserted under the Two-Way AgreementhanThree-
Way Agreement, the Parties desire to agree on Hiters set forth in this Agreement; and

E. All capitalized terms used in this Agreement but oiherwise defined herein are given the meanieg
forth in the Three-Way Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE , in consideration of the mutual covenants and eagemnts hereinafter set forth and
other good and valuable consideration, the re@aigtsufficiency of which are hereby acknowledgkd,Rarties here
agree as follows:

1. Grant of License. SDS, subject to the terms and limitations oftheee-Way Agreement, hereby grants to
Chembio, and Chembio hereby accepts from SDS, withcknowledging or agreeing to its necessity wagpect to th
HIV Barrel Product, a perpetual, non-exclusivensfarable, sub-licensable license (tHacense") to the SDS Patent
as that term is defined in the Three-Way Agreemétfithin three business days after the Executiore@athis
Agreement, Chembio shall pay to SDS the sum of 8W0as consideration for grant of the Licensest$osth in this
Section 1.




2. Moaodification of Three-Way Agreement. For sales of the SURE CHECK® product made bynithie outside
of the United States from July 1, 2014 throughdlose of business on May 31, 2016, Chembio shglkp&DS an
amount (the "Foreign Payment") equal to 30% of Qbiets Net Sales (as defined in the Three-Way Agesg)n
reduced by Costs (as defined in the Three-Way Agee), as well as net of any third party paymeotcdmmissions
from any sales. For sales of the SURE CHEQ¥@&duct made by SDS outside of the United Statesigh the close ¢
business on May 31, 2016, SDS shall pay Chembanawunt calculated in the same manner as the FolRgigment.
The Parties agree that with respect to sales dfitiieBarrel Product outside the United States, Boseign Payment is
the sole and total compensation to be receiveddfy i the first instance and by Chembio in theelaittstance, and tt
amount of the Foreign Payment replaces and supessety compensation to be received by SDS from Gloeon by
Chembio from SDS, as the case may be, pursuahetdhree-Way Agreement for sales of this naturendho shall
not refuse to provide SDS with SURE CHECK prodwgctamg as the total return for SDS and Chembisifmh produc
is at least 115% of costs. The provisions of tlisagraph supersede any conflicting provisions dit@ahal
requirements for payments related to the Three-Aggement as between Chembio and SDS. This Agneteshall
not affect the payments due each of Chembio or @8 Alere under the Three-Way Agreement, nor shalifect
Alere's rights with respect to Chembio or SDS unilerThree-Way Agreement, and the parties undetsteair
respective rights hereunder are subject to Aleigigs.

3. Foreign Payment Records

(a) Chembio shall keep complete and accurate dscofr the latest two years of sales of HIV BarreddRict:
sold outside the United States. For the sole p&wd verifying Foreign Payments made to SDS uiaetion 2, SD
shall have the right once per calendar year tarreda independent certified public accountant, authany othe
relationship to SDS, its officers, directors or 188bckholders, selected by SDS and reasonably &tiego Chembir
to conduct an audit of records of sales by Chenalbithe HIV Barrel Products outside of the Unitect8s, in th
location(s) where such records are maintained, tywenty days prior written notice and during regulasiness hout
with all information disclosed being deemed Contitid Information hereunder. The scope of the tigdlimited tc
only those documents relating to gross sales byrnBieof the HIV Barrel Product, which documents aesessary
determine Foreign Payments owed by Chembio to SO cost of the audit shall be paid by the Pastuesting th
audit, unless the auditor determines that a disecrepof greater than 10% exists between Foreigmeais owed bas
on audit results and Foreign Payments actually, paidshich case Chembio shall pay the costs ofailndit. The aud
shall be completed within thirty business daysjextiio extension by the auditor if the auditors@aably determines
good faith that data or information it requires)@ available and identifies the data or informatiequired. Results
the audit shall be made available to Chembio an8.Sbe auditor shall recalculate the Foreign Paysnewed to SD
based on audit results and if the auditor detersiinat Chembio has made an overpayment to SDS s88I5promptl
reimburse Chembio for the overpayment. If the audiletermines that Chembio has made an underpayme3DS
Chembio shall promptly pay SDS for the shortfall.




(b) SDS shall keep complete and accurate recdrtisedatest two years of sales of HIV Barrel Produsol
outside the United States. For the sole purposesnfying Foreign Payments made to CHEMBIO undect®n 2
CHEMBIO shall have the right once per calendar yeaetain an independent certified public acconmntaithout an'
other relationship to CHEMBIO, its officers, direct or 10% stockholders selected by CHEMBIO andaeabl
acceptable to SDS, to conduct an audit of recofdsles by SDS of the HIV Barrel Products outsiflehe Unitec
States, in the location(s) where such records aiatained, upon twenty days prior written noticel aluring regule
business hours, with all information disclosed gedeemed Confidential Information hereunder. Tdwps of the auc
is limited to only those documents relating to gresles by SDS of the HIV Barrel Product, whichudoents ar
necessary to determine Foreign Payments owed bytSI@EHEMBIO. The cost of the audit shall be paydthe Part
requesting the audit, unless the auditor determthat a discrepancy of greater than 10% exists d@twForeig
Payments owed based on audit results and Foreigmd?tas actually paid, in which case SDS shall ba&ycosts of tt
audit. The audit shall be completed within thillysiness days, subject to extension by the audittre audito
reasonably determines in good faith that data @ramation it requires is not available and ideesfithe data
information required. Results of the audit shallade available to SDS and CHEMBIO. The audiiail secalculat
the Foreign Payments owed to CHEMBIO based on aediilts and if the auditor determines that SDSrhade a
overpayment to CHEMBIO, CHEMBIO shall promptly rdiarse SDS for the overpayment. If the auditor roeitee:
that SDS has made an underpayment to CHEMBIO, $2albgomptly pay CHEMBIO for the shortfall.

4. Continuing Validity of Three-Way Agreement. Except as modified in Section 2 with respedht®
relationship between SDS and Chembio, the terntiseoT hree-Way Agreement remain in effect for Chenand SDS,
with respect to one another and with respect toeAl€ontinuing with respect to sales by Alere tigio May 31, 2016,
this Agreement will not affect SDS' rights to ramepayments from Alere under the Three-Way Agredrfmrsales of
the SURE CHECK® product in the United States byréle

5. Settlement of Outstanding Amounts and Exchange of&a. The parties acknowledge that Chembio is in
possession of certain 1-up and 4-up barrel assesab&DS hereby assigns to Chembio all its righe, &nd interest to
the 1-up and 4-up barrel assemblers, free of aoyrehbrances, liens, or other claims which SDS iremlior of which
SDS has knowledge. Chembio shall provide to SD8ata related to the Over-The-Counter work dorith wespect to
barrel products and will release any monetary daagrainst SDS for such work as part of the gemelahses provided
herein.

6. Termination of Two-Way Agreement. As of the Effective Date of this Agreement, theoFWay Agreement
is terminated, with no surviving obligations oftedt Party except as specifically set forth in thiseement.




7. Dismissal of the Complaint. Within three business days after the $400,0Q0neat due hereunder is receiv
SDS shall cause the Complaint to be dismissed préjudice. Attached hereto as Exhibit A is a fah®tipulation Of
Dismissal With Prejudice (the "Dismissal”) relatitagdismissal of the Complaint with prejudice. kit two business
after the Execution Date, SDS will execute andtfie Dismissal with the Court in which the Comptairas filed. The
Dismissal will provide that it will become effecéivon a designated date that is five business dterstlae Execution
Date unless SDS makes a filing (the "Objection'thwie Court stating that Chembio has not mad&40®,000
payment required under Section 1 of this Agreenienthich case the Dismissal will be null and valdinitio.

8. Release of Chembio by SDSExcept for those claims specifically arising fréims Agreement and those clai
specifically arising pursuant to the Three-Way Aggnent subsequent to the Execution Date of thiségent, SDS, on
behalf of its predecessors, successors, assigmsdgaries, parent, sister or affiliated comparied any of its past and
present officers, directors, employees, sharehs|asvners, attorneys, agents, or representativasy| releases
Chembio, including any and all of its predecesssuscessors, assigns, subsidiaries, parent, srsadiiliated
companies and any of its past and present offidaesgtors, employees, shareholders, owners, aysrragents, or
representatives, from any and all claims or demahdsy nature or kind, known or unknown, in lawiroequity,
which arose from the beginning of time to the dstthe execution of this Agreement. This releagersds without
limitation to all matters relating to or arisingtaf the business relationship between the Paitiekjding all matters
that were or could have been asserted in the Cambjpdand all matters that were or could have bessered under the
Two-Way Agreement or the Three-Way Agreement.

9. Release of SDS by ChembioExcept for those claims specifically arising fréims Agreement and those clai
specifically arising pursuant to the Three-Way Agmnent subsequent to the Execution Date of this éxgesnt,
Chembio, on behalf of its predecessors, succesassgns, subsidiaries, parent, sister or afftiat@mpanies and any
its past and present officers, directors, employs®areholders, owners, attorneys, agents, orseptatives, if any,
releases SDS, including any and all of its predsmss successors, assigns, subsidiaries, parstet, ar affiliated
companies and any of its past and present offidae;tors, employees, shareholders, owners, aysrragents, or
representatives, from any and all claims or demahdsy nature or kind, known or unknown, in lawiroequity,
which arose from the beginning of time to the dstthe execution of this Agreement. This releagersds without
limitation to all matters relating to or arisingtaf the business relationship between the Paitiekjding all matters
that were or could have been asserted under theWWayoAgreement or the Three-Way Agreement.




10. Limitation on Releases. This Agreement is intended to be construed irbtisadest possible manner to
effectuate the intent of the Parties that all dispuetween the Parties are forever resolved, dutipy to the followinc
exceptions which are to be narrowly construed:

(a) Claims based on events, acts or omissions takengpmfter the Execution Date of this Agreement;
(b) Actions to enforce the terms of, or otherwise agsinder, this Agreemer

11. No Admission of Liability. Neither Party may construe or use this Agreemeahaadmission of liability on
the part of any person or entity released, liabbiing expressly denied.

12. Representations and Warranties

(a) Corporate Power and Authority . Each Party represents to the other Party thaast full corporai
power and authority to enter into this Agreemend &m carry out the provisions hereof. Each F
represents to the other that this Agreement comssita valid and binding agreement, enforceablasl
it in accordance with its term

(b) No Default or Violation . Each Party represents and warrants to the otady Ehat the executic
delivery and performance of this Agreement doeg(izaiolate or require any registration, qualifiicen,
consent, approval, or filing under (1) any lawi® ordinance, rule or regulation applicabletioi (2
any judgment, injunction, order, writ or decreeaafy court, arbitrator, or governmental entity byiei
such Party or any of its assets or properties meypdund; or (i) conflict with, require any cons
approval, or filing under, result in the breachtemmination of any provision of, constitute a de
under, result in the acceleration of the perforneant any obligations under, result in the vestim
enhancement of any other Person's rights undaesuit in the creation of any lien upon any of ¢
Party's properties, assets, or businesses purkuéxy its organizing documents or Byws or (y) an
material indenture, mortgage, deed of trust, lieepermit, approval, consent, franchise, leasetract
or other instrument or agreement to which suchyRart party or by which such Party or any of ¢
Party's properties or assets is bot




(c) Licensed Intellectual Property. SDS represents and warrants to Chembio thaS has the fu
right, title and authority to grant to Chembio theense granted hereunder; and (b) to the besD&'s
knowledge and except as otherwise disclosed to Gimgnall such licensed rights existing as of
Effective Date are valid and enforceal

(d) Non-assignment of Claims. Each Party warrants and represents that he loastnot transferred
assigned to any other person, firm, corporationtber legal entity any claims, rights or causeaaiior
against any person or entity released by this Agesg.

13. Confidentiality .

(a) Limited Disclosure and Use. Each of Chembio and SDS shall hold in confideang Confidentic
Information disclosed by the other Party or otheembbtained by such Party from the other Party
result of this Agreement, including, without lintitan, information obtained via an audit perforr
pursuant to Section 3, but excluding the licenseellectual property rights. Each of SDS and Chea
shall protect the confidentiality thereof with tekeme degree of care that it exercises with redpeits
own information of a like nature, but in no eveesd than reasonable care. Without the prior w
consent of the disclosing Party, a receiving Pahgll not use, disclose, or distribute any Confiidd
Information, in whole or in part, except as reqdite perform such Party's obligations or exercisg
Party's rights hereunder. Access to the discloBiady's Confidential Information shall be restricte
the receiving Party's employees, agents, contrscamd licensees, who, in each case, need to kaes
to carry out a permitted use and are bound inngito maintain the confidentiality of such Confitial
Information.

(b) Exceptions. The obligations set forth in Section 13(a) shall apply to any portion of the Confiden
Information that the receiving Party can demonsetiat legally sufficient evidence: (i) now or hettea
through no act or failure to act on the part of beeiving Party, is or becomes generally avaitalileis
known to the receiving Party at the time of reaagvsuch Confidential Information and not subjecat
obligation of confidentiality to a Third Party;ifiis hereafter furnished to the receiving Partyabyhirc
Party as a matter of right (and without violatingy aagreement with the disclosing Party) witt
restriction on use or disclosure; or (iv) is indegently developed by the receiving Party withowg of
any Confidential Information received from the otHearty. In addition, each receiving Party 1
disclose Confidential Information to the extentlsubisclosure is reasonably necessary to prosec
defend litigation, to comply with applicable law @gulation or the rules of any securities exchaor
other trading market on which such Party's seesrifire listed, to protect intellectual propertyhtsg tc
obtain necessary or desirable regulatory approvalsespond to a valid order of a court or o
governmental body or any political subdivision #afr or to conduct preclinical or clinical tri
provided that, other than with respect to disclestor protecting intellectual property rights,
receiving Party shall use reasonable efforts tourgeconfidential treatment of such Confider
Information required to be disclose




(c) Use of Name. Except as authorized in this Agreement or otheewiequired by applicable le
regulation or the rules of any securities exchamygether trading market on which such Party's sges
are listed, neither Party shall use the name obther Party in any publicity or advertising withidhe
prior written approval of the other Party, excdgtteither Party may disclose that it has ententadthis
Agreement

(d) Survival . The obligations set forth in this Section 13 Ekatvive any termination or expiration of t
Agreement in perpetuity (with respect to trade sesgrand for a period of five years (with respecait
other data and informatior

14. Material Breach . If there is a: (i) material breach by a Partylo$ Agreement which cannot be cured; or (ii)
material breach by a Party of this Agreement thatlee cured and such Party has failed to take stdpegyin to cure tt
breach within sixty days following written noticpexifying the material breach by the Party affedigdhe breach or is
not diligently pursuing a cure thereafter, or @iParty is subject to a petition for relief unday bankruptcy legislatio
or makes an assignment for the benefit of creditorgs subject to the appointment of a receiverfbor substantially
part of the Party's assets, and such petitiongasgnt or appointment, if involuntary, is not dise&d or vacated with
ninety days, then an event of default shall be aktn have occurred. Upon an event of defaulthtrebreaching
Party shall have the right to exercise one or nobtae following remedies upon written notice by tion-breaching
Party to the breaching Party within thirty daysaafevent of default (if any) (assuming that the-bogaching Party has
not already given such a notice upon the occurreheeprior material, uncured breach by the breag®/arty): (i) to
seek monetary damages for such material breacimwviita limitations set forth in Section 15 hergaj;to seek
equitable relief to prevent such material breaomfcontinuing or occurring again in the future{ioy if the event of
default can be cured, to effect a cure and be naisddl for the costs incurred.

15. Limitation of Liability . Except for breaches of its confidentiality obtigas hereunder and for violations of
the other Party's intellectual property rights ésmmddamages caused by a Party's gross negligenngeational
misconduct, in no event shall a Party be liablth&oother Party for special, incidental, exemplapnsequential, or
punitive damages, including, without limitation,ndages resulting from loss of use, profits, busimeggodwill,
whether or not the Party allegedly causing the dpmnteas been advised of the possibility thereof.




16. Notices. All notices, requests, consents, claims, demamdsiers, and other communications hereunder
be in writing and shall be deemed to have beemgiaewhen delivered by hand (with written confitioa of receipt);
(b) when received by the addressee if sent byianaly recognized overnight courier (receipt resped); or (c) on the
date sent by facsimile or e-mail of a PDF docungerith confirmation of transmission) if sent duringrmal business
hours of the recipient, and on the next businegsfd®nt after normal business hours of the recipiSuch
communications must be sent to the respectived3aatithe following addresses (or at such otheresddor a Party as
shall be specified in a notice given in accordanitk this Section 16):

If to Chembio: Chembio Diagnostic Systems, It
3661 Horseblock Road
Medford, New York 11763
Facsimile: 631-924-2065
E-mail: admin@chembio.com
Attention: John Sperzel, President and Chief
Executive Officer

If to SDS: StatSure Diagnostic Systems, |
1333 East 9'Street
Brooklyn, NY

17. Severability . If any term or provision of this Agreement is afid, illegal or unenforceable in any jurisdiction.
such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shaot affect any other term or provision of thig&@ement or invalidate
or render unenforceable such term or provisiominather jurisdiction.

18. Not Construed Against Drafter. The language of this Agreement shall not be preted in favor of or
against any Party as the drafter of this Agreement.

19. Headings. The headings in this Agreement are for referemdg and shall not affect the interpretation ofthi
Agreement.

20. Entire Agreement. This Agreement and the documents to be deliveeedunder constitute the sole and el
agreement of the Parties to this Agreement witpeetsto the subject matter contained herein, apdrsede all prior
and contemporaneous understandings and agreemettitsyritten and oral, with respect to such subeatter. In the
event of any inconsistency between the statemerbgibody of this Agreement and any document®tddbivered
hereunder, the statements in the body of this Agese will control.




21. No Third -party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is for the sole benefit of thetiearhereto and their respect
successors and permitted assigns and nothing hesgiress or implied, is intended to or shall confgon any other
person or entity any legal or equitable right, ieroe remedy of any nature whatsoever under ordason of this
Agreement.

22. Successors and AssignsThis Agreement shall be binding upon and shaiterto the benefit of the Parties
hereto and their respective successors and pednaisgns. Except as expressly permitted with rtgpehe licensed
intellectual property rights, neither Party mayigissts rights or obligations hereunder without grer written consent
of the other Party, which consent shall not be aswaably withheld or delayed. Any attempt to assigsmAgreement
in violation hereof shall be voiab initio. No assignment shall relieve the assigning Pdrang of its obligations
hereunder.

23. Relationship of the Parties. This Agreement shall not constitute either Pdrgyagent or legal representative
of the other Party for any purpose whatsoever,remitther Party shall hold itself out as an agerthefother Party. This
Agreement creates no relationship of joint vensrpartners, associates, employment, or principdlagent between
the Parties and each of the Parties is acting asd@pendent contractor. Neither Party is grantze@ih any right or
authority to, and shall not attempt to, assuma®eate any obligation or responsibility for or orhb¥ of the other Part
Neither Party shall have any authority to binddkiger Party to any contract, whether of employnoerdtherwise, an
each Party shall bear all of its respective expefmeits operations, including, without limitatiotihe compensation of
its employees and salespersons and the maintenaiseffices, service and warehouse facilitieaclE Party shall ea
be solely responsible for its own employees anelsparsons and for their acts and the things dortledny.

24. Amendment and Modification . This Agreement may only be amended, modifiecupptemented by an
agreement in writing signed by each Party hereto.

25. Waiver . No waiver by any Party of any of the provisiorsdof shall be effective unless explicitly set fart
writing and signed by the Party so waiving. No vesiilsy any Party shall operate or be construedvee\ger in respect
of any failure, breach or default not expresshynideed by such written waiver, whether of a simita different
character, and whether occurring before or aftatrwhaiver. No failure to exercise, or delay in &sing, any right,
remedy, power or privilege arising from this Agresrhshall operate or be construed as a waiverdharer shall any
single or partial exercise of any right, remedywvpoor privilege hereunder preclude any other dh&r exercise
thereof or the exercise of any other right, remeayyer or privilege.

26. Governing Law . This Agreement shall be governed by and constiuadcordance with the internal laws of
the State of New York without giving effect to atiyoice or conflict of law provision or rule (whethef the State of
New York or any other jurisdiction




27. Submission to Jurisdiction. Any legal suit, action or proceeding arising ofibr based upon this Agreeme
or the transactions contemplated hereby may beutest in the federal courts of the United StateAmerica or the
courts of the State of New York in each case latataghe city and county of New York, and each yarevocably
submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of such ceuntany such suit, action or proceeding.

28. Waiver of Jury Trial . Each Party acknowledges and agrees that anyosensly which may arise under this
Agreement is likely to involve complicated and difiit issues and, therefore, each such Party ioa&vly and
unconditionally waives any right it may have taialtby jury in respect of any legal action arisiogt of or relating to
this Agreement or the transactions contemplateelyer

29. Specific Performance. The Parties agree that irreparable damage waddraf any provision of this
Agreement were not performed in accordance withehmas hereof and that the Parties shall be edtitlespecific
performance of the terms hereof, in addition to atiner remedy to which they are entitled at lavincgquity.

30. Counterparts . This Agreement may be executed in counterpaatd) ef which shall be deemed an original,
but all of which together shall be deemed to beamthe same agreement. A signed copy of thisekgeat delivered
by facsimile, e-mail or other means of electronamsmission shall be deemed to have the samedégat as delivery
of an original signed copy of this Agreement.

31. Further Assurances. Each Party hereto will, upon the request of atitmgr Party and without further
consideration, execute and deliver such otherungtnts, and take such other actions, as such B#rgr may
reasonably request, and at the other Party's egpnmore effectively and efficiently carry ouetbovenants, licenses
and agreements of the Parties set forth in thigément and consummate the transactions contembhatis
Agreement. Without limitation of the foregoing, €hbio, as licensee of rights granted hereundeli, fstnee the right,
at its sole cost and expense, to register, reamicbtherwise document such License in any counkrgrevthere are any
pending or issued Patent Rights resulting frominiellectual Property Rights. Chembio may reqtie SDS execute
a "short form" License, in the form of Exhibit Brie#, in order to effect the foregoing registratimctording or other
documentation in any such country, and may recoct short form License, but no short form Licensallsn any way
alter or otherwise affect the rights and obligasioh the Parties hereunder.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]




IN WITNESS WHEREOF , the Parties hereto, through their respectiveainbd officers, have execut
this Agreement on the respective dates set folhwbéhe later of such dates is defined as tBgécution Date"):

CHEMBIO DIAGNOSTIC SYSTEMS, INC. STATSURE DIAGNOSTIC SYSTEMS, INC.
By: By:

Name: John Sperz Name:

Title: President and Chief Executive Officer Title:

Dated: Dated:




Exhibit 21

List of Subsidiaries

Chembio Diagnostic Systems, Inc. (Delaware)




Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Chembio Diagnostics, Inc.
Medford, New York

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtlee Registration Statements on Form S-8 (N8-83460, No. 333-141555 and No. 333-
151785) and on Form S-3 No. 333-185932 as amenfdédembio Diagnostics, Inc. of our report dated &fe, 2015, relating to the
consolidated financial statements appearing inFbisn 10-K.

/s/ BDO USA, LLP
BDO USA, LLP
Melville, New York

March 5, 2015



EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, John J. Sperzel, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Form 10-K of Chembio Diagnesstinc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtate a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, indighe circumstances under which such statenvesite made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present
in all material respects the financial conditicgsults of operations and cash flows of the regista of, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) araré responsible for establishing and maintainiisgldsure controls ar
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 18a}Hnd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finaheporting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a15(f) and 15d-15(f)) forrégistrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedwrecaused such disclosure controls and procedarbe designe
under our supervision, to ensure that materialrmédion relating to the registrant, including itneolidated subsidiaries, is m
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report i prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financeparting, or caused such internal control overrfaia reporting to k£
designed under our supervision, to provide readeredsurance regarding the reliability of financgporting and the preparat
of financial statements for external purposes toetance with generally accepted accounting priesip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisglosure controls and procedures and presemtetiis report ot
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discéosontrols and procedures, as of the end of thedgeovered by this repc
based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thesignt's internal control over financial reportithgit occurred during tl
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahmaport) that has materia
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant's internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) arltalve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiioernal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant's aoiditand the audit committee of the registrant'sdoéadirectors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbrdver financia
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversaffgct the registrant's ability to record, processnmarize and report financ
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that indvmanagement or other employees who have a smmiifrole in th
registrant's internal control over financial rejugt

Date: March 5, 2015 /sl John J. Sperzel
John J. Sperzel, Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION

I, Richard J. Larkin, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Form 10-K of Chembio Diagnesstinc.;

2.  Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or om#ttéde a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, indighe circumstances under which such statenvesits made, not misleading
with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsostmer financial information included in this repdairly present ii
all material respects the financial condition, tessaf operations and cash flows of the registeanof, and for, the periods
presented in this report;

4.  The registrant's other certifying officer(s) anaré responsible for establishing and maintainiisgldsure controls and
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 18a)}Hnd 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finaheporting (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13al15(f) and 15d-15(f)) forrdgistrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedwrecaused such disclosure controls and procedarbe designe
under our supervision, to ensure that materialrmédion relating to the registrant, including itsneolidated subsidiaries, is mi
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report i prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financiparting, or caused such internal control overrfaia reporting to
designed under our supervision, to provide readeradsurance regarding the reliability of financeporting and the preparat
of financial statements for external purposes toetance with generally accepted accounting priesijp

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisglosure controls and procedures and presemtetiis report ot
conclusions about the effectiveness of the discéosontrols and procedures, as of the end of thedgeovered by this repc
based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thesignt's internal control over financial reportithgit occurred during tl
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the remigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahmaport) that has materia
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant's internal control over finahceporting; and

5.  The registrant's other certifying officer(s) anblve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiomernal control
over financial reporting, to the registrant's aoiditand the audit committee of the registrant'sdohdirectors (or persons
performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbrdver financia
reporting which are reasonably likely to adverss#iect the registrant's ability to record, processnmarize and report financ
information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a simifiole in th
registrant's internal control over financial rejugt

Date: March 5, 2015 /s/ Richard J. Larkin
Richard J. Larkin, Chief Financial Officer




EXHIBIT 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form K @the "Report") of Chembio Diagnostics, Inc. (tf@ompany") for the ye:
ended December 31, 2014, each of the undersigriedJicSperzel, the Chief Executive Officer of thenpany, and Richard
Larkin, the Chief Financial Officer of the Compargreby certifies pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section012% adopted pursuan
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, tioathe best of the undersigneds' knowledge ahefbe

(1) This Form 1K for the year ended December 31, 2014 fully coagplvith the requirements of section 13(a) or 16¢
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in this Form 10-K tbe year ended December 31, 2014 fairly presangdl material
respects, the financial condition and results @rafjons of Chembio Diagnostics, Inc. for the pdsipresented therein.

Dated: March 5, 2015 /s/ John J. Sperzel
John J. Sperzel
Chief Executive Officer

Dated: March 5, 2015 /s/ Richard J. Larkin
Richard J. Larkin
Chief Financial Officer




